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COMPANY OVERVIEW

Times Property Holdings Limited (“Times Property” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), one of the
Top 50 Real Estate Companies in China and China Fortune 500,
has its shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 1233).
Founded in 1999, the current principal business of Times Property is
development and management of residential, commercial properties,
industrial parks and featured small towns. Times Property expanded
its business to Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Foshan, Dongguan, Zhuhai,
Huizhou, Zhongshan, Qingyuan and Changsha, in which economies
are well-developed, and had a total of 54 projects in various stages.
By the end of 2016, the Group had a total assets of approximately
RMB70 billion.

Times Property has perfectly combined life and art by adhering to the
corporate strategy of “Regional focus, Cities penetration and Product
diversification” and upholding the people-oriented design concept;
and continues to improve product quality by actively promoting
industrialisation process of the whole production chain; and strives
to meet customer needs by continuously providing full-cycle property
services.

As a Life stylist in the real estate sector, Times Property continues
to pursue the core values of “Love, Focus and Create”, in order
to provide consumers with better products and services, creates
greater returns for its shareholders, and strives to become the best
real estate enterprise in China so as to enable more people to live
with the lifestyle they aspire to.
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CORPORATE MILESTONES

s BEHERMARK —_BNT=ET
Contracted sales surpassed
RMB29.3 billion

EANRY BN REMIS
FEIR=BMRE TR

Entered Shenzhen, Huizhou and
Dongguan markets so as to have a
more comprehensive layout in the in

s BRHERBARE—BRTIET
Contracted sales surpassed
RMB15 billion

Pearl River Delta

oHEM [ BEX o RIR/NER | BB -
B IRV E R AR AR
Introduced the “Times e Future
Towns” strategy so as to facilitate
the transformation and upgrade of
national industry

o EEBBITHERILE2.25(8
First issuance of bonds of USD 225
million in Hong Kong

ARBEERWARE
—AATREET

o A DD OB S PT E AR
Contracted sales surpassed 7R
RMB19.5 billion Successfully
EHANBITHEARKE listed on the Main
2018 Board of the Stock
First issuance of bonds of Exchange
RMB2 billion in China o AFSEERIEAR
HE AR
Contracted

sales surpassed
RMB10 billion
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CORPORATE MILESTONES

o ARG - BRI

EmEHEIRD

Successfully entered Hunan

Changsha market, bringing
successful products to
Changsha

o R (KRY)
Times King City (Changsha)

EAMBILTTES - MO RFEEH
EEMEER
Entered Foshan market,

focusing on the development

of residential property projects
o BRACERIER (B 1L

Times King City (Foshan)

AR BERKEGTEMEFAE
% BORFEBRETYHEER
Entered Zhongshan, Qingyuan
and Zhuhai residential property
development markets, focusing on the
development of residential property

projects
o BARRHE (3R08)

Times Laguna (Zhuhai)
o R HRE(HIL)

Times Mont Blanc (Zhongshan)
o R OBE)

Times King City (Qingyuan)
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o B (b EE R L 71999 4F -
BN EHEERS
Times Property was
established in 1999 and
engaged in real estate
business

o LATHETEBMIR | R ELL -
FIATEAK B ORI H FHE
Positioned itself as “Life Stylist”
and started to establish its own
competitive strength
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January 2016

Top 30 Chinese Employers in Guangzhou Award of the Year

March 2016

2015 Top 100 Outstanding Real Estate Enterprises

2015 Top 30 China Real Estate Listed Companies

2016 Top 10 China Real Estate Development Enterprise
Comprehensive Development

2016 Top 100 China Real Estate Companies (Rank No. 35)

2016 Top 50 China Real Estate Developers

June 2016

2016 Top 100 China Property Management Service Providers
(Rank No. 21)

2016 Top 100 China Property Management Service Providers
(Service Quality) (Top 10 Rank No.7)

Brilliant Career Award of Guangdong Province

July 2016

e The Fifteenth Top 20 Guangdong Property Enterprises with High
Credit

Premium Chinese Property Enterprise Award




AR FTESRIA
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August 2016
e Top 500 Chinese Private Companies
e 2016 China Most Influential Real Estate Enterprises

September 2016

e 2016 Top 100 Private Companies of Guangdong Province

e 2011-2016 Enterprise with Special Contribution Make a Charity
Donation of over RMB100 million for Poverty Relief

e 2016 Top 10 Leading Chinese Brand Company in Real Estate
Service

e 2016 Top 20 Chinese Property Management Comprehensive
Strength Enterprises

October 2016
e 2016 Most Stable Real Estate Companies in China

November 2016
e 2016 Top 100 Chinese Commercial Real Estate Companies

December 2016

e Real Estate Brand Enterprises of the Year

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 7
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Guan Jianhui

Mr. Bai Xihong

Mr. Li Qiang

Mr. Shum Siu Hung (formerly known as Cen Zhaoxiong)

Mr. Niu Jimin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jin Qingjun

Ms. Sun Hui

Mr. Wong Wai Man

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Lui Wai Pang
Ms. Lai Siu Kuen

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Li Qiang
Mr. Lui Wai Pang

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Wai Man (Chairman)
Mr. Jin Qingjun

Ms. Sun Hui

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Ms. Sun Hui (Chairman)

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung

Mr. Wong Wai Man
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P.O. Box 1350
Clifton House

75 Fort Street
Grand Cayman
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman)

Mr. Jin Qingjun
Ms. Sun Hui

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 1350

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
36-38/F, Times Property Center

410-412 Dongfeng Road

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Suites 4706-4707, 47/F

Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 9
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 1350

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong and U.S. law:

Sidley Austin

Level 39, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

Commerce & Finance Law Offices
6F, NCI Tower

A12 Jianguomenwai Avenue
Chaoyang District

Beijing

China

As to Cayman Islands law:
Appleby

Rooms 2206-19 Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong
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http://www.timesgroup.cn
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Emnst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

1233

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.timesgroup.cn

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Agricultural Bank of China

China Construction Bank

Bank of China

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 11
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BRIARK - Dear Shareholders,
RAANEREARFEEL([EEFT]) MARE On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”),

AEEHEZE _ZE—ARAFT+T-_A=1+t—"HLHFE | am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year
([HEBADNWEFZEE - ended 31 December 2016 (the “Reporting Period”).
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For the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group, benefiting from
the advantage resulted from the
high quality land reserve and
differentiated competition strategy,
achieved a contracted sales amount
of RMB29.33 billion, exceeding the
contracted sales target for the entire
year, representing an increase of
50.3% over last year.

1. RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded revenue
of RMB16,206.5 million; profit for the year amounted to RMB1,982.4
million; profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to RMB1,955.0 million; basic earnings per share were RMB113
cents; and diluted earnings per share for the year of RMB107 cents,
representing an increase of 44.6% as compared with last year. The
Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB31.51
cents per share. In 2016, the Group achieved a contracted sales
amount of RMB29.33 billion, representing an increase of 50.3% over
last year.

2. REVIEW OF YEAR 2016

In 2016, the real estate market set record highs in both trading
volume and price. According to the National Bureau of Statistics,
the area of commercial properties sold in China reached 1.573
billion sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of 22.5%, and
the transaction volume of commercial properties amounted to
RMB11.76 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 34.8%.
During the year, the real estate sector heated up before getting
stabilised. In the first half of the year, the market was heated up with
an increase in both trading volume and price; while for the second
half of the year, popular Chinese cities rolled out regulatory policies
to adjust the market back to a reasonable state.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 13
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During the Reporting Period, the urban real estate market
transactions were active in the cities under the Group’s layout, with
a rapid growth. In particular, the growth of the sales of commercial
properties in Guangzhou, Foshan, Zhuhai, Huizhou, Qingyuan and
Changsha amounted to 44.0%, 52.2%, 89.5%, 76.3%, 59.5% and
51.0%, respectively, which is significantly higher than the national
average.

The Group actively grasped market dynamics and adopted proactive
sales strategies to drive the steady growth of its results. As at
31 December 2016, the Group’s contracted sales amounted to
RMB29.33 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 50.3%.

The Group made new progress in its regional layout and tapped into
the markets of Shenzhen, Dongguan and Huizhou, which resulted in
a more comprehensive layout for us in Pearl River Delta.

In terms of land reserve, the Group actively expanded its land reserve
through various channels, including participation in government
public auctions, urban redevelopment projects, primary development,
cooperation and company acquisition. The Group acquired a total of
14 new projects with a total planned GFA of 3.44 million sq.m..

Meanwhile, the Group capitalised on its solid foundation in urban
redevelopment with years of experience and introduced its “Times e
Future Towns” strategy for the urbanisation in an all-round manner.
The strategy has been well-received by local governments. Up to the
present, the Group has entered into certain framework agreements
on town co-development with the local governments of Guangzhou,
Foshan, Zhongshan and Dongguan.

In addition, the Group adopted stable and robust financial strategies,
and continuously improved its debt structure to reduce financial
cost. The Group’s net gearing ratio decreased from 77.3% as at 31
December 2015 to 54.7% as at 31 December 2016.
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3. OUTLOOK FOR YEAR 2017

Looking into 2017, we expect that the Chinese economy will grow
steadily. Industrial policies will remain stable but in a tightening
process, with the central government to focus on “control of bubble
and prevention of risks” and local governments to implement their
own policies based on the growth of inventory, housing and land
prices. Monetary policies will be moderately tightened, with the
capital leverage tightened for real estate. Throughout the year,
market sentiments will gradually return to a stable state, in addition
to a greater balance between housing supply and demand in first
and second-tier cities, reducing the pressure from price surges, and
greater industrial concentration. The Group is of the view that a more
rational market benefits the long-term, healthy development of the
real estate industry and its businesses. Owing to its large scale and
the development of new towns in China, real estate will remain a
pillar industry to support the healthy, stable development of national
economy.

The Group will continue to establish itself intensively in regions
where the Group has established its market presence and actively
participate in urban redevelopment, in order to greatly boost
the market shares over the regions. We will actively participate
in construction of featured small towns so as to facilitate the
transformation and upgrade of national industry and share the profits
derived from such transformation and upgrade. We will flexibly
respond to market changes to procure sales proactively, monitor
market risk continuously and strengthen cash flow management.

In addition, the Group will actively develop community services,
commercial and creative office zone business on the basis of
strengthening the principal business, in order to achieve a balanced
growth in scale and profit and to create values for our shareholders,
employees and property owners.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 15
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4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
our gratitude to the proprietors, all employees, business partners and
investors of Times Property for their support and trust for the past
year.

Looking ahead, we will adhere to its mission of “empowering more
people to live with a lifestyle they aspire to” and continue to pursue
its operational philosophy of “surprising our customers with quality
and moving our customers with our services”. Meanwhile, we will
strive to create more value for our shareholders and provide better
products and services to our proprietors.

Shum Chiu Hung
Chairman of the Board, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer

27 February 2017
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE+-A=t—-HLHEE

For the year ended 31 December

M= —E-RE —T—AHF b=
Notes 2016 2015 Change
ERKE Contracted sales
ARMEEEA(ARBESEL) Contracted sales (RMB million) 29,328 19,508 50.34%
AREEERERE(FHK)  Contracted GFA* (sq.m.) 2,473,000 2,165,000 14.23%
ERIHEE FHEE
(AREETL/FFHXK) Contracted ASP** (RMB/sqg.m.) 11,859 9,011 31.61%
TEHKER Selected financial information
DREABRANAREGET) Recognised revenue (RMB million) 16,206.5 13,638.2 18.83%
EMAREEST) Gross profit (RMB million) 4,250.2 3,546.4 19.85%
FEAHE Profit for the year
— B AR IEIE R R S - Including non-controlling interests
(AREBET) (RMB million) 1,982.4 1,551.1 27.81%
— AR RAEIHB NG — Attributable to owners of the
(ARBHETT) Company (RMB million) 1,955.0 1,420.6 37.62%
ZIEFFB(AREEEL)  Core net profit (RMB million) 1 1,833.3 1,477.3 24.1%
R=Z— $ RZE—RF
+=A=+- +=A=t-H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
M = ARKEET ANREBHT
Notes RMB million RMB million
BERR Total assets 69,088.9 45,870.3
BERRE Total liabilities 52,898.0 36,612.3
HE RIRTTHEH Cash and bank balances 2 11,880.7 8,749.2
FFEMRITER K Interest-bearing bank loans and
EAb{ER other borrowings
— 7B — current 1,956.1 359.1
—JEnR® - non-current 18,532.4 15,331.1
AR ESFEE Y Debt component of the convertible
bonds 242.4 216.6
3 20,730.9 15,906.8
AR RE Total equity 16,190.9 9,258.0
RNEEE AR Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 9,132.0 7,099.7

© o RRm
“ FEE

*

ok

Gross floor area

Average selling price

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 17
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE+-A=T—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

FiEE —E-RE —E—h4F
Note 2016 2015
FEHKLE Selected financial ratios
FFI= Gross profit margin 26.2% 26.0%
RS Net profit margin 12.2% 11.4%
ZOERIEE Core net profit margin 4 11.3% 10.8%
BREKETR - ARES Basic earnings per share,
RMB cents 113 82
BRESERN - ARED Diluted earnings per share,
RMB cents 107 74
RZB—RE RZZE—hF
t=RA=+—-H +t=-A=+—H
As at As at
FiEE 31 December 31 December
Note 2016 2015
IRz Current ratio 1.8 2.0
BELER Gearing ratio 5 54.7% 77.3%
TEEEHE Selected operating data
FR T E AR Total land bank at end of the year
(BEmEE - FHX) (GFA, sg.m.) 13,064,459 10,561,440
et - Notes:
1. BROFAEERBERNE  TRIEREWERTIRRESRT 1. Core net profit represents profit after tax excluding changes

E%Iﬁﬂl/\n
2.

AR EEES - UHRERREEHEANT

2. ReRBTHEBKERIBRHIRTERARRESRASEE

) o

BIRITE TA&H?ME*TA

HBBRELRRE  THRRESA

4. RBRUFEMBERIREE O FNERACHEREALRTE -

5. BEBEREDNRIXFERAEENEEFEGIERITER
HMERBEINRER ¢ RIRITHER),(FEEFE -

18 ERmEZRARAT 2016 FERE

in fair values of investment properties and the derivative
component of the convertible bonds, net of the impact of the
related deferred tax.

Cash and bank balances include restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents.

Total interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings
include senior notes, the debt component of convertible
bonds and corporate bonds.

Core net profit margin is calculated based on core net profit
over total recognised revenue.

Gearing ratio is calculated by the Group’s net debts (total
interesting-bearing bank loans and other borrowings, net of
cash and bank balances) over net assets at the end of each
year.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (2 &) (“Mr. Shum”), aged 46, is the
founder of the Group. He has been the chairman of the Board, chief
executive officer and Director since November 2007 and was re-
designated as the executive Director in February 2008. Mr. Shum
started his business career in real estate development in 1999, and
has experience in trade, finance and real estate development. In
1999, he founded Guangzhou Sweetland Real Estate Development
Company Limited (“Sweetland Real Estate”), a company engaged
in residential property development project in Guangzhou. In
2001, he founded Guangzhou Times Property Group Co., Ltd.
(“Times Group”), a subsidiary of the Company, and served as the
president, primarily responsible for the strategic development and
overall operations of Times Group’s business. He has been serving
concurrently as the head of the operation center of the Group since
January 2014, generally responsible for the Company’s overall
operation plan. Mr. Shum has led the Group to become the leading
property developers in the PRC, focusing on the development of
mid-market to high-end residential properties. He has over 17 years
of experience in the PRC real estate industry. He graduated from
Fudan University (18 B K£2) with an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree (“EMBA”) in June 2006.

Mr. Shum was recognised as an “Innovative Individual in China’s
Real Estate Industry in 2005” (“20054F [& mh Bl &= 1 EE Bl A 47”), by
a number of media outlets including Beijing Youth Daily Group ({1t
REF L) ), Guangzhou Daily (/B #z) ) and China Business
News ( (& —B14%) ), an “Outstanding Leader of Mainstream Chinese
Real Estate Companies in 2005” (‘2005 E B £ imithELE B E
A#") by China Properties Economic Mainstream Summit (47 B 5
ELBET RIES) and one of the*100 Most Influential Entrepreneurs
in China’s Real Estate Industry in 2004” (‘20044 [ &2 £ B = i &
1006212 5X") by Media and Promotion Alliance for Real Estate in
China (FEIM{E 2 & F /M58 S EHi #). Mr. Shum was recognised
as an “Excellent Entrepreneur in China’s Real Estate Industry” (“/b
BEEEEFPEK") and was awarded the “Golden Horse Award
of Excellent Entrepreneur in China’s Real Estate Industry in 2007”
(‘2007 B EHEEFLERSE ") by the Urban Development
and Environment Research Center of the Chinese Academy of
Social Science (F Bt &R 2 Fe i ™ & R ERFHFTH L), China
National Real Estate Enterprise Association (P2 B EMEDE
%4 &) and China Real Estate Entrepreneur Association (&= 1>
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X&) in 2006 and 2007, respectively. He was also awarded
the “Top 10 Figures with Outstanding Contributions in 30 Years of
China’s Real Estate Industry” (‘R BE B E30F + KL ERIAY”
in 2008 by Nanfang Media Group (@ /5 $f 2 (1% £ &) and 30 Years
of China’s Real Estate Industry Summit Organizing Committee (-
B EIF 5 EmIBAZE), “11th Guangzhou Outstanding Youth”
(‘“Ft+— Fﬁ)l\{%ﬁﬁ £ £E") in 2010 by the People’s Government of
Guangzhou (BN AREBUA), “Most Influential Figures in China’s
Real Estate Industry” (‘RBIEHETERETZE N AY") in 2010
by the Ministry of Housing and Urban Policy Research Center ({£
B A R 2R BRIk 25 B 9T ), National Federation of Real Estate
Chamber of Commerce (2B T i@kt EHE R €) and Guangdong
Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (EBR & HEREE), the “The 1st
Top 10 Outstanding Cantonese Youth” (“& &t R BEFA AL
HEE") in 2013 by The 1st Global Conference of the Cantonese
Organizing Committee (/A A BN ABRFASHES), “The
Award of Outstanding Person of the Year” (“GE £ H A ¥IKEE") in
2014 by The Annual Meeting of China Real Estate (2 Bt EF <),
“Annual Top 10 Most Influential Leading Figures in China Real Estate”
(“FEME+TRKFENEBEAY) in 2015 and “4th Guangdong
Outstanding Chinese Socialism Enterprise Builders” (‘“ER & £ M/E
EFFESEMEERFHEERE") n2016.

Mr. Shum was appointed as a standing member of the Guangzhou
Committee of the 11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FRARBAHEEZE T " ERNTZESFEB
Z 8) in 2007 and executive chairman of Guangzhou Chamber of
Commerce of Private Enterprises (BEMTRZ M%), He was a
standing member of the Guangzhou Committee of the 12th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (B A RBUSHIE &
HET-EEINTEEEEKZEE). Mr. Shum is currently the vice
chairman of the 14th executive committee of Guangzhou Federation
of Industry and Commerce (&N LR ¥4 <) and Guangzhou
General Chamber of Commerce (E /427 &) since September
2011. Mr. Shum is also the vice chairman of Guangdong Youth
Federation (8R4 & FEA <), the president of Guangdong Young
Entrepreneur Association (ERE S FEEXRIHE) and the vice
chairman of Guangzhou Youth Federation (/N 5 E 84 ). Mr.
Shum is currently a deputy of 12th People’s Congress of Guangdong
Province (BER&E ARREZAREE +ZERK) and a standing
member of the Guangzhou Committee of the 13th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (Bl A REUA B E@ZE +=EE
INTZEE@FEHZE ). Mr. Shum is the elder brother of Mr. Shum Siu
Hung (formerly known as Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong), the executive Director.
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Mr. Guan Jianhui (B8#Z &) (“Mr. Guan”), aged 52, was appointed
as the Director in January 2008 and was re-designated as the
executive Director in February 2008. Mr. Guan has been a vice
president of Times Group since January 2002. Mr. Guan is currently
the head of corporate management center of Times Group and is
primarily responsible for information management, human resources,
administration and fund affairs. He assisted Mr. Shum to found
Sweetland Real Estate in 1999 and joined Times Group in May 2001.
From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Guan was responsible for finance, funding
and cost management. He has over 17 years of experience in real
estate corporate management. Mr. Guan graduated from South
China Normal University (253 Af&5 K2 with a bachelor’s degree
in arts in December 1994, and obtained an EMBA from Peking
University (3t 2 K22) in July 2009. Mr. Guan was a member of the
14th Guangzhou Yuexiu District Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (MBI A RBUA I &% 5+
EEMTHERZE®). Mr. Guan is currently a member of 15th
People’s Congress of Guangzhou (EMME+ R ARKEARD).

Mr. Bai Xihong (H#37%) (“Mr. Bai”), aged 49, was appointed as
the Director in January 2008 and was designated as the executive
Director in February 2008. He has been a vice president of Times
Group since January 2002. He has also been the general manager
of the Guangzhou regional office of Times Group since January
2002 whereby he is primarily responsible for project research and
development, designing, procurement and project management
in Guangzhou. Mr. Bai joined Sweetland Real Estate in 1999 and
joined Times Group in May 2001. Mr. Bai has over 17 years of
experience in real estate corporate management. He graduated from
Guangdong Radio & Television University (BE E&EEIRAZ) in
industrial enterprise operation management in 1990 and obtained an
EMBA from Sun Yat-Sen University (77 |1/ X&) in December 2009.
In 2005, Mr. Bai was recognised as an “Outstanding Contributor
to Guangzhou Real Estate in the Past 20 years” (“EBMitE_=1+
FEHEPEENS A”) by the “Guangzhou Real Estate in the Past 20
Years’ event organizing committee” (BN E — +F KAEE)H
%), Guangzhou Real Estate Organization (&M & & 2 #
@) and Guangzhou Real Estate Guide Union (EihEZ& T]1t). He
was awarded the “2006 Outstanding CEO (Diamond Award) in
Mainstream Real Estate in China” (200670 B it E SR 5
EACEQ”) in 2006 by China Mainstream Real Estate Economy Summit
(PP B0 b E 4075 R 1§ =), “Innovative and Meritorious Individual in
China’s Real Estate Industry in the 60 years since the Founding of
the PRC” (“ZEI60FH BIFE A & iHAIFT D182 A7) in 2009 by the
7th China Real Estate Economy Summit (25 J& A B 4 22 48 7% = 7%
I&) and “Real Estate Pioneers Award” (“iEE 5§88 A #)4%”) in 2010
by Xin Kuai News (#Ti#%R). Mr. Bai was a member of the Guangzhou
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(FEARBGRHEEZEMNTEES).
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Mr. Li Qiang (Z358) (“Mr. Li”), aged 42, was appointed as the
Director in January 2008 and was designated as the executive
Director in February 2008. He has been a vice president of Times
Group since July 2009. He is currently also the head of the Audit
Supervision and Legal Center of Times Group and is primarily
responsible for audit, supervision and legal matters. Mr. Li joined the
Group in July 2005 as an assistant to the president. Mr. Li has over
11 years of experience in real estate corporate management. Mr.
Li obtained a master’s degree in law from Hunan Normal University
CHEEME A Z2) in June 2000, and an EMBA degree from Sun Yat-
Sen University (F71LK228) in December 2007. He was admitted as
a lawyer in the PRC in June 1998. Mr. Li was a member of the 15th
People’s Congress of Guangzhou Yuexiu District (M ik F5 R 5
THEARRKEXRS).

Mr. Shum Siu Hung (formerly known as Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong)
(& Jk &) (“Mr. Shum Siu Hung”), aged 42, was appointed as the
executive Director in November 2013. He has been a director of the
investment and development center of Times Group since May 2012,
responsible for land development and project pre-planning work. Mr.
Shum Siu Hung joined Sweetland Real Estate as a project assistant
in 1999 and was promoted as a manager of the development
department in May 2001 and a manager of the tender department
of Times Group in September 2009. Mr. Shum Siu Hung was the
general manager of the Qingyuan regional office of Times Group
between December 2010 and May 2012. Mr. Shum Siu Hung is a
younger brother of Mr. Shum, the executive Director, the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Niu Jimin (4&X) (“Mr. Niu”), aged 37, was appointed as the
executive Director in November 2013 and is currently the head of the
finance department of Times Group, responsible for planning and
management of financial accounting, operation and taxation matters.
Prior to joining the Group in 2011, Mr. Niu worked in the finance
management department of Guangzhou Vanke Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (BN EREEAR A F) (“Guangzhou Vanke”) as regional
finance manager from December 2005 to December 2007. He was
head of operation analysis of the operation management department
and a senior manager of the project development department of
Guangzhou Vanke from December 2007 to April 2008 and from
November 2010 to March 2011, respectively. He was head of finance
department of Wuhan Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. (R/ZT BRI E
EAF R A F]) from May 2008 to October 2010. Mr. Niu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in management from Sun Yat-Sen University (F L]
KE) in June 2001 and a master of business administration degree
from Hong Kong Baptist University in November 2012. Mr. Niu
graduated from School of Finance of Renmin University of China (4
B A RAEB I fEBT) with an EMBA degree in January 2015.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jin Qingjun (ZTEE) (“Mr. Jin”), aged 59, was appointed as
the independent non-executive Director in October 2015. Mr. Jin
is currently a senior partner of King & Wood Mallesons. His major
areas of practice include securities, finance, investment, corporate,
insolvency as well as foreign-related legal affairs. Mr. Jin has solid
jurisprudence theory base and extensive legal practice experience.
He has been adhering to work on major jobs in the past two
decades, winning a higher reputation in the industry and among
peers.

Mr. Jin is one of the first lawyers who are granted Security
Qualification Certificate in the PRC, focusing on securities-related
legal affairs for more than 20 years. Mr. Jin has previously worked
as general counsel of Shenzhen Stock Exchange and a member of
its Listing Supervisory Council, and he is currently a legal counsel for
various financial institutions, securities companies, listed companies
at home and abroad. In 2012, he was named as one of the Top 10
PRC Lawyers of the Year and PRC Securities Lawyer of the Year. Mr.
Jin also serves as an independent director of Guotai Junan Securities
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 601211), an independent director of Gemdale Corporation
(@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600383), an independent director of Tianjin Changrong Print and
Packing Equipment Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 300195), a director of Konka Group
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 000016, 200016), external supervisor of China Merchants
Bank Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 3968; a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600036) and an independent non-executive director of
Sino-Ocean Group Holding Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 3377). Mr. Jin had been an independent
non-executive director of China International Marine Containers
(Group) Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2039; a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 000039) and an independent director of Xi'an Dagang
Road Machinery Co., Ltd (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 300103).
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Mr. Jin is the adjunct professor at China University of Political Science
and Law and the School of Law, Renmin University of China; co-
tutor for students of master’s degree at the School of Law, Tsinghua
University; Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration and Shanghai
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission, mediator
of Shenzhen Securities and Futures Dispute Resolution Centre; and
the PRC legal counsel of US Court of Appeals for the Washington
D.C Circuit. Mr. Jin obtained his B.A. in English from Anhui University
in 1982. He received his master’s degree in International Law from
China University of Political Science and Law in 1987. Mr. Jin also
received a graduate diploma from the John F. Kennedy School of
Government, Harvard Kennedy School in 2009.

Ms. Sun Hui (%) (“Ms. Sun”), aged 55, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director in November 2013. She has
been a partner of Shanghai Huanzhong Law Firm (=838 2E0
ET%FT) since July 1996, a chairman of Zengcheng Jianglong Electric
Power Co., Ltd. (35 T8 E B R A F]) since 2009. Ms. Sun
graduated from the school of law of East China University of Political
Science and Law (FERBUAZMT) in 1983. She obtained a degree
in law from Georgetown University in 1992. She is a member of the
Association of Registered Independent Directors, United Kingdom.

Mr. Wong Wai Man (E{#X) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 48, was
appointed as the independent non-executive Director in November
2013. From August 1991 to April 1996, Mr. Wong worked as
an auditor with Ernst & Young. From 2006 to 2010, he was an
executive director of China Household Holdings Limited (stock
code: 692), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong
serves as a non-executive director and the company secretary of
QPL International Holdings Limited (stock code: 243), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor of arts
degree in accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in November 1991 and a master of science degree in financial
economics from the University of London in December 1997. He is
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tao Chengjiang (F§/%;T) (“Mr. Tao”), aged 48, has been
the general manager of Shenzhen office of Times Group since
September 2016. He joined Times Group in May 2001 as a manager
of its finance department and was promoted as the finance director
in January 2004. He later became the head of the funds center of
Times Group in December 2006 responsible for capital financing
of the Group. Prior to joining us, from November 1999 to March
2001, Mr. Tao worked in the finance department and corporate
management department of Kingold Group Companies Limited (&
ZEBAPRAT). Mr. Tao has been a qualified accountant in the
PRC since April 1997 and he is a non-practising member of the
Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants (&
REFME A7 &) since 2010. Mr. Tao graduated from Xi’an
Petroleum College (7% A M 5ft) with a bachelor’'s degree in
economics in June 1992 and obtained an EMBA degree from Sun
Yat-Sen University (7 1L/ A 22) in December 2008.

Mr. Lui Wai Pang (F&#) (“Mr. Lui”), aged 43, has been the
chief financial officer, the joint company secretary and the authorised
representative of the Group since March 2015. He is responsible for
the Group’s financial reporting and investor relations related matters.
Mr. Lui has over 18 years of working experience in accounting,
corporate finance and investor relations. Mr. Lui is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
holds a bachelor degree of Business Administration in Accounting
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. During
September 2006 to March 2015, he worked with Agile Property
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3383), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, with his last position as a financial controller. He also
worked in several listed companies in Hong Kong, during which he
participated in initial public offering projects and was responsible for
matters relating to corporate finance and financial reporting.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND
GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14
November 2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law”).
The Company’s ordinary shares (the “Shares”) were listed on the
Stock Exchange on 11 December 2013 (the “Listing” or the “Listing
Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is one of the leading property developers in
Guangdong Province, focusing on the development of mid-market
to high-end residential properties. Main business comprises three
areas: (i) property development, i.e., the development of residential
and commercial properties for sale, (ii) property leasing, i.e., the
development, leasing and sub-leasing of commercial properties
owned by the Company or independent third parties, and (iii)
property management, i.e., the provision of property management
services to our customers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

For 2016, the Group’s operations recorded a revenue of
RMB16,206.5 million, representing an increase of 18.8% when
compared with that of 2015. Profit for 2016 amounted to
RMB1,982.4 million, representing an increase of 27.8% when
compared with 2015. The core net profit for 2016, excluding
changes in fair values of investment properties and the derivative
component of the convertible bonds, net of the impact of the
related deferred tax, increased to RMB1,833.3 million, representing
an increase of 24.1% when compared with that of 2015. Profit
attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to RMB1,955.0
million, representing an increase of 37.6% as compared to that of
2015. Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for
2016 were RMB113 cents (2015: RMB82 cents) and RMB107 cents
(2015: RMB74 cents), respectively.
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Property development

The Group focuses on the major core cities in the Pearl River
Delta area. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had in total 54
major projects on various stages, including 53 projects in major
cities of Guangdong Province, namely, Guangzhou, Shenzhen,
Foshan, Dongguan, Huizhou, Zhuhai, Zhongshan and Qingyuan,
and 1 project in Changsha, Hunan Province. For 2016, with its
outstanding operating capability and high quality projects situated
in prime locations, the Group still managed to accomplish expected
contracted sales for the year. For 2016, the Group’s contracted
sales” amounted to approximately RMB29.33 billion with total GFA
of approximately 2,473,000 sg.m.. The Group focuses in its projects
on peripheral facilities, seeking to enhance customers’ experience in
art and to fulfill needs of the middle to upper class households.

Note 1: Contracted sales is summarised based on sale and purchase

agreements and purchase confirmation agreements.

The table below illustrates the contracted sales achieved by the
Group by region for 2016:

AftHE
HE#E EEHEEEE SEHELE FEESW
Available for
sale project Contracted Contracted Percentage
EiF Region numbers sales area sales amount of total
(FFK) (ANER¥EE=ET)
(sq.m.) (RMB million) (%)
BN Guangzhou 11 531,000 8,150 27.8
(| Foshan 10 799,000 10,546 35.9
e Zhuhai 6 527,000 6,736 23.0
Al Zhongshan 3 34,000 286 1.0
B Qingyuan 2 266,000 1,670 5.7
&S Changsha 1 316,000 1,940 6.6
st Total 33 2,473,000 29,328 100.0
TR Tt FHNAREE B RN AARKEI25E The contracted sales target for 2017 is expected to be of
JC ° approximately RMB32.5 billion.
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Properties for leasing and sub-leasing

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held a GFA of approximately
29,961 sg.m. and 244 car parking spaces at Times Property Center
for rental purposes and the GFA for Guangzhou Times Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. ("Guangzhou Zhide”, original name as
Guangzhou Zhide Commercial Management Co., Ltd.) and its
subsidiary for sub-leasing purposes was approximately 278,438
sg.m.. For 2016, the Group’s rental income amounted to RMB298.2
million, contributing to 1.8% of the total turnover.

Property management services

Property management fee income represents revenue generated
from property management services provided in relation to delivered
properties. For 2016, the Group provided property management
services for 72 project phases. The Group’s revenue from property
management services increased from RMB168.2 million for 2015 to
RMB288.2 million for 2016. This increase was primarily due to the
increase in the number of project phases that the Group managed
with the delivery of the properties we made in 2016.

Land Reserves

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total land reserves of
approximately 13.1 million sg.m., which the Group believes will be
sufficient to support the Group’s development need for the next
three to five years. The table below sets forth the information of land
reserves in major cities that the Group has established footholds:

TiREEEE
Ei Region Total land reserves
(FrHAK)

(sq.m.) (%)
E M Guangzhou 2,223,575 17.0
(| Foshan 2,417,543 18.5
H Zhuhai 1,554,410 12.0
AL Zhongshan 547,368 4.2
BB Qingyuan 3,565,430 27.3
3297 Changsha 1,623,830 12.4
£ Dongguan 500,185 3.8
=M Huizhou 632,118 4.8
Gl Total 13,064,459 100.0
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TRV AEBEHEZ—T—FEF+-_A=+—H The following table sets forth the GFA breakdown of the Group’s

bR AR S H AR A AR ¢ land reserves by planned use as at 31 December 2016:
TiREEEE
sTEIRE Planned Use Total land reserves
(FFHK)
(sq.m.) (%)
F= Residential 9,718,310 74.4
[GES Commercial 669,461 5.1
Hh(Hzt) Others (Note) 2,676,688 20.5
a5t Total 13,064,459 100
et - HEtbEBEREEES REERE Note:  Others mainly comprises car parks and ancillary facilities.
VIXBRIEEAES Portfolio of Property Development Projects
TERMEBEZE—"F T+ A=+ —HNWEHA The table below is a summary of the portfolio of property
BIHEBAEHBEERO - development projects as at 31 December 2016,
BRI EEGVES
Completed Under development/future
development
e Hitg Hitr fiERE
EH ERER Bl BRIAN HEEE BEHER mEY  REEERY  EEEE ER
Actual/expected GFA Ownership
Project Project type completion dates Site area for sale@®  Other GFA® GFA®  Other GFA® interest®
(FAHK) (FAx) (FAK) (FHK) (FFHK)
(sqm) sqm) (sqm) (sqm) (sqm) (%
BN
Guangzhou
BRINE TEREE ZE-CFETF 92,123 8,126 49,039 - - 99
Times Bund Residential and 2013-2016
commercial
e EEREE —F——fZ-Z-TF 354,156 24,451 61,693 - - 100
Ocean Times Residential and 2011-2015
commercial
RN REREE —ZT-mE 32,891 - 19,308 - - 100
Times Peanut Il Residential and 2014
commercial
BB (M) EEREE “T-NFE-T-1F 60,238 - 36,218 - - 100
Times King City (Guangzhou) Residential and 2014-2015
commercial
BNREHE (RERER) I%6 e - - - - - 51
Guangzhou Tianhe Project Industrial® Pending
(Pige Factory Project)
BINREEE (EHAREER) I%k0 fFE - - - - - 42
Guangzhou Tiansi Project Industrial® Pending
(Qingchu Shiliu Gang Project)
BEMEFRARER UNGYSTEES —T-R% 17,480 634 1,836 - - 50
Guangzhou Wuyang Paint Apartment and 2015
Factory Project commercial
BREE (M) TEREE —ERE 45,593 - - - 48,777 100
Times Cloud Atlas (Guangzhou) Residential and 2016
commercial
ISHUERE (550 FEREE —E—tfF 93,756 - - 211,519 101,908 100
Time Bridges (Zengcheng) Residential and 2017
commercial
BEMRAEER EEREE It 70,648 - - 200,213 76,798 51
Luogang Kalyuan Road Project Residential and 2017
commercial
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[z an R/ ARER
Completed Under development/future
development
il Hitg% Hit Jiit=t
HH HRER BB/ B IAY HEEE BEEER [EEER BEERY  BEEE0 EHe
Actual/expected GFA Ownership
Project Project type completion dates Site area for sale@®  Other GFA® GFA®  Other GFA® interest®
(FHR) (FAx) (FAx) (FAK) (FAK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
BORRREER TEREE ZE-RFEZZ)N\F 71,310 - - 143,323 76,876 60
Nansha Times Long Island Project ~ Residential and 2016-2018
commercial
BMEHRAABER (BREE) ETRAE —I-N\F 29,959 - - 85,661 24,151 100
Guangzhou Huadu Jinghu Avenue ~ Residential and 2018
Project (Times Cloud Port) commercial
BNEBTREE (HHRiH) FEREE —I-N\E 45,537 - - 160,825 57,285 60
Guangzhou Panyu Shigiao Project Residential and 2018
(Time Park Laurel) commercial
EITEE (384) TEREE —F-N\E 64,374 - - 158,310 79,372 60
Zengjiang Project (Zengcheng) Residential and 2018
commercial
BT [EE3 —E-NE 18,279 - - 82,256 - 49
Huangpu Chemical Commercial 2019
TR B-2 4R = - \FEZTNE 61,145 - - 141,030 51,432 45
B2-2 land parcel, Sino-Singapore Residential 2018-2019
Knowledge City
R AR 113k = ZE-\FEZZ-NF 108,890 3,066 - 232,304 87,164 45
B2-1 land parcel, Sino-Singapore Residential 2018-2019
Knowledge City
B
Foshan
Il (EE) TEREE ZE-AFEITtF 125,782 - 24,263 158,558 55,625 100
Times King City (Shunde) Residential and 2016-2017
commercial
B (—Z1H) TEREE I 505,776 - 112,322 76,177 65,185 100
Times City (Phase I to VI) Residential and 2010-2017
commercial
BrHARER FEREE ZTE 12,860 - 8,644 - - 100
Foshan Stainless Steel Residential and 2016
Factory Project commercial
BREE (W) TEREE ZT-RFECTAF 58,149 - 33,186 - - 100
Times Cloud Atlas (Foshan) Residential and 2015-2016
commercial
B (1L TEREE —E-HF 34,308 - 355 - - 100
Times King City (Foshan) Phase IV Residential and 2015
commercial
BERER TEREE T+ F 20,464 - - 61,635 25,167 100
Foshan Denghu Project Residential and 2017
commercial
BREE (W) FEREE ZTE 17,148 - 1,923 - 9,007 100
Times Prime (Foshan) Residential and 2016
commercial
Rk CURIER ) TEREE & 64,607 - - 253,779 74,934 51
Times Riverbank (Michong Project) ~ Residential and 2017
commercial
BREEHF (L) TEREE ZE—tF 51,457 - - 183,041 48,055 60
(FEREIILIER) Residential and 2017
Times Xianghai Shore (Foshan) commercial

(North of Lujing Road East Project)
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BRI BRh/ ARER
Completed Under development/future
development
#HiiE Hipgs Hit fiEE
HR HRER BR/BHARIAN HEEE BEERR [EEER BEERY  BEERO B&e
Actual/expected GFA Ownership
Project Project type completion dates Site area for sale@®  Other GFA® GFA®  Other GFA® interest®
(FAx) (FAx) (FAK) (FAK) (FHHK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m) (%)
BREZ(E=REE) TEREE —I-N\F 35,383 - - 92,087 28,185 55
Times Fame (Haisan Road Project) ~ Residential and 2018
commercial
Bk EE () HIER2) TEREE “I-NE 111,658 - - 447,966 108,802 75
Times Riverbank Phase Il Residential and 2019
(Michong Project 2) commercial
=KBREER FEREE T \FEZTNE 105,553 - - 333,211 79917 100
Sanshui Baiyingda Project Residential and 2018-2019
commercial
BGER TEREE —ENE 40,794 - - 134,619 - 100
Lishui New Project Residential and 2019
commercial
5§
Zhuhai
HEREER FEREZ ZE-CHFET-MF 51,003 - 4,693 - - 100
Zhuhai Jingrun Project Residential and 2013-2014
commercial
BRB(KE) TEREE —F-AF 81,393 - 9,859 - - 100
Times Harbor (Zhuhai) Residential and 2015
commercial
R (08— TEREE “T-RF 52,950 - 5,354 - - 100
Phase | of Times King City (Zhuha) ~ Residential and 2015
commercial
ERER (RE) = = I REREE e SV Y S 198,204 - 62,935 107,641 24,797 100
Phase I, Illand IV of Times King City ~ Residential and 2016-2017
(Zhuhai) commercial
BERFRE) TEREE ZENFREITtF 119,169 - 20,472 200,906 32,098 100
The Shore (Zhuhai) Residential and 2016-2017
commercial
RIERIEEAFER TEREE —I-0\F 77,208 - - 193,016 54,913 49
(&EMZ=HIEE) Residential and 2018
Baoli Xiangbin Huayuan Project commercial
(Jinwan Airport City Project)
bNeEE] T%e HE 100,331 - - - - 100
Zhuhai Baisheng Industrial® Pending
RPNl FEREE T \FEIZNE 85,363 - - 217,951 49,318 63
West of Tin Ka Ping Residential and 2018-2019
Secondary School, Zhuhai commercial
WEEEMERACRSLENER) FEREE —E-0\F 53,963 - - 115,180 27,676 60
Zhuhai Qingwan Lakeside Project Residential and 2018
(Zhuhai Jinwan New Project) commercial
WERIEEE (BRIBROKE)SE) FEREE —I-0\F 17,791 - - 38,838 14,660 100
Zhuhai Honggjiao Project Phase V of  Residential and 2018
Times King City (Zhuhai) commercial
TR TEREE —E-NE 60,138 - - 260,224 72,929 %
Shizimen Project (Zhuhai) Residential and 2019
commercial
HEI RO ERR ST RIAR EEREE —T-hE 20,000 - - 40,000 - 100

West of Heyi Road (Middle), Baijiao  Residential and 2019
Township, Doumen District, Zhuhai ~ commercial
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[z an R/ ARER
Completed Under development/future
development
il Hitg% Hit Jiit=t
HH HRER BB/ B IAY HEEE BEEER [EEER BEERY  BEEE0 EHe
Actual/expected GFA Ownership
Project Project type completion dates Site area for sale@®  Other GFA® GFA®  Other GFA® interest®
(FHR) (FAx) (FAx) (FAK) (FAK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
Hil
Zhongshan
BB () TEREE E--FR-Z-FF 101,821 - 48172 - - 100
Times King City (Zhongshan) Residential and 2013-2015
commercial
BREE (L) TEREE S Y S 46,667 - 567 - - 100
Times Cloud Atlas (Zhongshan) Residential and 2015-2016
commercial
g YIERS TEREZ “T-NE 125,065 - - 355,392 143,237 69
Jin Sha Project (Zhongshan)® Residential and 2019
commercial
EE
Qingyuan
BREN(EER) TEREE “E-NMERZZ-NF 301,368 - 69,986 654,508 160,210 100
Times King City (Qingyuan) Residential and 2014-2019
commercial
BRIER (R —1 TEREE ZE-RE 70,650 - 44,418 - - 100
Phase | of Times Garden (Qingyuan)  Residential and 2016
commercial
BRI (5R) 8 TEREE —Z-NE 84,440 - - 236,431 - 100
Phase Il of Times Garden (Qingyuan) ~ Residential and 2019
commercial
BRAKER TERBZ i 551,087 - - 1,090,746 43,896 100
Fogang Shilian Project Residential and Pending
commercial
BREETHER FEREE fFE 477,020 - - 943,010 - 100
Fogang Huanghua Lake Project Residential and Pending
commercial
FERRHY TEREZ —E-NE 91,127 - - 322,225 - 100
Jiada Feilai Lake Residential and 2019
commercial
Changsha
BRER(RD) TEREZE ZE-CFREITC-E 495917 60 49,579 1,368,670 205,521 100
Times King City (Changsha) Residential and 2013-2021
commercial
R=
Dongguan
REREER FEREE —F-N\E 55,792 - - 160,966 24,988 52
Dongguan Hengli Project Residential and 2018
commercial
RERYER TEREE —T-0\F 79,190 - - 147,649 37,561 55
Dongguan Shipai Project Residential and 2018
commercial
RERILER TEREE —I-N\F 42,519 - - 108,499 20,522 100
Dongguan Chashan Project Residential and 2018
commercial
M
Huizhou
LEHEENR TEREE ZE-\FEIZCICE 284,414 - - 632,118 - 49
Desai Land Parcel of Gutang'ao Residential and 2018-2022
commercial
6,069,996 36,337 664,822 10,351,434 2,011,866
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Notes:

The table above includes properties for which (i) the Group has
obtained the relevant land use rights certificate(s), but have not
obtained the requisite construction permits or (ii) the Group has
entered into a land grant contract with the relevant government
authority, but have not obtained the land use rights certificate(s).
The figures for total and saleable GFA are based on figures provided
in the relevant governmental documents, such as the property
ownership certificates, the construction work planning permits, the
pre-sale permits, the construction land planning permits or the land
use rights certificates. The categories of information are based on our
internal records.

Certain completed projects have no GFA available for sale by the
Group as all saleable GFA have been sold, pre-sold or rented out.

“Other GFA” mainly comprises car parks and ancillary facilities.

“GFA for sale” and “GFA under development and GFA held for future
development” are derived from the Group’s internal records and
estimates.

“Ownership interest” is based on the Group’s effective ownership
interest in the respective project companies.

The Group is in the process of applying for the conversion of the land
use for Guangzhou Tianhe Project from industrial use to residential
and commercial use.

The Group is in the process of applying for the conversion of the land
use for Guangzhou Tiansi Project from industrial use to residential
and commercial use.

The Group is in the process of applying for the conversion of the land
use for Zhuhai Baisheng to residential and commercial use.

The Group is in the process of acquiring the property. As of 31
December 2016, the acquisition of the property has not been
completed.

Acquisitions of Land Parcels during the Year 2016
The Group continued to expand its land reserves through various
channels, including participations in government public auctions,
urban redevelopment projects, primary development, cooperation,
and through acquisition of project companies.

For 2016, the Group acquired 14 parcels of land in Guangzhou,
Foshan, Zhuhai, Zhongshan, Dongguan, Qingyuan and Huizhou,
the land acquisition costs amounted to a total of approximately
RMB18,452 million.
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HEBE#AE WEEE BEHEREER 48 + B A<

Number of Expected Total land

HE FrEHET Location (City) of Projects projects Site area total GFA costs

(FFHK) (FrK) (AREGHET)

(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million)

= Guangzhou 4 325,015 802,477 2,904

G Foshan 2 152,452 553,336 8,089

b7 NI Zhuhai 2 80,138 298,593 1,882

AL Zhongshan 1 125,065 498,628 813

£ Dongguan 3 177,501 416,215 3,661

EER Qingyuan 1 84,440 236,431 216

=N Huizhou 1 284,414 632,118 887

st Total 14 1,229,025 3,437,798 18,452
TiE L Market Review
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During the Reporting Period, the sales of commercial properties
surged to a new record high across the country, the area of
commercial properties sold in China reached 1.57 billion sg.m.,
representing a year-on-year increase of 22.5%, and the transaction
volume of commercial properties amounted to RMB11.76 trillion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 34.8%. In particular, the area
of commercial residential properties sold amounted to 1.37 billion
sg.m., accounting for 87.4% of the area of commercial properties
sold and representing a year-on-year increase of 22.4%; the sales
of commercial residential properties amounted to RMB9.9 trillion,
accounting for 84.2% of the sales of commercial properties and
representing a year-on-year increase of 36.1% (source: National
Bureau of Statistics). During the first half of the year, against a
generally lax backdrop of destocking, some cities saw a swift growth
in both the quantity and price of housing, causing the appearance of
over-heatedness. Based on its principle of “categorized regulation
and localized policies”, the government rolled out a raft of regulatory
policies, together with an emphasis on regulating the market order.
Such policies aim at bringing the real estate industry back to a
rational and more regulated state, so that the industry can achieve
long-term and sustainable development.
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Outlook

Looking into 2017, we expect that industrial policies will sustain the
central government’s focus on “control of bubble and prevention of
risks”, that monetary policies will remain moderately tightened, and
that market sentiments throughout the year will gradually return to
a rational state. The Group will remain active in sales and flexible in
responding to market changes.

The Group will continue to establish itself intensively in regions
where the Group has established its market presence and actively
participate in urban redevelopment, in order to greatly boost the
market shares over the regions. At the same time, we will actively
participate in construction of featured small towns so as to facilitate
the transformation and upgrade of national industry and share the
profits derived from the transformation and upgrade. In order to have
flexible response to market changes, the Group will procure sales
proactively, monitor market risk continuously and strengthen cash
flow management.

In addition, the Group will actively develop community services,
commercial and creative office zone business on the basis of
strengthening the principal business, in order to achieve a balanced
growth in scale and profit and to create value for our shareholders,
employees and owners and contributing to the development of
economy in China.

Financial Review

Revenue

The Group’s revenue is primarily generated from property
development, property leasing and sub-leasing and property
management services, which contributed about 96.4%, 1.8% and
1.8% respectively of the revenue of 2016. The Group’s revenue
increased by RMB2,568.3 million, or 18.8%, to RMB16,206.5
million for 2016 from RMB13,638.2 million for 2015. This increase
was primarily attributable to the increase in revenue from the sale of
properties.
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TREFNAEBRITRIZES D EE D HU AR The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue by operating
# segments as indicated:
—E-REFE —E-RFE
Year 2016 Year 2015
AREEET AREFET
RMB in million (%)  RMB in million (%)
YIS E A Sale of properties 15,620.1 96.4 13,225.4 97.0
HEBA Rental income 298.2 1.8 244.6 1.8
BEEEIRA Management fee income 288.2 1.8 168.2 1.2
16,206.5 100.0 13,638.2 100.0
MERRE Property development

AEEREVEHENRABZT—RHFHNA
R¥182254BELIBIMNE T — NFHARE
15,620.1E & T WINARK2304.7HE T @ 1

1EA181% « ZIEMEBEARNERMEEER
EHZZE—AFH1,492459F F K  #Ex2 —F

—NEF#91,936,653F K c RZZE—RNFALNE
BAEREAWANIBL T EBEERING  BFR
EE(BMN) RIS RERSE -

YIRS MEHE

AEEHRSBMABR T —AFHARKE24468
F%ﬁimif; /\EWAEMQ% 2HET " 1
MARME3.6EEIT + EIEA21.9%  FZIEME
SEANFAEERHBERLEF -

MESERE
AEBRAMEEEREHOBUAR -_Z—HFH
ARBAGS2EE LENE T —NFHARE

288.2E &L EIMARK12008 8T © HBIER
713% c ZEMEBEHRNAEEER 2EA R
ENEEEELT -

SHEMA
REBHEERETH-_E—HAFHNARK10,091.7
AELTENE_ZE—"FHNARK11,95628E
TC - EIMARK1,8645HE T 0 EIRA18.5% °
ZRENEEFBEARERNYEBRERMBERESF
BRI - BUEIEEEN ARSI -

36  E{tmEEEERAT 2016 FERE

The Group’s revenue from sales of properties increased by
RMB2,394.7 million, or 18.1%, to RMB15,620.1 million for 2016
from RMB13,225.4 million for 2015. The increase was primarily due
to the increase in total GFA delivered from approximately 1,492,459
sg.m. for 2015 to approximately 1,936,653 sg.m. for 2016. The
projects that contributed substantially to the Group’s revenue for
2016 mainly include Times Bund, Times Cloud Atlas (Guangzhou)
and Times King City (Zhuhai), etc.

Property leasing and sub-leasing

The Group’s gross rental income increased by RMB53.6 million, or
21.9%, to RMB298.2 million for 2016 from RMB244.6 million for
2015. The increase was primarily due to the increase in the rental
income and occupancy rate for the year.

Property management services

The Group’s revenue from property management services increased
by RMB120.0 million, or 71.3%, to RMB288.2 million for 2016 from
RMB168.2 million for 2015. The increase was primarily attributable
to the increase in the number of project phases and area that the
Group managed.

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales increased by RMB1,864.5 million, or
18.5%, to RMB11,956.2 million for 2016 from RMB10,091.7 million
for 2015. The increase was primarily attributable to increase in the
total GFA of properties delivered as compared with last year, which
led to the increase in the cost of property sales.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by RMB703.8 million, or 19.8%,
to RMB4,250.2 million for 2016 from RMB3,546.4 million for 2015.
For 2016, the Group’s gross profit margin increased to 26.2% from
26.0% for 2015. The increase was primarily due to the increase in
recognised income from products with higher gross profit margin as
compared with the corresponding period in 2015.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income and gains increased to RMB362.9 million
for 2016 from RMB130.4 million for 2015 which is primarily due to
the increase in fair value gains on investment properties and bank
interest income.

Selling and marketing costs

The Group’s selling and marketing costs increased by RMB169.5
million, or 34.7%, from RMB488.0 million as of 31 December 2015
to RMB657.5 million as of 31 December 2016. The increase was
mainly due to increase in scale of sales.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by RMB194.1
million, or 56.6%, to RMB537.1 million for 2016 from RMB343.0
million for 2015, which was primarily due to the increase in the
number of senior talents, middle and senior level personnel hired by
the Company.

Other expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased by RMB35.1 million, or
71.5%, to RMB84.2 million for 2016 from RMB49.1 million for 2015.
The increase was primarily due to an increase in donation.

Finance costs
The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB64.8 million, or 37.0%,
to RMB239.9 million for 2016 from RMB175.1 million for 2015.
The increase was primarily due to an increase in the facilities in
relation to the Group’s land acquisitions and expansion of property
developments.
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Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expenses increased by RMB108.0 million,
or 10.1%, to RMB1,178.2 million for 2016 from RMB1,070.2 million
for 2015. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in
the Group’s taxable profit and income in 2016.

Profit for the year

The Company’s profit for the year increased by RMB431.3 million,
or 27.8%, to RMB1,982.4 million as of 31 December 2016 from
RMB1,551.1 million as of 31 December 2015. Basic earnings per
share and diluted earnings per share for 2016 were RMB113 cents
(2015: RMB82 cents) and RMB107 cents (2015: RMB74 cents)
respectively.

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company increased by
RMB534.4 million, or 37.6%, to RMB1,955.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 from RMB1,420.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resource

Cash position

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying balance of the Group’s cash
and bank deposits was approximately RMB11,880.7 million (31
December 2015: RMB8,749.2 million), representing an increase
of 35.8% when compared with that of 31 December 2015. Under
relevant PRC laws and regulations, some of the Group’s project
companies are required to place a certain amount of pre-sale
proceeds in designated bank accounts as guarantee deposits for
construction of the relevant properties. These guarantee deposits
may only be used for payments to construction contractors in the
project development process and for other construction-related
payments, such as purchase of materials. The remaining guarantee
deposits are released when certificates of completion for the relevant
properties have been obtained. In addition, a portion of the Group’s
bank deposits represented loan proceeds in the monitoring accounts
designated by the banks, in which case the use of the restricted
bank deposits, subject to the banks’ approval, is restricted to the
purposes as set out in the relevant loan agreements. The remaining
restricted deposits were primarily time deposits. As at 31 December
2016, the Group’s restricted bank deposits was RMB2,958.0 million
(31 December 2015: RMB3,907.9 million).
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Borrowings and pledged assets

The Group had aggregate interest-bearing borrowings (excluding
convertible bonds) of approximately RMB20,488.5 million as at 31
December 2016. Borrowings that are due within one year increased
from RMB359.1 million as at 31 December 2015 to RMB1,956.1
million as at 31 December 2016, and approximately RMB18,259.4
million of borrowings are due within two to five years and
approximately RMB273.0 million of borrowings are due in over five
years. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s outstanding loans were
secured by certain of its property, plant and equipment, completed
properties held for sale and properties under development,
investment properties and prepaid land lease payments with carrying
values of approximately RMB476.7 million, RMB3,950.9 million,
RMB1,598.1 million and RMB17.9 million, respectively.

Details of the equity or debt securities issued by the Company and/
or its subsidiaries are set out below:

(@ RMB 7.88% Non-Public Domestic Corporate

Bonds due 2019

On 18 January 2016, EMHEREEREGR QT
(Guangzhou Times Property Group Co., Ltd.*) (“Guangzhou
Times”) issued 7.88% non-public domestic corporate bonds
due 2019 in a principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000 at
100% of the principal amount of such bonds, with the option
to redeem by Guangzhou Times at the end of the second
year. RMB7.88% non-public domestic corporate bonds due
2019 are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and bear
interest from and including 18 January 2016 at the rate of
7.88% per annum, payable annually in arrears.

(b) RMB 7.85% Non-Public Domestic Corporate

Bonds due 2018

On 26 October 2015, Guangzhou Times issued 7.85% non-
public domestic corporate bonds due 2018 in a principal
amount of RMB3,000,000,000 at 100% of the principal
amount of such bonds. RMB7.85% non-public domestic
corporate bonds due 2018 are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and bear interest from and including 26 October
2015 at the rate of 7.85% per annum, payable annually in
arrears.
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RMB 6.75% Public Domestic Corporate Bonds
due 2020

On 15 July 2015, Guangzhou Times issued 6.75% public
domestic corporate bonds due 2020 in a principal amount
of RMB2,000,000,000 at 100% of the principal amount of
such bonds. Guangzhou Times shall be entitled to increase
the coupon rate after the end of the third year and the
investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds. 6.75%
public domestic corporate bonds due 2020 are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange and bear interest from and
including 15 July 2015 at the rate of 6.75% per annum,
payable annually in arrears.

USD 11.45% Senior Notes due 2020

On 5 March 2015, the Company issued 11.45% senior
notes due 2020 (the “USD 11.45% Senior Notes due 2020”)
in a principal amount of USD280,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB1,722,784,000) at 99.35% of the principal
amount of such notes. USD 11.45% Senior Notes due 2020
are listed on the Stock Exchange bear interest from and
including 5 March 2015 at the rate of 11.45% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears.

RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017

On 16 July 2014, the Company issued 10.375% senior notes
due 2017 (the “Senior Notes July 2014”) in a principal amount
of RMB900,000,000 at 100% of the principal amount of such
notes. On 14 October 2014, the Company issued additional
10.375% senior notes due 2017 in a principal amount of
RMB600,000,000 at 100.125% of the principal amount of
such notes (the “Senior Notes October 2014”). Senior Notes
July 2014 and Senior Notes October 2014 were consolidated
and formed a single series which are referred to as the
“RMB10.375% Senior Notes due 2017”. The RMB10.375%
Senior Notes due 2017 are listed on the Stock Exchange and
bear interest from and including 16 July 2014 at the rate of
10.375% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
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Convertible Bonds

On 7 July 2014, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd.,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
issue convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of HKD388,000,000 due 2019 (approximately equivalent to
RMB308,369,000) (the “Bonds”) at the price of 100% of their
principal amount. The Bonds bear interest at the rate of 8%
per annum and payable quarterly in arrears. Subject to the
terms of the Bonds, the bondholders have the right to convert
their Bonds into shares (the “New Shares”) to be allotted and
issued by the Company upon conversion of the Bonds at any
time during the conversion period. The Bonds are jointly and
severally guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Group. The
Company intended to use the net proceeds for refinancing,
redemption or other repayment of existing financial
indebtedness. The initial conversion price is HKD3.50,
representing a premium of approximately 12.9% of the
closing price of HKD3.10 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 7 July 2014. Based on the initial conversion
price of HKD3.50 and assuming full conversion of the Bonds
at the initial conversion price, the Bonds will be convertible
into 110,857,142 New Shares, with the aggregate nominal
value of HKD11,085,714.2, representing approximately 6.05%
of the ordinary share capital of the Company, as enlarged
by the issue of New Shares. On 25 July 2014, the Company
issued the Bonds when all of the conditions precedent under
the subscription agreement were satisfied.

USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019

On 21 March 2014, the Company issued 12.625% senior
notes due 2019 in a principal amount of USD225,000,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB1,383,188,000) at
99.278% of the principal amount of such notes (the “Senior
Notes March 2014”). On 2 May 2014, the Company issued
additional 12.625% senior notes due 2019 in a principal
amount of USD80,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB492,640,000) at 100.125% of the principal amount
of such notes (the “Senior Notes May 2014”). The Senior
Notes March 2014 and the Senior Notes May 2014 were
consolidated to form a single series which are referred to
as the “USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019”. The USD
12.625% Senior Notes due 2019 are listed on the Stock
Exchange and bear interest from and including 21 March
2014 at the rate of 12.625% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears.
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Other Performance Indicators

Net current assets and current ratio

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately RMB25,576.1 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB20,770.5 million). As at 31 December 2016, the
Group’s current ratio, calculated as current assets divided by current
liabilities, was approximately 1.8 times as compared with 2.0 times as
at 31 December 2015.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s net debts (total interest
bearing bank loans and other borrowings, including the debt
component of the convertible bonds, net of cash and bank balances)
over net assets was 54.7% (31 December 2015: 77.3%).

Financial Guarantee

As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding guarantee mortgage
loans that domestic banks provided to purchasers of the Group’s
properties amounted to approximately RMB18,098.3 million (31
December 2015: approximately RMB11,819.0 million). These
guarantees are released upon the earlier of (i) the relevant certificates
of registration of mortgage or the certificates of other interests with
respect to the relevant properties being delivered to the mortgagor
banks; and (ii) the settlement of mortgage loans between the
mortgagor banks and the purchasers of the Group’s projects. If
a purchaser defaults on a mortgage loan before the guarantees
are released, the Group may have to repurchase the underlying
property by paying off mortgage. If the Group fails to do so, the
mortgagor bank may auction the underlying property and recover
any additional amount outstanding from the Group as the guarantor
of the mortgage loans. In line with industry practices, the Group do
not conduct independent credit reviews of our customers but rely on
the credit reviews conducted by the mortgagor banks.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following section lists out the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other
risks and uncertainties further to the principal risk areas outlined
below. Besides, this report does not constitute a recommendation
or an advice for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company
and investors are advised to make their own judgment or consult
their own investment advisors before making any investment in the
securities of the Company.
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Risks pertaining to the property market in the PRC and, in
particular, in Guangdong and Hunan Provinces

All of the Group’s property portfolio is located in the PRC and all of
the Group’s revenue is derived in the PRC. As at 31 December 2016,
we had a total of 54 residential property projects at various stages
of development, 53 of which are located in Guangdong Province.
As such, the Group is therefore subject to the risks associated with
China’s property market. The Group’s operations in the PRC may
also be exposed to the risks of policy change, interest rate change,
demand-supply imbalance and the overall economic conditions,
which may pose an adverse impact on the Group’s business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Operational risks

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to property development and property related businesses.
Default on the part of its buyers, tenants, sub-tenants and strategic
business partners, and inadequacies or failures of internal processes,
people and systems or other external factors may have various
levels of negative impact on the results of the Group’s operations.
Additionally, accidents may happen despite systems and policies set
up for their prevention, which may lead to the Group’s financial loss,
litigation, or damage in reputation.

Property development is capital intensive. The Group finances its
land acquisitions and property developments through a combination
of internally generated funds and external financing. Its ability to
obtain external financing in the future is subject to a variety of
uncertainties, including the conditions of the financial markets
and economic conditions in the PRC. If the Group fails to secure
adequate financing or renew its existing loans prior to their expiry as
a result of these governmental actions and policy initiatives, there
may be a material adverse effect on the business operations and
financial condition of the Group.

Risks pertaining to the property leasing and sub-leasing

The rental rates and the occupancy rates will depend on various
factors, including but not limited to, prevailing supply and demand
conditions, economic conditions as well as the quality of the
properties. There is no assurance that the Group is able to look for
new tenants and/or sub-tenants within a short period of time or
procure new leases or renew existing leases and/or sub-leases at
the prevailing market rates.
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Foreign currency risks

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and conducts its operations
mainly in Renminbi. The Group will closely monitor the fluctuations
of the Renminbi exchange rate and give prudent consideration
as to entering into any currency swap arrangement as and when
appropriate for hedging corresponding risks. As at 31 December
2016, the Group has not engaged in hedging activities for managing
foreign exchange rate risk.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions

and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint

Ventures, and Future Plans for Material Investments

or Capital Assets

(a) On 15 April 2016, Guangzhou Times Zichen Investment Co.,
Ltd.,” a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
49% equity interests in Guangzhou Huangpu Chemical
Co., Ltd.” (“Guangzhou Huangpu”) at a consideration of
approximately RMB381.3 million. Guangzhou Huangpu holds
the entire interests in a parcel of land located in Huangpu
East Road, Huangpu District in Guangzhou and the land and
port facilities located in Huangpu District in Guangzhou. The
construction of the project with the site area of 18,279 sqg.m.
for commercial use (or a gross floor area of 82,256 sg.m.
measured based on plot ratio) have been commenced as at
the date of this report. The Directors are reasonably optimistic
about the prospects of such investment in view of the
prospects of the property market in the first-tier cities in the
Mainland China as set forth in the section headed “Business
Review — Outlook” in this report.
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(b) On 24 June 2016, Guangzhou Times Shichuang Real Estate
Development Company Limited* (“Guangzhou Shichuang”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an equity transfer agreement with Duxton Investment And
Development Pte. Ltd., an independent third party to the
Group, to acquire a 75% equity interest of Guangzhou
Xingsheng Real Estate Development Company Limited*
(“Guangzhou Xingsheng”) with a cash consideration of
RMB383,000,000. The relevant equity transfer registration
arrangement was completed in July 2016, and Guangzhou
Xingsheng became a joint venture of the Group. For
more details of this acquisition, please refer to the related
announcement of the Company dated 24 June 2016.

() On 30 June 2016, Guangzhou Shichuang entered into
an equity transfer agreement with Optima Investment
& Development Pte. Ltd., an independent third party to
the Group, to acquire a 75% equity interest of Tianyun
(Guangzhou) Real Estate Development Company Limited*
(“Tianyun (Guangzhou)”) (or Horizon (Guangzhou) Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Horizon (Guangzhou)”)) with a
cash consideration of RMB880,000,000. The relevant equity
transfer registration arrangement was completed in July
2016, and Tianyun (Guangzhou) became a joint venture of the
Group. For more details of this acquisition, please refer to the
related announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2016.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held, no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year, nor was
there any plan authorised by the Board for other material investments
or additions of capital assets at the date of this report.
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Events after the Reporting Period
The Group has the following material subsequent events:

(@)

On 16 January 2017, Foshan Times Hongtai Investment Co.,
Ltd* (“Foshan Hongtai”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, acquired a parcel of land located at Nanhai district,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, through public
bidding. The consideration of the land is RMB3,137,000,000,
of which Foshan Hongtai paid RMB159,160,000 as of the
date of this report.

On 23 January 2017, the Company issued 6.250% senior
notes due 2020 in a principal amount of USD375,000,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB2,571,450,000) at 100% of
the principal amount of such notes (the “USD 6.250% Senior
Notes due 2020”). The USD 6.250% Senior Notes due 2020
are listed on the Stock Exchange and bear interest from and
including 23 January 2017 at the rate of 6.250% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears. The Company has received
net proceeds of RMB2,526,976,000 as of the date of this
report. For further details on the USD 6.250% Senior Notes
due 2020, please refer to the related announcement of the
Company dated 17 January 2017.

On 17 February 2017, the Company announced that it will
redeem the outstanding USD 12.625% Senior Notes due
2019 in full on 21 March 2017 (the “Redemption Date”)
at a redemption price equal to 106.313% of the principal
amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to
(but not including) the Redemption Date. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 17 February 2017.

On 23 February 2017, Foshan Hongtai, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired a parcel of land located
at Sanshui district, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC, through public bidding. The consideration of the land
is RMB1,779,900,000, of which Foshan Hongtai has paid
RMB148,400,000 as of the date of this report.
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 6,016 employees (31
December 2015: 4,219 employees). The remunerations of the
employees are commensurate with their performance, skills,
knowledge, experience and the market trend. Employee benefits
provided by the Group include provident fund schemes, medical
insurance scheme, unemployment insurance scheme and housing
provident fund. The Group reviews the remuneration policies and
packages on a regular basis and will make necessary adjustments
that accommmodate the pay levels in the industry. In addition to basic
salaries, the employees may be offered with discretionary bonuses
and cash awards based on individual performances. The Group
also provides training programs for the employees with a view to
constantly upgrading their skills and knowledge. Further, the Group
adopted the share option scheme on 19 November 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) as incentives or rewards for the employees’
contributions to the Group. For further details of the Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
in this report. Employee benefit expenses of the Group (excluding
Directors’ remuneration) amounted to approximately RMB491.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB349.7
million).

Emolument Policy

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

Environmental Protection

The Group has endeavored to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopted effective
environmental measures to ensure that the conducting of the
Group’s business meets the applicable construction standards and
ethics in respect of environmental protection.

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability from office
throughout the property portfolio. As a responsible developer, the
Group strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts by carefully
managing its energy consumption, water usage, property design
and waste production. In addition, we engaged construction
contractors with sound environmental protection and safety track
records and have closely monitored the project at every stage to
ensure the construction process is in compliance with environmental
protection and safety laws and regulations, and would require
construction contractors to immediately resolve any defect or non-
compliance, where necessary. For further details, please refer to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group. The audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”) is delegated by the Board to
monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and such policies are regularly
reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Charitable Donations
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group made
charitable and other donations in a total amount of RMB41.7 million.

Key Relationships with the Group’s Employees,
Customers and Suppliers

Workplace quality

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not
discriminate on the basis of personal characteristics. With an aim to
enhancing the quality of the Board’s performance by diversity, the
board diversity policy was adopted. Details of such board diversity
policy are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report — Board Diversity Policy”. Further, the Group has employee
handbooks outlining terms and conditions of employment,
expectations for employees’ conduct and behaviour, employees’
rights and benefits. The Group establishes and implements policies
that promote a harmony and respectful workplace.

The Group believes that the Directors, senior management and
employees are instrumental to the success of the Group and that
their industry knowledge and understanding of the market will enable
the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market. Therefore,
the Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 19
November 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to Eligible Participants (as defined below) who contributed to the
success of the Group’s operations.
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The Group provides on the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance its employees’ career progression. Through
different trainings, staff’s professional knowledge in corporate
operations, occupational and management skills are enhanced.
The Group also organised charitable and staff-friendly activities for
employees, such as annual dinner, to promote staff relationship.

The Group provides a safe, effective and congenial working
environment. Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are
implemented to ensure the working environment is healthy and
safe. The Group provided health and safety communications for
employees to present the relevant information and raise awareness
of occupational health and safety issues.

The Group values the health and well-being of its staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, its employees are entitled
to medical insurance benefits.

Relationships with the Group’s other stakeholders

The Group maintains good relationships with existing and potential
customers as understanding of the market trends would enable
the Group to monitor and review the credit quality of the customers
and timely adjust its operating strategies, which are crucial to the
development and success of the Group. The Group places effort to
build up and maintain good relationships with various commercial
banks and financial institutions as the businesses of the Group are
capital intensive nature and require on-going funding to maintain
continuous growth.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no material
and significant dispute between the Group and its financial
institutions and/or customers.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 128 of
this annual report.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB31.51 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: RMB15.63 cents) to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”). The final dividend, if approved, will be payable
on or around 3 July 2017 and is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on 26 May
2017 (the “AGM”).

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”). The final dividend payable in HKD will
be converted from RMB at the middle exchange rate of HKD against
RMB announced by the People’s Bank of China on 26 May 2017.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last
five financial years are set out on pages 287 to 288 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM
LISTING

The net proceeds from the listing of the Company (after deducting
underwriting fees and related expenses) amounted to approximately
HKD1,477.4 million, which shall be applied in compliance with the
intended use of proceeds set out in the section headed “Future
plans and use of proceeds” of the prospectus of the Company dated
29 November 2013 (the “Prospectus”), of which, approximately
33.3% of the net proceeds were utilised for settling part of the
outstanding installments under the Restructuring Deed (as defined in
the Prospectus) and approximately 55.1% of the net proceeds were
utilised for financing new and existing projects, including the land
acquisition and construction costs of potential development projects.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 5.1% of the total sales of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 and sales from the largest customer accounted
for 2.2%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 41.9% of the total purchase for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and purchase from the largest supplier
accounted for 17.4%.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the number of the issued Shares) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note
13 to financial statements in this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 15 to
financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no changes in the number of the issued Shares during
the year ended 31 December 2016. Details of the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 33 to financial statements in this annual
report.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds of the Company are set forth in the
section headed “Business Review — Liquidity, Financial and Capital —
Borrowings and pledged assets” and note 32 to financial statements
in this annual report.

SENIOR NOTES

Details of the senior notes of the Company are set forth in the
section headed “Business Review — Liquidity, Financial and Capital
— Borrowings and pledged assets” and note 31(f) to financial
statements in this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme (as defined below) and the
New Shares to be issued upon the exercise of the conversion rights
attaching to the Bonds as disclosed in the section headed “Business
Review - Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Borrowings
and pledged assets” in this report, no equity-linked agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing Shares, or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares, were entered into by the Company during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out on page 132 in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of this annual report and in note 47 to
financial statements in this annual report.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 51



EEEWME

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

CIRZ 01§
RZE—RFETZHA=T—H ' ARAFHNA S
HEDRBATVENBGNGE - @BAOAAR
OIS T(R-_E—RAFE+-_A=+—8:
ARE1A7T15HETT)

B|ITEREHMER

RZZE—RE+-_A=+—0 AR RAEE
HIRITE R R H M RIS H R AN FE R KR
FHIEEST ©

EF
RBE=T—AE+-A=+—BIEFERRER
EAFHRAN  EEOT -

BITES :

S EIE A (T EHRTTIBAREL)
REEL L

AR LE

FRELE

SIS

FEERE

BYFPITES
YEESEE
Blit
BESEE

RIBARBNABERZAA(TEESZAR]) -
BR=02z BF(HWEERBAFFR=MEHK
AREEOM NP R=0—2 &R ) HwESE
VYHEEREBABFBFAGBEEENETZ
T MBEFARIB=FHESE R -

REBEHERAR  ENHAEFSZTAAME
Bk KERMBRENESTHREERE
RERARA TEBRAE R

RIFABERMAIFE108(F - SEHELELE - KE
T REREEASREERRAFKERER
£ ANGERKBEEEEEERES -

52  EMUBEZRERAT 2016 FEHRSE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, amounted to approximately RMB902.1 million (as
at 31 December 2015: RMB1,171.5 million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 31 to financial
statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Guan Jianhui

Mr. Bai Xihong

Mr. Li Qiang

Mr. Shum Siu Hung (formerly known as Cen Zhaoxiong)

Mr. Niu Jimin

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Jin Qingjun

Ms. Sun Hui

Mr. Wong Wai Man

In accordance with articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will
be eligible for re-election and re-appointment at every annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition will hold office until the next following general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment.

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Shum Chiu Hung, Ms. Sun Hui and Mr. Wong Wai Man will retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as the
Directors at the forthcoming AGM.



55T

HRE

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

HAARAEERRBFAS LERE
FHIB VI A R AR B o

TE=

EFERESRERE

AEFBEENSREEEBNERF BN AFER
$£19FE25H

BIFRITESAE IR

RIEBRAESF EMARRA(T EHARA) E313
fi& Kﬁi#ﬂﬂi%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ@?ﬁuﬁgm
B - BB ETRAEIASMG  EFERARE
BB IFMITESTHRBIAL -

EFRHEER

BEHTEEFHEEARTRZTE—RF+—A
+NBEIZRBER EBE T —RF+_-A

T REFAM=F XA RRERBARFRNA
BRI T AR AL o

BYFATEEHRELLIREREALEER =T

—R"F+—A+TN\BEITZAR #HEZZ
—A~F+ZA+—RBHAH=F - B IENTT
BEEYBEELEACDR -_Z—RETA-TN\BE
AEEN FHE—E-RE+A -+ N\ BiEE
M REA=F o

BMEBEEEITYN—FATAAEERIETMEA
SNBECEERERINORBER -

Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company will be despatched to the
Shareholders in due course.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 19 to 25 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company received confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Board considered all
of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 18 November 2016 for a term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2016 and may be terminated
pursuant to the respective terms of the service contracts.

Ms. Sun Hui and Mr. Wong Wai Man, the independent non-executive
Directors, have signed a letter of appointment on 18 November 2016
for a term of three years commencing from 11 December 2016. Mr.
Jin Qingjun, an independent non-executive Director, has signed a
letter of appointment on 28 October 2015 for an initial term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2015.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not

determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or
at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Prior to the Listing, the Company conditionally adopted the Share
Option Scheme on 19 November 2013 which became effective and
unconditional upon the Listing. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to the Eligible
Participants (as defined below) as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. Details of the Share Option Scheme are
set out below:

(@) Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and
is established to enable the Company to grant options to
the Eligible Participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution they had or may have made to the Group. The
Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with
the view to achieving the following objectives: () motivate the
Eligible Participants to optimise their performance efficiency
for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and retain or
otherwise maintain on-going business relationship with
the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.
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Eligible Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance
with paragraph (e) below to: (i) any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries; (i) any directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
(iii) any advisers, suppliers, customers, distributors and
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and (iv) any
such other persons who in the sole opinion of the Board, will
contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Eligible Participants”).

Maximum number of Shares available for issue
The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under
any other share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following the completion of the Global Offering
(“the Hong Kong Public Offering and International Offering”)
(but taking no account of any Shares which may be allotted
and issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment
Option), being 172,296,000 Shares, representing 10% of
the issued Shares as at the date of this report, excluding for
this purpose Shares which would have been issued on the
exercise in full of options in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes
of the Company, but not canceled, lapsed or exercised).
Subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the
approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time, the Board may: (i) renew this limit at any time to
10% of the Shares in issue as of the date of the approval by
the Shareholders in general meeting; and/or (i) grant options
beyond the 10% limit to Eligible Participants specifically
identified by the Board.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options shall be granted under any schemes of the Company
(including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in
the 30% limit being exceeded. The maximum number of
Shares in respect of which options may be granted shall be
adjusted, in such manner as the auditor of the Company or
an approved independent financial adviser shall certify to be
appropriate, fair and reasonable in the event of any alteration
in the capital structure of the Company whether by way of
consolidation, capitalisation issue, rights issue, sub-division or
reduction of the share capital of the Company but in no event
shall exceed the limit prescribed in this paragraph.

Maximum number of options to each Eligible
Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as
of the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess
of this 1% limit shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular
by the Company which shall comply with Rules 17.03(4) and
17.06 of the Listing Rules containing the identity of the Eligible
Participant, the numbers and terms of the options to be
granted (and options previously granted to such participant)
the information as required under Rules 17.02(2)(d) and the
disclaimer required under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and
(i) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/
or other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time with such Eligible Participant and his/her
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from
voting. The numbers and terms (including the exercise price)
of options to be granted to such participant must be fixed
before the Shareholders’ approval and the date of the Board
meeting at which the Board proposes to grant the options to
such Eligible Participant shall be taken as the date of grant
for the purpose of calculating the subscription price of the
Shares. The Board shall forward to such Eligible Participant
an offer document in such form as the Board may from time
to time determine.
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An option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant not later
than 30 days after the date of the offer for the grant of the
option. Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay
HKD1.00 (or an equivalent amount in RMB) to the Company
by way of consideration for the grant.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will be at less the higher of: (i) the official
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a
day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business
of dealing in securities; (i) the average of the official closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

Granting options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the options). If the Board proposes to grant options to a
substantial Shareholder or any independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) which will result in the number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, canceled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant: (i) representing in aggregate
over 0.1% or such other percentage as may be from time to
time provided under the Listing Rules of the Shares in issue;
and (i) having an aggregate value in excess of HKD5 million or
such other sum as may be from time to time provided under
the Listing Rules, based on the official closing price of the
Shares at the date of each grant, such further grant of options
will be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and
the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting by way
of a poll at which all connected persons of the Company shall
abstain from voting in favor of the resolution concerning the
grant of such options at the general meeting, and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the
grant of such options shall be taken as a poll.
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Time of exercise of Option and duration of the
Share Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon
which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and
prior to the expiry of ten years from that date. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option
may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than ten years after
the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject
to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years from the date of its
adoption.

Termination of the Share Option Scheme

The Company may by resolution in general meeting or the
Board at any time terminate the Share Option Scheme
and in such event no further option shall be offered but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force
to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
option granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be required
in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme. Options granted prior to such termination but not
yet exercised at the time of termination shall continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option
Scheme becomes unconditional and has a remaining term
of approximately 6 years and 9 months as at the date of this
annual report.

Details of any options granted

As at the date of this report, no share options of the
Company has been granted under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption.
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FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

EERAMNGZRHMALTOFMFBRNAFR Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
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individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to financial statements in this
annual report.

RiELHHRASE13.51B(1){F#E CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN

HHEFEHEH

RESPECT OF DIRECTORS PURSUANT
TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

BIE FMHRAE1351BNIE  RAEQAT ZZE—X Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
FHhHHELCNEESERNEEHHET - information of the Directors subsequent to the date of the 2016

interim report of the Company are set out below:

EEnA BBFE
Name of Director(s) Details of the changes
=it o BHEARFFIRBHZE EHE_Z—A"FT_AT—BRAB=F ZHFEHH

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung

eyt

Mr. Guan Jianhui

SN
Mr. Bai Xihong

ARM2,704,0007T R EBIEAL - WARBABERMANKRFEFAE LRESRN
st

entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2016 at remuneration of RMB2,704,000 per annum and
discretionary bonus, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings pursuant to the Articles of Association

BEARBFILRE W= EHE - R"FT A+ —BRRH=F  ZBFEHH
AR#1,816,750T REEIEAL - W/ARBAKRERANNRRBFRG FRFESERR
[T

entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2016 at remuneration of RMB1,816,750 per annum and
discretionary bonus, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings pursuant to the Articles of Association

BEARTGVRE RS THE - R"E+_AT+—ARAH=F - = BFEHMN
AR¥1,816,7507T M EBEIEAL - WARBABERMAUNKRRBFRG FRFE SRR
[T

entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2016 at remuneration of RMB1,816,750 per annum and
discretionary bonus, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings pursuant to the Articles of Association
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Name of Director(s)

BEFE

Details of the changes

Fogs
Mr. Li Qiang

SIS -
Mr. Shum Siu Hung

HREEE
Mr. Niu Jimin

BRARBR L RGHE  EHE_E—R"FT_A+—BRRB=F = HFEHH
AR#1,400,7507T REBIEAL - WARBABERMARAUNRFEFAE LHESERN
BT

entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2016 at remuneration of RMB1,400,750 per annum and
discretionary bonus, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings pursuant to the Articles of Association

EERARRFILRG W SR T —RFT A+ —BRRHB=F  ZHFEHH
AR #1,400,750 T R BBIEAL - WRBRBEBEIZAMNNRRBEFAG LHFEERR
[T

entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2016 at remuneration of RMB1,400,750 per annum and
discretionary bonus, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings pursuant to the Articles of Association

HE &3S B Cen Zhaoxiong2 AShum Siu Hung » B —E—RE+_-_A -+ HE
AR

his English name was changed from Cen Zhaoxiong to Shum Siu Hung with effect from
20 December 2016

BERARBEI L RGHE  EHE_E—RFT_AT+—BRAB=F ZHFEHH
AR#1,007,5007T R EBIEAL - WARBABERMAAUNKRFEFAE LHESERN
B EE

entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2016 at remuneration of RMB1,007,500 per annum and
discretionary bonus, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings pursuant to the Articles of Association
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Name of Director(s) Details of the changes

WEELE e BITZ—tF—-HA—Bi FEHHH300,000%THEE350,000/E 7T

Mr. Jin Qingjun annual remuneration was increased from HK$300,000 to HK$350,000 with effect from 1
January 2017

e BIZE-XRE-AZ+HE BEERFEEZERERAR(EEIZMETHNAR - K

RS - 3377)EVE L IEHITES
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Sino-Ocean Group Holding
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3377) with effect from 22
March 2016

BRExL o BHEAQRFEFIVEEEH FHE_Z-—REF+_AT+—BRERAH=F ZBEFEZHH

Ms. Sun Hui 350,000/ 7T * WABRBABERAUNRRBFAE LRFEHRIEREE
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2016 at annual remuneration of HK$350,000, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings pursuant to the Articles
of Association

e RIZE—RFHATLRERAIAREIMEVERHENEE

recongised as a member of the Association of Registered Independent Directors, United
Kingdom on 17 October 2016

|mIENSEE e BHARAFTVERE #HE_Z—R"E+_A+—BRRI=F  ZHEFEHH

Mr. Wong Wai Man

350,000/ 7T * W RBRBEABERMANRTBFAEG HinfFEERMEESE

entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2016 at annual remuneration of HK$350,000, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings pursuant to the Articles

of Association
B EXXCEEEN WEARE ETARAE Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the Directors’
13.51B)IEF AR EMHMEFE LS o information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of

the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short position of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which would be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which would be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”),
were as follows:

() Interest in the Company

EEnA EmME HEHEO RESHNBEDL
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest securities shareholding
el MREZEHEE N ERE 1,195,072,000 (L) 69.36%
Shum Chiu Hung®@ Interest in a controlled corporation®
BEEe iR 3,276,000 (L) 0.19%
Guan Jianhui® Interest of spouse
BEmEAA 43,074,000 (L) 2.50%
Beneficial owner
B 53t fofBEss 2,017,000 (1) 0.12%
Bai Xihong® Interest of spouse
BEEEBA 43,074,000 (L) 2.50%
Beneficial owner
& BB A 2,880,000 (L) 0.17%
Li Qiang Beneficial owner
Y ERBEAA 1,318,000 (L) 0.08%

Shum Siu Hung (formerly Beneficial owner

known as Cen Zhaoxiong)
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Shum Chiu Hung is deemed
to be interested in 1,195,072,000 Shares, representing
approximately 69.36% of the issued Shares. 1,195,072,000
Shares were held by Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd. (“Asiaciti”),
which is 60% and 40% owned as to by Renowned Brand
Investments Limited (“Renowned Brand”) and East Profit
Management Limited (“East Profit”), respectively. Renowned

Brand is wholly-owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung.

As at 31 December 2016, Ms. Chen Jie Yan, the spouse
of Mr. Guan Jianhui is interested in 3,276,000 Shares. Mr.
Guan Jianhui is deemed to be interested in those Shares.

As at 31 December 2016, Ms. Wan Zhi Ning, the spouse
of Mr. Bai Xihong is interested in 2,017,000 Shares. Mr. Bai

Xihong is deemed to be interested in those Shares.

(i) MREBEEZENER (i) Interest in associated corporations
R E
HEMEAH
EEnA HEEE SR EntE HEHE BYEI
Approximate
percentage in
the registered
capital of the
Number of associated
Number of Director Associated Corporation Nature of interest securities corporation
=¥l g REEHEE RS 120 60%
Shum Chiu Hung® Asiaciti Interest in a controlled
corporation
=iy EERE EnEAA 1 100%
Shum Chiu Hung Renowned Brand Beneficial owner
Bt - Note:
1. EREEHRBLETA60% 0 MERKERZS 1. Asiaciti is owned as to 60% by Renowned Brand which is in

WEREZEWES -

turn wholly owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung.
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(i) REEZHHER

(iii) Interest in debentures

EEME ERME BEZNEAES EEZINEMRE
Principal amount Unit size of

Name of Director Nature of interest of debentures debentures

XAl [ 5,000,0003 7T 1,000

Shum Chiu Hung® Interest of spouse USD5,000,000

Kiat Note:

1. 5,000,000 7t i) (B 1 75 B 2 81 1 5t £ B BC 4B 1. The USD5,000,000 debentures are held by Ms. Li Yiping,
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the spouse of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung. Mr. Shum Chiu Hung
is deemed to be interested in these debentures. The
debentures bore interest at a rate of 12.625% per annum

payable semi-annually, matured on 21 March 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company has any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were (i) recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO, or (ii) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2016 was the Company, its subsidiaries,
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he may incur or sustain in
or about the execution of his duties in his office. The Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) were taken or deemed to have an interests and/or
short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company

BB A B REEME HEHEO REBHNBEDL
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest securities" shareholding
F—%0 REZEHDER RS 1,195,072,000 (L) 69.36%
Li Yiping® Interest in a controlled corporation
e EnEAA 1,195,072,000 (L) 69.36%
Asiaciti® Beneficial owner
FEEKREO MREZEHDER RS 1,195,072,000 (L) 69.36%
Renowned Brand® Interest in a controlled corporation
RAe MR EHER S 1,195,072,000 (L) 69.36%

East Profit®

Interest in a controlled corporation
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(b) RIUTETIRzHEz=

(o) Derivative interest

=t B ERME HERGEEM RESHNBEDL

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest securities shareholding

FIG Corp.@0@ REERER RS 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Asian Investment Holdings A 34EHlEE M s 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
L.P.Gw6xe Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress IFC Asian Investment R EE = 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Holdings GP LLCBemN® Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress IFC Asian Investments RGBS 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Holdings L.P.©© Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Investment Group LLC®© RZ T SLEE R S 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity || GP SRR EB R S 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
L.P.&e Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP ZAEHEE AR 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
LLCH®e Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund II SRR EB R S 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
(Dollar) Holdings L.P.6X7@)9) Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund I ZAEHEE R 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
(Yen A) Holdings L.P.©M@x) Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Operating Entity | L.P.®® SRR EB R S 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Hybrid GP Holdings LLC®©) ZAEHEE R 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd.©9 257 A A 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%

Beneficial owner
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3. EERRERRMDFIFHE Y H60% & 40%
BE Al EWEAERETHMBFAED
1,195,072,000% J& 17 A #E2S o

4. Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP LLC g Hybrid
GP Holdings LLC & & # A& - T Hybrid GP
Holdings LLC Al fh Fortress Operating Entity |
L.P.2% A ° Fortress Operating Entity | L.P.F
FIG Corp. (fEREBAEA)HEE0.01% © MFIG
Corp. Bl | Fortress Investment Group LLC & &
WA -

5. Fortress Asian Investment Holdings L.P.FFortress
IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC({E& iR
A% AN) * Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen
A) Holdings L.P. X Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund
Il (Dollar) Holdings L.P. %> 5l #% & & # #90.01% -
34.34% 2 44.42% -

6. Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd.FFortress IFC
Asian Investments Holdings LP. 2 & # & * i
Fortress IFC Asian Investments Holdings L. P. 8l
Fortress Asian Investment Holdings L.P. &2 Fortress
IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC({E& &R
BRAN)DRIEEEFIT74.99%50.01% °

7. Fortress IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC
Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings
L.P. X Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Dollar)
Holdings L.P.5 Bl A & 1 #934.34% 5.44.42% ©

Notes:

The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

As at 31 December 2016, Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse
of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, is deemed to be interested in
1,195,072,000 Shares, representing approximately 69.36%
of the issued Shares. 1,195,072,000 Shares were held by
Asiaciti, which is 60% and 40% owned as to by Renowned
Brand and East Profit, respectively. East Profit is wholly-
owned by Ms. Li Yiping.

Renowned Brand and East Profit held 60% and 40% equity
interest respectively in Asiaciti. As such, it is deemed to be
interested in the 1,195,072,000 Shares held by Asiaciti.

Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP LLC was wholly owned by
Hybrid GP Holdings LLC, which was in turn wholly owned
by Fortress Operating Entity | L.P.. Fortress Operating Entity
I L.P. was owned as to 0.01% by FIG Corp. as general
partner, which was in turn wholly owned by Fortress

Investment Group LLC.

Fortress Asian Investment Holdings L.P. was owned as to
0.01% by Fortress IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC
as general partner, 34.34% by Fortress Japan Opportunity
Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings L.P. and 44.42% by Fortress Japan
Opportunity Fund Il (Dollar) Holdings L.P., respectively.

Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd. was wholly owned by
Fortress IFC Asian Investments Holdings L.P., which was
in turn owned as to 74.99% by Fortress Asian Investment
Holdings L.P. and 0.01% by Fortress IFC Asian Investment
Holdings GP LLC as general partner, respectively.

Fortress IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC was owned
as to 34.34% by Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A)
Holdings L.P. and 44.42% by Fortress Japan Opportunity
Fund Il (Dollar) Holdings L.P., respectively.
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8. Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings
L.P. } Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Dollar)
Holdings L.P.%& HFortress Japan Opportunity Il GP
LP.(tERE WM& A)HHE0.01% -+ i Fortress
Japan Opportunity Il GP L.P. f] B Fortress Japan
Opportunity I GP LLC(1EAEBER A) A
0.01% °
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8. Each of Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings
L.P. and Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Dollar) Holdings
L.P. was owned as to 0.01% by Fortress Japan Opportunity
I GP L.P. as general partner, which was in turn owned as to
0.01% by Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP LLC as general
partner.

9. Capitalised terms used in this paragraph shall have the
same meanings as those defined in the announcement of
the Company dated 7 July 2014. These Shares are the
underlying Shares to be issued upon the full conversion
of the Convertible Bonds. Completion of the subscription
of the Convertible Bonds at the principal amount of
HK$388,000,000 took place on 25 July 2014. As at the date
of this report, the Company has not been notified by the

bond holder of its intention to convert the Convertible Bonds.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company are not aware of any other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no purchase,
sale and redemption of any listed securities of the Company by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition dated 21 November 2013 (the “Deed
of Non-Competition”) was entered into between the Company and
the controlling Shareholders, including the Directors namely Mr.
Shum Chiu Hung, Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung,
Renowned Brand, East Profit and Asiaciti, who have undertaken to
the Company that they will not (1) directly or indirectly, either on their
own account, in conjunction with, on behalf of or through any person,
body corporate, partnership, joint venture or other contractual
arrangement and whether for profit or otherwise, participate, acquire
or hold any right or interest, provide any support to, financial or
otherwise, or otherwise be interested, involved or engaged in any
business that directly or indirectly competes with Restricted Business
(as defined below), or acquire or hold shares or interests (in each
case whether as a Shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and
whether for profit, reward or otherwise) in any company or business
that competes directly or indirectly with the Restricted Business (as
defined below); and (2) engage, invest, participate or be interested
(economically or otherwise) in any property development business
involving the development of residential and commercial properties
for sale; property management business involving the provision
of property management services to the Company’s residential
customers; and property leasing business involving the development,
leasing and sub-leasing of commercial properties owned by the
Company or independent third parties (the “Restricted Business”).

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance by them
and their associates with the Deed of Non-Competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of
Non-Competition and assessed whether the controlling Shareholders
have abided by the non-competition undertaking. The independent
non-executive Directors confirmed that the controlling Shareholders
have not been in breach of the non-competition undertaking during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors held any interests in
any business that competes directly against the Company or any of
its jointly controlled entities and subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2016.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance between the controlling shareholders
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Group has been
made during the year ended 31 December 2016.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with “related parties” as
defined under the applicable accounting standards, which include
transactions that constitute connected/continuing connected
transactions for which the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules have been complied with.

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 is contained in
note 42(a)(i) to financial statements.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Please see the section headed “Business Review — Liquidity,
Financial and Capital — Events after the Reporting Period” in this
report for a summary of the major events that have occurred in
relation to the Company since the balance sheet date.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board has established the Audit Committee which comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Wai
Man (chairman), Mr. Jin Qingjun and Ms. Sun Hui.

The Audit Committee has reviewed this annual report and the
audited consolidated annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 in conjunction with the Company’s management.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and considers the risk management and internal
control systems to be adequate and effective.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance.

The Company has been conducting its business according to the
principles of the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Save for the deviations disclosed in this report, in the opinion
of the Directors, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2016.

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Shum currently assumes
the roles of both the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Shum is one of the founders of the Group and has
extensive experience in property development. The Board believes
that by holding both roles, Mr. Shum will be able to provide the
Group with strong and consistent leadership and allows for more
effective and efficient business planning and decisions as well as
execution of long-term business strategies of the Group. As such,
the structure is beneficial to the business prospects of the Group.
Furthermore, the Directors had regular discussions in relation to
major matters affecting the operations of the Group and the Group
has an effective risk management and internal control systems in
place for providing adequate checks and balances. Based on the
foregoing, the Board believes that a balance of power and authority
has been and will be maintained.
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STATUS OF THE RECTIFICATION

Lease registration

As disclosed in the Prospectus, as at 22 November 2013, the Group
entered into 572 lease agreements as lessors with different tenants,
out of which 330 lease agreements had yet to be registered with the
relevant government authorities. Through the rectifying measures
as disclosed in the Prospectus, no lease agreements had yet to
be registered with the relevant government authorities as at 31
December 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 24 May
2017 (Wednesday) to 26 May 2017 (Friday), both days inclusive, in
order to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled
to attend the forthcoming AGM. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
before 4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2017 (Tuesday).

The record date for qualifying to receive the proposed final dividend
is 6 June 2017 (Tuesday). In order to determine the right of the
Shareholders entitled to receive the proposed final dividend, which is
subject to the approval by the Shareholders in the forthcoming AGM,
the register of members of the Company will also be closed from 2
June 2017 (Friday) to 6 June 2017 (Tuesday), both days inclusive. All
transfer accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 1 June 2017
(Thursday).
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2016 and at any time up to date of this report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Emst & Young as independent auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Chiu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 February 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Group are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of corporate governance.

The Company has been conducting its business according to the
principles of the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Save for the deviations disclosed in this annual report, in the
opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2016.
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three
Board committees including the Audit Committee, the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to
the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises 9 members,
consisting of six executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Guan Jianhui

Mr. Bai Xihong

Mr. Li Qiang

Mr. Shum Siu Hung (formerly known as Cen Zhaoxiong)

Mr. Niu Jimin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jin Qingjun

Ms. Sun Hui

Mr. Wong Wai Man

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/

her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited
to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other, except that Mr. Shum Chiu
Hung, chairman, executive Director and chief executive officer of the
Company, is the elder brother of Mr. Shum Siu Hung, an executive
Director of the Company.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their
identity and the time involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to
disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development
Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules,
legal and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business
and governance policies. The Company also provides Directors
with updates on latest development and changes in the statute
and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance policies
from time to time. The Directors are also provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.
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To develop and refresh the knowledge and skills, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development and provided
a record of training they received for the year ended 31 December
2016 to the Company. The training record of each Director for the
year is set out below:

EERER
H{HEIRE B RN
Briefings on

the responsibility
of directors and

EENE Name of Director other relevant topics
ZEILERE Mr. Shum Chiu Hung v/
Bt Mr. Guan Jianhui /
SEZ) e Mr. Bai Xihong v/
TRSAE Mr. Li Qiang v/
BIRHE & Mr. Shum Siu Hung (formerly known as Cen Zhaoxiong) v/
GEIEA Mr. Niu Jimin v/
SEE L Mr. Jin Qingjun v/
FEu L Ms. Sun Hui v/
E=ENXSEAE Mr. Wong Wai Man v/
FERITHRAR Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Shum currently
assumes the roles of both the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company. Mr. Shum is one of the founders of the
Group and has extensive experience in property development. The
Board believes that by holding both roles, Mr. Shum will be able to
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allows
for more effective and efficient business planning and decisions as
well as execution of long-term business strategies of the Group. As
such, the structure is beneficial to the business prospects of the
Group. Furthermore, the Directors had regular discussions in relation
to major matters affecting the operations of the Group and the
Group has an effective internal control system in place for providing
adequate checks and balances. Based on the foregoing, the Board
believes that a balance of power and authority has been and will be
maintained.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 11
December 2016 and may be terminated in accordance with the
respective terms of the service contracts.

Both of Ms. Sun Hui and Mr. Wong Wai Man, the independent
non-executive Directors, have signed a letter of appointment for a
term of three years commencing from 11 December 2016. Mr. Jin
Qingjun, an independent non-executive Director, has signed a letter
of appointment for an initial term of three years commencing from 28
October 2015.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall offer himself/
herself for re-election by Shareholders at the first general meeting
of the Company after appointment and any new Director appointed
as an addition to the Board shall offer himself/herself for re-election
by Shareholders at the next following annual general meeting of the
Company after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring the appointment, re-election and succession planning of
Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly. Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other committee meetings, fourteen days notice will be given.
The agenda and accompanying board papers are dispatched to
the Directors or committee members at least three days before the
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers
and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be
advised of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to
make their views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings will be
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and
committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, four Board meetings

BRGIOAEEeE N EREEHEZESSE were held and the attendance of each Director at these meetings is
HIERER TR set out in the table below:
BHERH
AT ERE
Attended/
EEHSE Name of Director Eligible to attend
=silvitas Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 4/4
RAREIB LA Mr. Guan Jianhui 4/4
=P Mr. Bai Xihong 4/4
=3 Mr. Li Qiang 3/4
B Mr. Shum Siu Hung (formerly known as Cen Zhaoxiong) 4/4
GEIEA Mr. Niu Jimin 4/4
- Yo Ms. Sun Hui 4/4
SEBLAE Mr. Jin Qingjun 4/4
E=ENXSEAE Mr. Wong Wai Man 4/4
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by relevant employees, who are likely to be in possession
of inside information in relation to the Company or its securities, on
no less exacting terms than the Model Code.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. Directors
could seek independent professional advice in performing their duties
at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and delegated the corporate
governance duties to the Audit Committee which include:

(@ to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company. Details of the remuneration of each
of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report. Remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2016 is within the range
of RMB800,001 to RMB6,000,000 each.

Directors’ Liability Insurance
Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in
respect of legal action against its Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (chairman), Mr. Jin Qingjun and Ms.
Sun Hui, two of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as education background, experience, skill and ability
to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision.

The terms of reference of Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held and the attendance of the
Nomination Committee members is set out below:

BHERH

Al H R

Attended/

EENSE Name of Director Eligible to attend
ZEIESE Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 2/2
SEB A Mr. Jin Qingjun 2/
RERL Ms. Sun Hui 2/2

HE_ZT—A"F+ZRA=1+—HILFE REZ
BeCMBIFTESBYME - WRER
BFEAG LAWRIESEREEMNEZTSRY
2 - REZESTERESTSEEARAES
MITESR LB IFMITE SR AR B IR TS 17

BREEL -

EEEHESTILBR
EXEQCRMABRANZEHNESNEZTEN
BZUBR] - ETEN  WEEFEXERE
AR —RF|Z T BB REE - WRERRF
MEBRANBFEF R - BRETRRIER - F
R BE O XEER  BE - TELRA
BXER -

LR EEAERERE SR ESSHEKBIE
RINE T ARSMRA - EREEFOREENL
BEANRAEFRDEAMELMGHE B2
BEeRn HEEZSRBAE  HEAMFELSH
E-RRZEeR TR REREEENES
TN BRBERABRERR  KMETESS
BVEREARK o

e ES SR
THMEEGH=-AREMAR BFEBLL(
F)  SEIESERBESEE - HPMURER
B IEITES -

82  EH{UmEEEARATE 2016 FERE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee has assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and made recommendation to the Board in
relation to the re-election of retiring Directors at the annual general
meeting. The Nomination Committee has also recommended the
Board on renewing the relevant service agreements and letters of
appointment entered into by the Company and each of the executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” in relation to the
nomination and appointment of new directors, which sets out: the
selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model
and specific needs, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience.

The above measurements were also reviewed and adopted when
the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Board.
After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and experience
to the Company’s business, the Nomination Committee considered
that the existing Board was appropriately structured and no change
was required. The Nomination Committee will review and monitor
the implementation of board diversity on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness on determining the optimal composition of the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Ms.
Sun Hui (chairman), Mr. Shum Chiu Hung and Mr. Wong Wai Man,
two of them are independent non-executive Directors.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board for approval on the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management, to determine, with delegated responsibility,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management/to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

BE_Z—XRET-A=1+—BLEE  HFME During the year ended 31 December 2016, two meetings of the
SePRTMANEH MFNEZEeKELFE Remuneration Committee were held and the attendance of the
SREAIINT Remuneration Committee members is set out below:
EHERE
AT ERE
Attended/
EEHNE Name of Director Eligible to attend
BRELL Ms. Sun Hui 2/2
ZELESE Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 2/2
HEXSEE Mr. Wong Wai Man 2/
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The Remuneration Committee has reviewed performance and the
remuneration of Directors and senior management for the year 2016,
as well as the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management. As a result, the Remuneration
Committee has made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management and the increase of remuneration of the independent
non-executive Directors during the year.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Wong
Wai Man (chairman), Mr. Jin Qingjun and Ms. Sun Hui, all of them are
independent non-executive Directors. The main duties of the Audit
Committee include the following:

- To review the financial statements and reports before
submission to the Board;

- To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard and discuss with
external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

- To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems, including the adequacy of the resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The Audit Committee oversees the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, reports to the Board on any material
issue and makes recommendations to the Board.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held and the attendance of the Audit Committee
members is set out below:

BHERH

] R

Attended/

EENSE Name of Director Eligible to attend
E=ENXSEAE Mr. Wong Wai Man 2/
FEZ+ Ms. Sun Hui 2/
FESRE Mr. Jin Qingjun 2/2
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results and annual report for the year ended
31 December 2015, interim results and interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2016, financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, risk management and internal control systems (including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function), and the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The Board has not deviated from any recommendation given
by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed interim and final results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal year as well as the audit
report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting issues
and major findings in course of audit.

General Meeting

During the year ended 31 December 2016, one annual general
meeting was held on 27 May 2016 and the attendance of the
individual Directors at the annual general meeting is set out in the

table below:

BHRERE

AT ERE

Attended/

EEHSE Name of Director Eligible to attend
BE S Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 11
RAEIE LA Mr. Guan Jianhui 11
SEis Mr. Bai Xihong 1/
B Mr. Li Qiang 1/
BIRHE Mr. Shum Siu Hung (formerly known as Cen Zhaoxiong) 11
GEIEA Mr. Niu Jimin 11
FEELEE Mr. Jin Qingjun 1/
FELt Ms. Sun Hui 11
=ENXSEAE Mr. Wong Wai Man 11
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides
all members of the Board with monthly updates on Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn.

The statement by the independent auditor of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on page 120 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group and to only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

During the 2016 reporting period, the Board supervised the
management’s design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis; such review
covered all major control aspects of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems covered
each operation department, to ensure that the Group could
effectively manage the key factors that might affect the Group in
achieving its strategic objectives, such factors including events,
accidents or behaviors with a material impact on the Group’s
reputation, assets, capital, profit or liquidity.

The Company has established three lines-of-defence structure for
risk management. In the risk governance structure, the first line
of defence consists of the business departments and responsible
individuals, with the Group’s business and functional centers serving
as the second line of defence and the internal audit team as the third
line of defence. The first line of defence bears risks and shoulders the
direct responsibility for risk management and it identifies, measures
and controls the risks in respective business fields and operating
activities. The second line of defence formulates rules and standards
as business guidance to subsidiaries/business units, and supervises
their execution to ensure that risk management takes place for the
Group, with continuous control of relevant work. The third line of
defence is responsible for monitoring, with an emphasis on providing
independent monitoring over the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
solutions and measures by combining the monitoring over the risk
management and internal control systems.

Assisted by external professional advisors, the management of
the Company identified and evaluated the risks of the Group
and analysed core risks, by interviewing the company president
and relevant senior management. By communicating with each
responsible department relating to core risks and by examining
all kinds of systems, standards and relevant documents, the
management of the Company could gain a clear picture of the
current control of each core risk and the direction of continuous
improvement. Furthermore, we formulated a manual of risk
management which specified the roles and responsibilities of
the management and the Board in risk management, and will
continuously monitor the risk management and internal control
systems according to the manual.

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. In practice,
employees of the Group who become aware of any events and/
or matters which he/she consider potentially inside information,
will report to the designated personnel of the Company who, if
considered appropriate, will pass such information to the Board
for the purpose of considering and deciding whether or not such
information constitutes inside information and disclosure of which
shall be made immediately.
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The Group’s internal audit team plays an important role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The team mainly monitors
and reviews the matters relating to the internal control and
compliance of the Company, and provides regular risk-oriented
internal audits for its branches and subsidiaries. The internal audits
cover project obtainment, procurement tendering, sales, financial
reporting and information security and so on. The internal audit team
reports to the Board twice a year.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee has received a report of risk management
and internal control prepared by the internal audit team, and has
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
remain adequate and effective throughout the year ended 31
December 2016 with no material issues to be brought to the Board’s
attention.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total remuneration paid
or payable to the Company’s independent auditor, Ernst & Young,
for audit and non-audit services amounted to RMB3,980,000
and RMB3,744,508, respectively. The non-audit services mainly
consisted of tax advisory, review and other reporting services.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Lui Wai Pang (“Mr. Lui”), one of our joint company secretaries,
was responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations were followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws,
the Company also engaged Ms. Lai Siu Kuen, a senior manager of
KCS Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider),
as another joint company secretary to assist Mr. Lui to discharge his
duties as company secretary of the Company. The primary corporate
contact person at the Company is Mr. Lui, one of the joint company
secretaries of the Company.

Mr. Lui and Ms. Lai have undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training respectively in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting provides opportunity for Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the
Company and the chairman of the Board Committee of the Company
will attend the annual general meeting to answer Shareholders’
questions. The external auditor of the Company will also attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and contents of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company and
the Shareholders and maintains a website at www.timesgroup.cn,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meeting.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings and
Putting Forward Proposals

In accordance with the Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings.
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Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the joint
company secretaries of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders who wish to
propose resolutions may follow Article 64 of the Articles of Association
for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a
resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures are
set out in the section headed “Convening of Extraordinary General
Meetings and Putting Forward Proposals” in this report.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could email their enquiries to Mr. Lui Wai
Pang at his email address: januslui@timesgroup.cn.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

An amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
was adopted by the Company on 19 November 2013 and became
effective on the Listing Date. There was no amendment made to the
constitutional documents of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016.

COMPETING BUSINESS

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance by them
and their close associates with the Deed of Non-Competition. For
further details, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Interest
in Competing Business” in the directors’ report.
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1 ABOUT THIS REPORT

1.1

1.2

1.3

Overview

As the first Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) report published by Times Property, this
report primarily discloses the information on the
economic, social and environmental performance of
the Company from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2016 (the “reporting period”). This report is prepared
on an annual basis.

Basis of Preparation
This report is prepared in accordance with Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules.

The content of this report is determined according to
a systematic procedure which includes identifying and
ranking major stakeholders and ESG-related issues,
defining the boundary of the ESG report, collecting
relevant materials and data, preparing data according
to the collected information, and examining the data
of this report.

Scope and Boundary of this report

This report aims to provide a balanced representation
of Times Property’s ESG performance and covers the
operations of the Group.
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ESG GOVERNANCE

2.1

2.2

R ETFERRE

Governance Policy

Times Property is committed to maintaining high-level
corporate governance to safeguard Shareholders’
interests and improve corporate value. Save as
discussed in this report, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, as the Company’s
principle on corporate governance and operates
business in accordance with the CG Code.

In the meantime, Times Property actively undertakes
the mission of a responsible corporate citizen, pursues
all-rounded sustainable development, and consciously
incorporates ESG concepts into the Company’s
mission, value, business, system and the process of
daily operation and risk management.

The Company has identified and prioritised the ESG
issues in respect of environmental and social aspects,
taking into consideration, among other things, the five
objectives stated in section headed “ESG Objective”
below and the Company’s long-term strategies which
safeguard the Shareholders’ interest and improve its
corporate value.

ESG Governance Structure

B/E

Times Property Leadership Team for Sustainable Development

HERE
Overall planning and
leadership

Decisi;ﬁjﬁ:\:ﬁgﬁng and Planninﬁ%%it roval
deployment g pp
A EBRREIENAE

Sustainable Development Working Group

BB
Communication and
coordination

=

EERE SRS
Implementatlon of Preparation of
resolutions reports

BEERFIR BT AR

Functional departments and branches in different cities

HATTAE

Execution

R ERERARAT 2016 FERE

S ER
Information reporting
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2.3

Anti-corruption and Promoting Good
Governance

Times Property treats anti-corruption as an important
part of corporate governance. The Company
constantly improves its rules and regulations by
integrating prevention, education, supervision, reward
and punishment measures into the Company’s
corporate governance system and formulating relevant
regulations such as “Times Property Code of Conduct
for the Senior Management” (B HEEIEAETT
AYERIY), “Times Property Management Regulations
on Construction Tendering” (B ZE Ti2BHIZ
BB TEY) and “Times Property Regulations on Staff
Reward and Punishment” ({BFihE B THREI MER
EIEEIEZ) ). Meanwhile, the Company has established
the Group’s audit and inspection centre to monitor,
investigate and handle all types of internal behaviour
that breach laws, regulations and discipline, such
behaviour including bribery, fraud, abuse of power for
personal gain and other power abuse, or dereliction
of duty that causes considerable damage to the
Company’s reputation and economy. In addition, the
Company has set up a special mailbox for supervision,
as a channel for internal and external reporting, in
order to collect the information on various suspected
behaviour of malpractice.

During the reporting period, Times Property has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company, in
relation to the bribery, extortion and money laundering
prevention.
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2.4 RIFRKE 2.4 Awards and Recoghnition
ERAH
RIBER Name of Honors Grant Date
20155 E R EIEME F %305 2015 Top 30 Chinese Real Estate Listed Companies 2016.3
2016 BEFEERBEE 2016 Top 100 Chinese Real Estate Companies 2016.3
20167 EIE i ER B b %503 2016 Top 50 Chinese Real Estate Developers 2016.3
EAPERMEM AR Organisation Award for EAP Happy Companies 2016.3
20155 BB FIKE ERAIRHRIT Second Prize of 2015 Guangdong Hongmian Cup 2016.6
for Poverty Relief
015FEEHESERLRE 2015 Huangpu Charity Enterprise 2016.7
ETHREEFRHEERE20% The Fifteenth Top 20 Guangdong Property Enterprises 2016.7
with High Credit
FREIREPERBEE100% Top 100 Chinese Private Companies in 2016.8
the Service Industry
FRIR & 5005 Top 500 Chinese Private Companies 2016.8
2016 R AT E NENE 2016 China Most Influential Real Estate Companies 2016.8
201120165 E XM E Dn B BRHBET 2011-2016 Enterprise with Special Contribution - 2016.9
- BRIERE Make a Charity Donation of over RMB100 million
for Poverty Relief
2016 B RBEL BB ETR 2016 Top 10 Leading Chinese Brand Company in 2016.9
Real Estate Service
2016 Bl E L ERBEBIER 2016 Chinese Specialty Project for Star Real Estate Service ~ 2016.9
FEmBELCE Brand Company of the Year 2016.12
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2.5 FZEEAFEBNFBE 2.5 Identification of and Communication with
Stakeholders
FEMEA BEAX
Stakeholders Means of Communication
BEP(EXRHEP) SR BRI A
Clients (Lessors and Lessees)  Sales department Client service hotline
EpaL EFmEERE
Official website Client satisfaction survey
BAHMIERMIE EFa#%
Official Weibo and WeChat Client interview
mEHrmE
Linlibang (48 2 F§) Application
BT NENEBE R ET&%
Staff Intranet Staff meeting
BIf=M EIEE)
Staff e-mail Staff activity
BT 8 T3
Staff interview Staff training
BLERAE
Online opinion survey
245 Bl NHES
Government Interview Public event
L
Meeting
PR BB E RERE: &
Shareholders and Investors Shareholder meeting Financial report
EWE AT B R
Official website Analyst’s briefing
YNGEHE]
Public report
HEn SRl FEEZ KL
Suppliers Interview Annual audit and assessment
HEESE BEE
Supplier meeting Tendering
BLERAE
Online opinion survey
NG NEEEEE MEEREE
Charities Charity event cooperation Interview and investigation
TEpELES RN I HEHHE
Industry and trade Industry communication and forum Mutual interview
associations
e Heenmne (REED) BREERE
Media Press conference (Media visit) Media interview
Hith HLERAE i
Others Online opinion survey Visit
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2.6 ESGEEMZEERIIR 2.6 Major ESG Issues and Lists
4 1) B A D S R 38 K2 SN 2B A 25 A Bl Having made enquiries of the internal and external
FYEHER - FRMERRIAT20 stakeholders, Times Property identified the following
(Y=l AYNCIPNEIN- Ty =l 20 issues as the major ESG issues to the Company
FHEE EBHESGERE - and its external stakeholders.
R =
BiE M GHERREEE B
Times Property
A ESG Materiality Matrix

[-2)

® © i e
© o 2 ©O
SEEEMEE

Issues of high importance

O M 5 ot S o D 2

TEEEMEE

Issues of medium importance

Importance to stakeholders

BEERMRE

Issues of low importance

=
P
HEXBRNEEM
Importance to Group's business
O =ausszs ® zamenEsny O pemmmms O mwnmEse
Product quality and safety HEA Principles of supplier employment Waste management
O ERRBIEEF Types of investments in B wremen O x&ERERER
Complaints on products and services social issues participated by Supplier’s situation Management of water
O muEmrE the Company 2 poFERETRRESE resource consumption
Protection of intellectual property rights @ sinaEpE Avoidance of employing chid labour and O prmesm
4 SHBEEZEZZRENL Staff safety and health forced labour Emissions management
Safety and privacy of consumer information 8 BTEIRER B sTrxx O ppemEe
9 BEERRERESHER Staff training and Percentage of staff tumover Material consumption
Cormuption situation and measures for anti-comuption development Q wremEn management
O EEEANER Energy consumption management D a=gmEn
Basic situation of @ BB RRAARER Management of greenhouse
employment Environment and natural resources gases
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2.7

ESG Obijectives

Times Property takes the initiative to assume its
responsibility and mission as a corporate citizen,
pursue all-round sustainable development, and
practice ESG concepts. The main objectives include
the following five aspects:

Quality products and services: To continue to
provide quality, safe and green products and
quality services for customers.

Staff development and care: To continue
to provide a healthy and friendly work
environment and fair and broad room of
development for the staff.

Responsibility and management of supply
chains: To continue to provide positive value
and demonstration for supply chain partners
and industry peers.

Energy saving, emission reduction and
environmental protection: To continue to
prevent and control the negative impacts of
corporate operation on the environment, and
treat natural environment in a friendly manner.

Social welfare and philanthropy: To continue
the commitment to community development
and philanthropy as well as volunteer services
and investment.

QUALITY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Times Property believes that its mission is to realise the

desirable lives for more people. Therefore, the Company

provides not only quality housing products for its customers,

but also comprehensive solutions to living, including

location selection, community planning, ancillary facilities,

landscaping, decoration, design and property service, so

that customers can benefit from the quality of residence and

property appreciation brought by the Company.
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31 EBE2RH 3.1

=

Quality Assurance

311 EREER
HREENERESRE
EEHE=ERmE+EER

3.1.1 Product philosophy
The product philosophy of Times Property:
Housing performance = product quality +

% o quality services.

B2 IR 7§ Quality services

o WEVRER [ EHEREASENE R
Location selection : Selecting land with a great potential for
development

o WIEERRE - MEREREE
Basic property services : Property
maintenance and management

o BmRE L RE - EARG  EIMGERETR— A - EEMEER
Product design : Design, interior design and landscaping are
indispensable, respect for intellectual property rights

o HERERE  HAEHETE
To create community atmosphere :
Organising activities and interaction

o MRERA ISERRR RN - B
Material selection : Focusing on energy conservation and
environmental protection, and using new technologies and

materials
c BERHEAES  FIEBRETREEEELS  BRYUYEER
B A EY 12

Quality and cost control: Combining system management and
process management to control quality and cost

o HTEFAKE  RIFIEEMAIET
To build a living platform : Adding value to
services and innovation

HERE
RIBCEF RN R E RS it
EMSHERRERNA
)~ CAREEEEERR
RILREETEEETE
ROAEEBBEFIRE - &
RIEH R B HWERMR
BEERBTESHENR
TERARIES I RIT
¥l

‘95" “Four High Standards”

3.1.2 Quality standard

According to the “Notice by the State Council
on Facilitating Sustainable and Healthy
Development of the Real Estate Market” (€ B7#
BrBAR e e B i EE Th S B R R B R 03B AN)),
“Certain Opinions Concerning the Promotion
of the Industrialisation of the Property Sector
to Improve Housing Quality” (( B HE#EE
EEEXERARLRESFEEEATER)) and
relevant national standards, Times Property
has proposed even higher requirements about
the quality of its products and services, which
are mainly stated as “Four High Standards”
and “Four New Standards”.

“M9%” “Four New Standards”

c BEHRE o EAFMR
High threshold of planning Selecting new materials
o BKERET o PR
High level of design Adopting new technologies
- BEERT - ERHIE
High quality of construction Applying new processes
- BEEERE o ERARE

High management standard

Using new equipment
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3.1.3 Quality control and management

To ensure Times Property’s product quality,
the Company has established three working
systems, including a standard product
system, a purchase and supply system for
materials, parts and equipment, and a strict
quality control and management system. The
Company has formulated a series of policies
on quality control and management systems,
such as “Times Property Construction Quality
Assessment and Management System” (B,
WETIRE 8FEEIESIE)), “Times Property
‘Construction Suspension’ Management
System” (EFHih EE T2 H & | B IR HI/Z))
and “Times Property Reward and Punishment
System for Construction Quality” (EFihE
TF2E & #5H|E)), to monitor, manage and
control product quality effectively.

Construction Quality Assessment and
Management System

The system has unified regular assessment,
specific assessment, and the organisation,
method and process of specific acceptance to
effectively identify the projects with high risks
in quality, follow up and implement the quality
risk management measures to timely eliminate
quality pitfalls, and implement a responsibility
investigation system for construction quality
and safety accidents. Eventually, we can
meet the objectives of more stable quality and
streamlined management.

“Construction Suspension” Management
System

When substantial safety pitfalls, loss of control
of on-site management, safety accidents
and tightened project planning run the risk of
poor overall quality, the Company will decide
to suspend construction and rectify the
projects or certain sections (i.e. “construction
suspension”). The purposes of this system
are to control project quality and safety risks,
encourage frontline staff to develop quality
awareness and ensure Times Property’s
product quality.
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Construction Quality Reward and Punishment
System

The system has incorporated the monthly and
annual quality assessment of the Company’s
projects under construction into the quarterly
and annual performance appraisals of
branches in different cities, with the appraisal
results serving as the basis of annual reward
and punishment for respective branches.

During the reporting period, Times Property
has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the Company, in relation to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and service provided and
methods of redress.

3.2 Customer satisfaction

3.2.1 Quality customer services

Times Property has established a
comprehensive customer services system from
pre-sale to living to make sure that customers
can enjoy quality services during the process
of pre-sale, after-sale, handover and living.

In particular, Times Property adheres to
the “customer-oriented” spirit of services
and strives to become the best operator of
comprehensive community service in China.
In respect of internal management, we have
prepared systematic documents, such as
“Times Property Customer-Housekeeper Line
Operation Instructions” KERMERTFER
(RIEZEFEEE)), “Times Property Engineering
Service Line Operation Instructions” ({ i
KOMETIRERBEIEFXIEESE)), “Times
Property Customer Assistant Line Operation
Instructions” KR RMEE BB LFIEETE
EEY) “Times Property On-site Hierarchical
Management Mechanism” (B W EIR5
DHEEHESY) and “Times Property Daily
Appraisal System” (FR¥EBZZHE)),
to formulate detailed work processes for 94
types of work, including reception, customer
request, construction maintenance and safety
management. Meanwhile, Times Property
actively promotes the transformation from a
traditional property service model to a new
one. We have successfully launched the
“LinLiBang” (“#B8 £ #") application to provide
new quality services, such as neighborhood
purchase, community tourism and life
experience centre, for community customers.
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3.2.2

3.23

“LinLiBang’” (“#52Z #5")

Times Property has developed an online
application “LinLiBang” (“#2#”) as a
community service platform and opened
an offline life experience centre, rolling out
selected services, such as living gallery,
housing, rental and sales, “Times Youth” art
education, community elderly and medical
service, and convenience financial services,
so as to build a community platform with
an ambiance of humanity and art through
an experience of fresh life and a smart living
pattern.

Customer privacy protection

To secure the privacy of its customer
information, the Company has formulated the
“Information Management Procedures for the
Customers of Times Property” (R IbEZEF
BB IERFL)). According to the procedure,
all the property staff has the responsibility
and obligation to keep customer information
confidential; those who leak customer
information by intention or by accident shall
receive corresponding punishment, and under
serious conditions, the staff shall be dismissed
and held accountable for economic and legal
liabilities.

Customer complaints

According to the “Procedures for Handling
Customer Complaints of Times Property” (i
R ERETRFEIE IEHRZ)), customer
complaints from every channel and source
shall be handled by specific staff according to
the standard procedures and in a timely and
effective manner within 24 hours.

In addition, according to the “Procedures for
Interviewing the Customers of Times Property”
KHRICEXPH A TIEHRIE)), regular
interviews shall take place with permanent
proprietors of all the properties to seek their
advice and recommendations and address the
problems of the properties.
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2014

2015

2016

B EREEREE
Satisfaction with
housing quality

U s
Satisfaction with the
services delivered

B mEREHEE
Satisfaction with
property services
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STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND CARE

Talents are always the most important asset for Times
Property. Hence, the Company is committed to providing
a fair and just environment for employment and a career
platform for all the staff to apply their talent and creativity, in
an effort to bring their value and potential to full play on the
basis of respect.

4.1 Employment overview
4.1.1 Staff overview

Total workforce by gender, age group and

S HIERBH employment type

HERR AERR LEL ARER
Real estate  Commerce Property

segment segment segment Overall
ETHBAY Total number of staff 2,228 278 3510 6,016
RIERIED %1% Female 912 72 902 1,886
By gender 2 Male 1,316 206 2,608 4,130
BRERED <30 1,289 137 1,708 3,134
By age 30-50 909 137 1,684 2,730
>50 30 4 18 1562
RERERES SEEIEE Senior management 75 3 8 86
By employment type FEE £ Middle management 162 12 21 195
LEE T General staff 1,991 263 3,481 5,735
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4.1.2

RILE - Fi - EIFREE)

Employee turnover ratio by gender, age and

SEIE BT E employment type
1 E AR PSR MERIR NERE
Real estate Commerce Property
segment segment segment Overall
BETRAE Total staff turnover ratio 16.93% 19.76% 21.74% 19.87%
eedlE b 1 Female 16.94% 18.61% 21.20% 19.06%
By gender S Male 16.92% 20.18% 21.92% 20.24%
RERESH <30 20.88% 26.50% 23.79% 22.78%
By age 30-50 11.36% 12.80% 19.34% 16.17%
>50 8.99% 0.00% 17.41% 15.32%
REFERES SEEEE Senior management 2.44% 16.75% 0.00% 2.88%
By employment type B EEE Middle management 9.03% 31.27% 4.78% 9.35%
T®WE T General staff 18.23% 19.14% 21.97% 20.56%
EEEE 4.1.2 Employment Policy
EXEFHE Basic employment policy

TR BIERRAE « AR
NIBERAEARE b - BAHE
HIE TR RME AL B2
FIESERBEANER
BIEHIERER)  fIEALLR
BARRAANS EENELRE
Al - ATE2URANER
HE - HEIWNHEE &
7t R RS TF
B RE - FERKE 2
TUL 8 R AR 77 1 A
FEROIRTE ©

RBEBRA - BRIEDE
S THEBILET - 2Hl8
TREARERTEHAR
RIERERFENMERAZE
KBS -

On the basis of complying with the relevant
laws, regulations and policies of the PRC,
Times Property has formulated the “Times
Property Talent Management Manual” (B
R EAA EEFM)) and the “Collection
of Regulations on Human Resources
Management of Times Property” ({ B i
EANEBREEHEEL)) as a systematic
summary of the Company’s basic criteria
of talent management, talent concepts and
human resources policies, with clear provisions
on staff recruitment, promotion, dismissal,
benefits, working hours, vacation, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, etc.

During the reporting period, Times Property
has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the Company in relation to preventing
child labour and forced labour and other
employment-related matters.
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The Company explicitly opposes and takes
strict measures against the employment of
child labour or forced labour. In respect of the
policy when recruiting new staff, the Company
considers not only the candidate’s employment
background, professional competence, work
experience and academic qualifications, but
also his/her comprehensive qualities such as
personality, attitude and potential. Every staff
member, regardless of his/her background and
position, should be treated on an equal footing.
The Company is committed to creating a fair,
just, friendly and close-knit work environment,
with full respect to every staff member.

Labour contract

By strictly complying with the relevant
regulations of The Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Times Property
implements a standard management system
of labour contract to protect the interest of the
staff and prevent labour risks.

Social insurances

Starting from the first month of their
employment, Times Property provides its staff
members with social insurances, as required
by the PRC, covering retirement and pension,
unemployment, maternity, work-related
injuries, medical service and housing provident
fund.

Working hours

Times Property has provided its staff with
standard working hours and leaves, strictly in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations.
Formal staff members are conditionally
entitled to paid leaves, including annual leave,
marriage leave, maternity leave, lactation leave,
accompaniment and care leave, and funeral
leave, as well as unpaid leaves such as sick
leave and casual leave.
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4.1.3 Remuneration and benefits

Remuneration

In respect of the remuneration policy, Times
Property provides and maintains competitive
remuneration in the market, with attention
also paid to internal fairness and motivation of
remuneration entitlement to meet the demand
of talent growth and development and support
the sustainable development of the Company’s
business.

The annual salary of our staff consists of fixed
monthly salary, monthly allowance or subsidy,
performance bonus and others. The Company
reviews its annual remuneration standards
based on the market changes in remuneration,
and adjusts staff remuneration as necessary
and according to the growth of results and
position change.

Benefits

° Staff Restaurant: The staff restaurant of
Times Property has started its operation
since January 2013, providing free
lunch and dinner for all the 800 staff
members on a daily basis to satisfy
their dining needs. The food ingredients
suppliers of the staff restaurant
have been certified with ISO9001
qualification, and they conducts quality
control throughout the process in the
production base, allowing our staff
to eat in a healthy and safe way with
confidence.

° Staff Activity Centre: In 2016, Times
Property built its staff activity centre
to provide the staff with the most
convenient sports and fitness venues,
enrich their life in spare time and
improve their physical and mental
health.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 105



RiE - #ERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

. BETHERMN : RIE
R ECE TEF
WIZZEE) BTH
ERMNE®EEAR
T BB 4B
BEE - £REME
o BES R
m - FPFE - AR
Z\RBZEHNES
18 m PA R B KR

o

ki

414 EIEH
FRIEETHEKESHE
NABVFFETEHR
THEIBES - BEARQF
Few . E@pg BEISHEKX
B JFEEMAEE 2016
FRITHE TEHRIE

. [RERARAT ISR
THERRMWERT
BEE

. [EERR - FBEK

KR JE S RO E
BEEESS

. [RAORRBR DEALL
=3

. [ M8 {EBF X 12016085
RIEET A BT

106 FEZRARAT 2016 FERE

° Staff festival benefits: According to
Times Property’s “Standard for the
Application of Staff Benefits” ((EL
BRI PHRIZAE) ), staff festival benefits
include cash gifts for birthday, marriage
and maternity, illness gifts, condolence
money, gifts for Mid-Autumn Festival,
red packets for bridesmaids, as well
as cash, gifts and paid leaves for the
International Women'’s Day.

4.1.4 Staff Activities
All the staff members have the opportunity to
participate in the Company’s activities held
regularly or irregularly each year, including
annual meetings, sports events, staff talent
contests and celebration events. The staff
activities held in 2016 include:

° “Dash Forward with Times Property”
(“BERKAADT) The Fifteenth Times
Property Employee Sports Event

° “Times Property Talents Lead the
Future” (“Z BN - BHAKK") The
Fourth Times Property Sports Event for
the Management

° “Orator of Times Property” (‘B ;EzH
") Speech Contest

° “Singers and Composers of Times
Property” (“lB{ERFR") 2016 Times
Property Staff Talent Contest
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4.2 Training and Development

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.23

Talent Evaluation Standard

With clear standards of talent evaluation
in place, Times Property provides regular
review and evaluation on the competency,
performance and development potential of
the staff, with the results applied to talent
management to facilitate staff growth and
development. In particular, the evaluation
standards of staff competency encompass
project or work experience, comprehensiveness
of knowledge structure and professional
skills, and work performance. The evaluation
standards of staff development potential cover
three dimensions, namely, self-motivation,
thinking and leadership.

Career Path

Times Property designs a two-way, multi-
stage career development path for staff of
different positions and ranks (including those
in management and professional fields). As an
effective reference for staff’s self-positioning,
growth and promotion, the career path
specifies the employment levels that staff of
different positions and ranks can reach in
the Company and the abilities and qualities
required for realising such career objectives.

Staff Training System

Special Talent Development Plan: In the talent
training principle of “Focus on internal training,
complemented by external recruitment”,
Times Property is visionary to train its talents
in a progressive and diverse approach, with
plans and steps to explore, develop and train
the future team of talents. Staff members of
different rankings are provided with targeted
plans for training and development.
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° Capability Enhancement Programme
for Newly Promoted Managers: For new
middle managers.

o Leadership Development Programme
for Senior Management: For the
Company’s senior management
(directors and above).

° The Times “New Youth” Project: For
fresh graduates with great potential
(from campus recruitment).

Number of trainees and training hours,
percentage and average training hours of
employees by gender and employment type

T
BINEAE Bt EAEE RE
Total Total Average
number of training training
trainees  Percentage hours hours

BEIISERAZ Total training hours and
number of trainees 2,336 100% 21,0195 9
gl #Zft Female 926 39.64% 8,883.5 9.59
By gender S Male 1,410 60.36% 12,136 8.61
RERERED BEEEE Senior management 28 1.20% 3685 13.16
By employment type R EEIEE Middle management 941 40.28% 6,863.5 7.29
@8 T General staff 1,367 58.52% 13,787.5 10.09

43 REEZZ

431 ZE2EERZA
RIRERFLEHN - THE
BRARMENENZE -
FIRETT - B E
ZEEWN - BREL - BF
AFMEETENEZS - K
RWENMEREELZEE

R ERERARAT 2016 FERE

4.3

Health and safety

4.3.1 Safety management system

Times Property has formulated policies on the
“Safety Management System of Times Property”
((FRIELZEEIRFER)) to ensure the safety and
stability of business operation, project construction
and communities, prevent and reduce production
safety accidents, and ensure the safety of the
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staff, customers and corporate assets. The system

mainly comprises two parts, namely, prevention and
handling.

Z2EHRERTERST

Standards and

Mechanism of Safety Management

v R

A Aoammem Treveplign A
|

V.Y ¥V “sga=

Handiing

l
7E fll BE fi 3l

Formulating regulations
for providing training

o HEARSIE

o MBTZEIRIEME =
BEEBRIRZ 2L

o BEARARZAEFET
et EIRZERZ B IR

o MBEIILEZEME

o MEZZRE

e Formulating the mechanism
e Organising the training and

publicity on safety awareness,

and supervising the safety
training of each business
segment

e Formulating the annual work
plan and assessment targets
for the Company’s safe
production

e Organising to sign a safety
responsibility agreement

e Organising safety drills

RBEBAA - BRINEDE
ST BRERZE2TFRE
KREREEBEBELRE
THEARARBEAEEATE
MMERDER BOEMR

ZEEERE
RREZ2EBERNEN
B BRHMEERIL TR
2ERFIEEBEHS - £
EnMiEare  BEAK
TREMPENELZE=K
BoARSERERZE B
BRr  BRUEHELAE
£ RBHITER  BRA
BLE2ESMH -

) |
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Supervision and inspection Emergency
to ensure execution response mechanism

HELBBL2IeE T2 o HIELREEYESEERE
EEREBAFHREETE o HBESFMHHERRE
BT IR BEHIMNAEMALZE
FRZEEEZZ K& - o EHIEMR - LREDITAER
B EEYWARBLEEE EEZZERIER
EHFERRITIER

Formulating and implementing o Formulating the contingency
the safety inspection plan plan for safety accidents
Supervising and inspecting the o Organising the investigation

rectification and improvement

work on the elimination of

pitfalls which may cause

material accidents o
Providing safe production
assessment, recognition,

reward and punishment,

supervising and reporting the
execution of safe production

control index

and handling of emergencies,
including public relations and
internal rehabilitation
Providing regular summaries
and integrated analysis and
reporting production safety
accidents

During the reporting period, Times Property
has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the Company in relation to providing a
safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

4.3.2 Safe production training

Times Property has also established the
mechanism of safety management training
and drills, to ensure the effective operation
of the safety management system. The
mechanism mainly comprises three categories:
comprehensive safety for office facilities,
project construction safety and community
safety, involving fire-fighting, theft prevention,
natural disaster prevention and escape, traffic
safety and group activity safety.
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4.3.3 Staff Care Scheme

From 2010, Times Property established a staff
care fund for all the Group’s staff members,
their immediate family and siblings who are
under 18, as a gesture to help the staff through
difficulties. So far, the fund has supported 34
staff members or their family for treating serious
diseases, the amount of fund amounting to
RMB650,000. Meanwhile, the Company has
also set up a corporate Employee Assistance
Programme named “Beautiful Soul”, providing
regular psychological salons, lectures, activities
and free counseling with psychiatrists. The
scheme seeks to provide proper care for the
staff members and their family and help them
face challenges with a positive mindset and
enjoy a brilliant life.

SUPPLY CHAIN RESPONSIBILITY
MANAGEMENT

Times Property believes that its development is closely related
to suppliers, and that the quality of its products, services
and reputation are greatly influenced by the approaches of
cooperation with suppliers. Therefore, the Company sticks
to its procurement principle of “Robust Procurement for
Value Creation” and the cooperation concepts of being
simple, transparent, open and fair for a win-win outcome.
Furthermore, the Company has formulated a series of
policies, such as “Times Property Procurement Concepts”
((RFRMEREEIE D)) and “Times Property Tendering
Regulations for Engineering Projects” ((BF{LihZE TR IEZE
EIEFRTED), so that responsible procurement can take place
to accelerate the information flow of supply and demand,
improve the efficiency of goods supply and the frequency of
cash flow, and establish a supply chain management platform
that is timely, accurate, high-quality, efficient, cost-effective
and responsible.
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Procurement Management

According to “Times Property Procurement Concepts”, the
Company mainly adopts the following measures to realise
effective procurement management:

o Adhering to centralised procurement, adjusting the
procurement model and categorising most materials
into the scope of suppliers, to realise direct control of
product quality.

° Building a supply chain management platform, to
realise effective control and continuous optimisation
of the whole process, from initial tendering and
procurement to later supply management.

° Establishing a materials company — Guangzhou Times
Supply Chains Management Limited (& /T B (L fE
BB A R AR, to improve settlement efficiency.

° Establishing a robust quality control system for
materials, including tests for outgoing products, on-
site sampling and third-party examination.

In addition, the Company conducts annual inspection and
authentication for its suppliers, reviewing their qualifications,
results, reputation, technology and capital, to ensure the
supplier’s quality. Meanwhile, the Company also attaches
importance to evaluating its suppliers in environmental, social
and moral aspects, to facilitate the sustainable development
of supply chains.

Local Procurement

During the 2016 reporting period, Times Property employed
218 engineering and material suppliers. Among them,
92.77% were local suppliers in South China.

& ERE EREUN et
Region South China Others Total
& Number 218 17 285
1l tt, Percentage 92.77% 7.23% 100%
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Transparent Procurement

In order to ensure a fair and just business environment and
safeguard the common interests of cooperation parties,
Times Property advocates clean transactions. During their
business transactions with the Company, cooperation parties
can report to the Company’s monitoring department for
any non-compliance behaviours of its employees, such as
corruption, bribery, malpractice, abusing power for personal
gain, and other power abuse.

Green Procurement

From construction to landscaping to the interior, Times
Property invariably selects healthy and environmental-friendly
materials of high quality. The selection criteria include:

° Top five brands in the industry in general, and
products with an excellent sales volume and
reputation.

o Material composition that is safe, healthy, sanitary and

non-toxic and harmless to human body.

o Environment-friendly, energy-saving, and in strict
compliance with the national standards and
requirements of environmental protection.

Durable, easy to maintain and comfortable to use.

ENERGY SAVING,
EMISSIONS REDUCTION AND
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Times Property adheres to the concept of green building
development and does its best to provide the public with
building products that are safe, conducive to living and
environmental friendly. The Company also integrates
environmental protection concepts into its products and
services. At the same time, the Company also actively adopts
measures to minimise the adverse impact on the environment
caused by daily operation and properly treats the ecological
environment that people rely on for living.
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6.1

6.2

Environmental Management Policy

Times Property attaches importance to environmental
protection, energy saving and emission reduction
work. We constantly improve relevant institutional
development, by formulating and implementing
policies and systems such as the “Energy Saving
Standard of Times Property” (B {tihZE= &g T 1E
ZXE)) and “List of Times Property’s Environmental
Factors (Office, Real Estate Projects, Engineering and
Security)” KFFRMERERZFTERAE - BRIA
B - Ti2%8 - 2% %8))) successively.

During the reporting period, Times Property has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Company in relation
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes.

At the same time, the Company also focuses on
green building design to produce environmentally
friendly products. Currently, the following projects of
the Company have been granted the green building
design logo:

o Time Bridges (Zengcheng) (115 5 L BB %)

o Times King City (Guangzhou Nancun) (E/)NF

REARUER)

. Times King City (Shunde) Phase | ([B728 A48
Ik — )

° Times Horizon District 1A (Guangzhou

Huangpu) (BN & A RE1AR)

Environmental Management Measures
In the course of business operations, Times Property
also actively implements policies and measures to
reduce the impact of its business on the ecological
environment. These policies and measures include:

Greenhouse gas management and energy-saving

measures

° Upon their departure, staff members should
timely turn off the lights of the office area and
check, from time to time, whether the lights
and equipment are turned off in conference
rooms.

° Upon the completion of their work, staff
members should turn off their computers and
monitors.
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Meetings held 30 minutes before or after the
completion of work should be adjusted by the
reception and arranged to take place in the
same floor of a building.

When staff members are off duty, the security
should patrol every thirty minutes and turn off
air conditioning, lighting, water dispensers and
photocopiers in areas without staff presence.

Staff members should improve their work
efficiency and control unnecessary overtime
hours. In summer, individual colleagues who
need to work overtime should register at the
reception and obtain an air cooler.

All electrical appliances should be set to the
standby or energy-saving mode.

The office area should be installed with energy-
saving lights, with consideration made to
maximising the application of energy-saving
measures to the renovation in other aspects of
electricity consumption.

Energy-saving air conditioning, appliances
and equipment for water supply and drainage
should be used.

Scientific management should take place for
electricity consumption facilities such as public
lighting and elevators in order to conserve
electricity, with old facilities to be replaced in a
timely manner.

Efforts should be made to promote energy
saving, including organising thematic activities
and quizzes with prize, spreading energy-
saving knowledge, conducting questionnaire
surveys and providing energy-saving awards.

Thematic energy-saving activities: Energy-saving
plans should be formulated corresponding to
specific themes, with effective energy-saving
measures in place to complete energy-saving
tasks within a clear timeline.
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Emissions reduction

Reduce the dust on the construction site
by adopting measures such as fence, water
sprinkling and floor hardening.

Manage the roads and car parks in the
properties scientifically, to reduce the
greenhouse gas emissions from vehicles.

Pay attention to indoor ventilation when using
photocopiers, printers and fax machines and
avoid direct exposure to radiation and strong
light to reduce ozone emission.

Pay attention to indoor ventilation when using
air conditioning and regularly check the air
conditioning to prevent freon leakage.

Dispose of waste lamps and bulbs scientifically
to prevent the leakage of harmful gases.

Improve the service efficiency of paint, diesel,
lubricants, welding and other materials and
improve ventilation to reduce the emission of
greenhouse gases.

Use emission-dedicated air passages and
exhaust pipes for spare diesel generators.

Choose low-toxicity pesticides and rodenticides
and control operational hours, when the
property management companies are cleaning
the environment and exterminating pests.

Water resources management and sewage

reduction

Regularly clean and disinfect sewers and
use non-toxic detergents in line with national
requirements.

Build sedimentation tanks, grease traps,
debris tanks and septic tanks to process
construction site wastewater and domestic
sewage to a level that meets the standard,
before discharging such water into the central
processing facilities of urban domestic sewage.
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Processing of hazardous and non-hazardous

wastes

Provide categorised processing and
comprehensive utilisation for waste paper, ink,
toner, computer consumables, lamps, light
bulbs and other wastes, to reduce emission.

Implement “Green Office” measures for
environmental protection, including promoting
paperless office, double-sided printing, setting
up collection stations for recycled paper, and
establishing the “Replacing the Old with the
New” policy for office supplies.

The earthworks generated by construction
shall be transported to dedicated places for
disposal.

Categorise construction waste residues and
such other wastes for centralised storage;
upon the completion of construction, timely
collect and transport the wastes to the
designated site for construction wastes.

Collect and centralise wastes (such as
domestic garbage and food waste) of
construction workers and send the wastes
to the municipal sanitation department for
comprehensive processing.

Collect, centralise and categorize wastes, such
as domestic garbage.
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SOCIAL WELFARE AND CHARITY

Guangzhou Times Property Charity Fund is one of the first
charitable foundations initiated by a real estate developer in
the PRC. In the charity principle of “Truth, Goodness, Beauty
and Happiness”, Times Property Charity Fund advocates
“the responsibility of a corporate citizen”, and promotes the
charity value of “Gain Love through Action". The Fund has
pioneered the public welfare practice of the new era, featuring
“the combination of material support with cultural elements”,
to help reshape life and the development of civilisation and
spread a “loving” image for social welfare.

Times Property Charity Fund has the policy to understand
the needs of communities, to promote development of urban
culture and support charities and charitable events, including
the establishment of one rehabilitation building (for children’s
special education of an orphanage), two general hospitals
and 13 hope primary schools, and held nearly 500 charity
events. The fund has also helped more than 3,000 cataract
patients regain their sight and 30,000 students with financial
difficulties to complete their studies. Furthermore, the fund
has built and operated the Times Property Art Museum as a
centre to promote the development of urban culture and art
with local characteristics. In total, the Fund has donated over
RMB300 million.

Three objectives of the public welfare strategies of Times
Property:

° To fulfill corporate social responsibility: The Company
will actively assume its corporate social responsibility
and stimulate more action for public welfare.

° To improve the public welfare influence: The Company
will improve the credibility of public welfare to gain
the trust of more people and their participation in the
charitable events of the fund.

° To build a convenient platform for public welfare: The
Company will start with its staff and apply the Internet
to public welfare, in a bid to build a more convenient
platform for public welfare.
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Donating RMB2.4 million to support 30 June
“Guangdong Poverty Relief Day” (BFR & 7K B).

Investing a total of RMB10 million to support targeted
projects for poverty relief.

Donating RMB33 million to build the Times Property
Love Building in ZhonglLuoTan Hospital ($25% & 2&fx)
and the Times Property Teaching Building of ZhuLiao

Kindergarten (77#+4h 52 ).

Donating RMB15 million to build a rehabilitation
building for children’s special education at Guangzhou
City Social Welfare Institute (5N 77t € & F1Jf5).

Donating RMB30 million to the Southern Business
Education Fund (AR B E%) to support the
education programme of Nanhai District, Guangzhou
City.

Community investment and public welfare:

Donating RMB1 million to support the scoliosis
treatment programme under XinMiao Scheme (¥ &t
).

Donating RMB1.15 million to establish an arts fund
for children with special needs, and hosting various
activities for such children with Children’s Palace
Guangzhou (BN A EF=).

Donating RMB3 million to establish the Times Property
Fund for Postgraduate Students and Lecturers of
South China Normal University.
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° Donating RMB3 million for constructing the multi-
purpose hall of Teaching Building No.1 of Guangdong
University of Foreign Studies and its education
development.

° Donating RMBS3 million to establish the Times Property
Fund for Teachers and Students of ZhiXin High School
EET ).

Volunteer services

Times Property actively encourages and supports staff
participation in volunteer service activities. It has organised
staff volunteers to enter the communities under the Company
to carry out various activities, such as visiting elderly
singletons, environmental protection and holiday care. By the
end of 2016, more than 300 people had participated in such
activities.
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To the shareholders of Times Property Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Times
Property Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 128 to 286, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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To the shareholders of Times Property Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on

the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

BREZEE

Key audit matter

REEZFRMAEERRELZZEANSK

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FENEATE ([FE ) L& E

Land appreciation tax of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

BEEEAGGTEAMA T EER ([ LR ER]) - T
REEERESEMEXRERBZTHEAIRNSARES
HEERMEREMRENBERELRELGERFE - B
REWIRENBERAN TR ERB AR RBHGHEE
E o RESBARENSLENSEARTR - MEMZE
B STEEREIR A IR E R < SRR

ERBRBERAZEPHRERMEI0N2TA -

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in
Mainland China which is calculated based on management’s
best estimates of the taxable amount of each of the
Group’s property development projects according to their
understanding of the prevailing requirements of the relevant
tax laws and regulations of the PRC. The actual land
appreciation tax liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The final outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and any
differences will impact the land appreciation tax expenses
and the related provision in the period in which the
differences realise.

The related disclosures are included in notes 10 and 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BRI EB IR QB F R 2 BRI B8 12 E R B 1+ 138
BEFE - oM EHEEEBAANEAEERERR - 18
MERABBERNBESE  THA L HEERREES
R HPITMEBREAUBBRELNEBRELSTAE

We involved our internal tax specialists to test the LAT
calculation prepared by management, analysed and
evaluated the estimates and assumptions used by
management, such as the appreciation amounts of each
property development projects, and assessed the adequacy
of the LAT provision. We also considered the appropriateness
of the relevant disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements.
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To the shareholders of Times Property Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

BREZEE REZPRMEEERERSENARN
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
B EEEREE

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

ARE)ABIAEIEER AT e IR BRI AE A AR A A
BENERT TAERSRERIAEEE - EXEEEHE
2 SRR R R FE AR F 8O 7 BE B [ Jo /K P A R R SR B
BREIKRS - BER THANEEHREENDE -

‘LﬁEEFI%XEIW%WEAﬂEEMQAﬁEﬁ
BERBEREMEEGANESRETENB AR RN
Hﬁﬁmﬂgﬂﬁ%% B B E AR -

BRARBEIHALZEMHERERME20A -

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

Deferred tax liabilities mainly resulted from the temporary
differences as a result of fair value adjustments arising
from acquisition of subsidiaries, revaluation of the Group’s
investment properties and taxes on undistributed profit of
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, which involve management’s
significant assumptions or judgements.

The related disclosures are included in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

122 IMUHEZRARLF 2016 FERE

BT P AR AR B 18 MR HIRIETR IR - RIFE2EE
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HRIRENE - B MR E S EMEFRERB EENERTURA MK
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We performed procedures on understanding of the process
and controls over deferred tax. We re-calculated the
deferred tax balances by reference to the local tax laws and
regulations. We evaluated management’s assumptions to
determine the probability that deferred tax assets recognised
will be recovered through future taxable profits, which
is estimated based on the expected revenue and costs
generated by the Group’s property development projects.
We also assessed whether such estimated profits will be
sufficient for the recoverability of the deferred tax assets.
We also involved our tax specialists to evaluate the Group’s
current tax planning strategies and to assess whether the
assumptions and methodology used to determine the tax
positions were consistently applied.
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To the shareholders of Times Property Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

BREZEE REZPRMEEERERSENAN
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
WekEh & 2 Al

Acquisition of subsidiaries

REBE-Z—RF+-_A=+—BLFE FEEELE
SETR/EBAHNETIE - AUXZREFENFS
FNAR B MR M FEST ©

ZEWRBFREAKEMTBEKN - WHhBRBERBER
DECHERFIEG - BINEEER BB E R EEE 7 &
MEERBERRERHNAAEE  ERFRZERBR -

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
undertook certain acquisitions which were determined by
the directors as business combinations. Details of these
acquisitions are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

These acquisitions are material to the Group and involve
significant judgement in relation to the purchase price
allocation. Management were assisted by external valuation
specialists in determining the fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities at acquisition dates which involves a
number of assumptions.

RAIEZRERFBFE (AP ER) () ESTRENSEE -
(REEBMEAMAFWEFTENS B LR B %
ER IS PTRABANE ; (iFHEPTRBEE LB ERH
A (vRHE A BRI EE R A ERE TS A EHEENAAE
EARERBEARBOER (v EEREZREINEBGE
BFETHENEREFTEN - RV)BHEER2EHBR
B BE EMRMNHETT AR E KB AR RRRETEZ
EMPBEEENRABNARER -

HIEHER AR B
/%0

BRI EITHRBTRENHEES R

Our audit procedures include, among others: (i) evaluated
the appropriateness of the accounting treatment; (i) obtained
from management the respective agreements relating to
these acquisitions and agreed the payment of purchase
consideration to the terms as set out in these agreements; (iii)
evaluated the identification of acquired assets and liabilities;
(iv) assessed the fair values of the identified assets and
liabilities against available market data and our understanding
of the acquirees’ businesses; (v) evaluated the competency
and objectivity of the external valuation specialists appointed
by the Group to perform the valuations; and (vi) involved our
valuation specialists to assist us in assessing the fair values
of such acquired assets and liabilities by considering the
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies adopted and
the assumptions used by the Group.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosure in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements in respect of these
acquisitions.
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To the shareholders of Times Property Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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To the shareholders of Times Property Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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To the shareholders of Times Property Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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To the shareholders of Times Property Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lau Kin Yu.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

27 February 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HEZZE—"Ft+ZHA=1+—"HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2016
A —ThF
2016 2015
Bz AR¥FT AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
WA REVENUE 5 16,206,451 13,638,163
SHEMA Cost of sales (11,956,202) (10,091,717)
EF Gross profit 4,250,249 3,546,446
= PN Other income and gains 5 362,900 130,376
$HE RS HERER A Selling and marketing costs (657,499) (487,988)
TTHEFSE Administrative expenses (537,144) (342,988)
HEmAx Other expenses (84,164) (49,105)
BB KA Finance costs 7 (239,857) (175,131)
FE(EHE R E A& EEBam  Share of profits and losses of
associates and joint ventures 66,090 (298)
ML AT RIS PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 3,160,575 2,621,312
FriSEiFx Income tax expense 10 (1,178,176) (1,070,244)
FERHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,982,399 1,551,068
T & IR - Attributable to:
RABIER A Owners of the Company 1,955,020 1,420,590
eI Non-controlling interests 27,379 130,478
1,982,399 1,551,068
EATEBREREEA EARNINGS PER SHARE
EiEERAER ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY 12
HK Basic AR¥113% AR#E825
RMB113 cents RMBB82 cents
e Diluted AR¥107% AREET45
RMB107 cents RMB74 cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCO
HE2ZT—RF+ZH=+—HILFZ Year ended 31 December 2016

—B-RE —ThF
2016 2015
AREFr AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,982,399 1,551,068
Hitt2HEEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
REERRGETSEEER Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified
HEMEEEE : to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
BMEBINETEHE N Z 58 Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (355,367) (259,081)
FEHMZ2EEBR OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR (355,367) (259,081)
FEXHERAEE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 1,627,032 1,291,987
TS IBREG Attributable to:
KAEER A Owners of the Company 1,599,653 1,161,509
Bl g T Non-controlling interests 27,379 130,478
1,627,032 1,291,987
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
—E—XNFt+ZH=+—H 31 December 2016

—E-RF —T—h%F
2016 2015
i AREFTT ARKEFor
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - WENEE Property, plant and equipment 13 1,241,692 1,005,291
TN A E KA Prepaid land lease payments 14 2,215,923 1,545,738
EE Investment properties 15 1,598,076 1,352,680
kS Goodwill 16 47,230 —
HEtEmpEE Other intangible assets 5,836 -
RELTENERS Interests in joint ventures 17 2,331,872 190,708
BN B RERS Interests in associates 18 388,652 49,471
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments 19 546,558 82,018
R TRE = Deferred tax assets 20 351,484 276,951
TENFIE ek Prepayments, deposits and
HoAth & IR IR other receivables 24 1,707,506 612,531
JSEMBE ELLRR Total non-current assets 10,434,829 5,115,388
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEf TR E K IE Prepaid land lease payments 14 268,523 -
Gk Properties under development 21 28,724,551 20,103,866
S THEEHENE Completed properties held for sale 22 3,977,431 3,439,256
U E 5318 Trade receivables 23 2,578,562 1,977,560
TEFRIE e R Prepayments, deposits and
H A fEWRIAR other receivables 24 9,604,119 5,619,077
EU A E D ERFIE Amounts due from joint ventures 25 658,593 207,153
JEUES &N RIHY FOE Amounts due from associates 26 421,647 351,610
TR Tax prepayments 27 539,945 307,145
R HIRITER Restricted bank deposits 28 2,958,017 3,907,868
HeRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 8,922,727 4,841,360
MBNEEERE Total current assets 58,654,115 40,754,895
RBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BB SFEREE Trade and bills payables 29 3,195,843 3,714,873
E b e sk IE K FERT R IR Other payables and accruals 30 26,383,573 14,671,276
A EDERNFIE Amounts due to joint ventures 25 92,337 -
STRRITERNEMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 31 1,956,074 359,114
JE SRR Tax payable 27 1,450,197 1,239,114
BB EERE Total current liabilities 33,078,024 19,084,377
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 25,576,091 20,770,518
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
REERRDAR CURRENT LIABILITIES 36,010,920 25,885,906
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
—E—XRE+=-A=+—H 31 December 2016

s —ThF
2016 2015
Wt AR¥FT ARETFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EEHABERRBAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 36,010,920 25,885,906
FREEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FFERITER R EAMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 31 18,532,468 15,331,068
AR ES Convertible bonds 32 312,562 277,931
EIETIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 20 974,958 1,018,912
ERBAIGEERE Total non-current liabilities 19,819,988 16,627,911
FEE Net assets 16,190,932 9,257,995
E= EQUITY
NNEEE AL Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
%N Share capital 33 135,778 135,778
& Reserves 35 8,996,228 6,963,950
9,132,006 7,099,728
IS Non-controlling interests 7,058,926 2,158,267
R 4ATE Total equity 16,190,932 9,257,995
il 4+RBR
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Jimin
3 3
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZ T —R"F+_-_A=1+—HI-%E Year ended 31 December 2016
L 2N
Attributable to owners of the Gompany
\ _ HEhe ] ‘ ) 3%’%&’% .
Rt REGEEE  @ARR  ERERE  DEE ERER  WRNE et i R
Share  Contribu- Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium ted Capital suplus  translation  Retained controling Total
captal  account surplus Tesene funds Tesene profits Totl  interests equity
NEEFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO — RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB0OO0  AMB0O0  AMB0O0  ARMB'000
(H#33) (Wisa)  (Wisqe) (Wis)
(note 33) (note 35(b))  (note 35(c))  (note 35(c))
R-E-RF-A-H At1 January 2015 135,778 1,418,651 8113 413184 465543 (48281) 3045200 5438217 278838 5,717,005
EEHE Proftfo the year - - - - - - 1420500 1420500 190478 1551068
EREfEAEE Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - [259081) - [50081) - 50081)
ERRENAEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - [50081) 1420500 1161500 130478 1,291,987
ERTRELNES(HE)  Transferto resene funds ote 35() - - - - 08870 - (08810) - - -
SRR LA Capital contouton by
non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - T49700 749,700
JALENBLTER Partal disposal of interests
(TEXZDEE) in subsidiaries without loss of control - - - 1,018,118 - - - 1018118 997,924 2,016,042
HE-BHELT Disposal of a subsiary - - - - - - - - (156) (156)
W —BsHRES Acqistion of a non-controling interest - - - o) - - - 210,981 1483 (260499)
BER-E-MERERS Final 2014 didend deckred - ) - - - - - i) - i)
RZE-RETZR=1-H At 31 December 2015 135,778 1,171,516 813 1160321 67443 (B07.36)° 4206949 7,099,728 2158267 9,257,995
* ZERBEVIEGEMBRR KRGS FE - * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
KLREE AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
EERS #2k
ke RftEEE AABH  EREE MEE  ERBE BEAR a3t B EaAE
Share  Contribu- Statutory ~ Exchange Non-
Share  premium ted Capital ~ surplus translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account  surplus  reserve funds  reserve profits Total interests equity
AREFL AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETE AREFR AREFL AREFT ARETn ARETZ
RMB000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W) (Hisa)  (Wisqe) (Ws)
(note 33) (note 35(b))  (note 3a(c))  (note 35(cl)
RIE-TETZE=t-B 31 December 2015 and
R=E-~E-A-H 1 January 2016 135,778 1,171,516 8113 1,160,321 674413  (307,362) 4256949 7099728 2,158,267 9,257,995
ERflE Proft for the year - - - - - - 1955020 1,955,020 21379 1,982,399
EREf2EER Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - (355,37 - (355,37) - (355,37)
Fg %@W?@%ﬁ Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (35367 1955020 1599653 27379 1,627,082
HEZRENIA () Transfertoreserve funds (note 35(0) - - - - 25589 - (215589) - - -
SERRELE Caplal contribution by non-controling
shareholders - - - - - - - - 2,055,700 2,055,700
IrtENBLAER Partial disposal of interests in subsidiaries
(TE%nsE) without loss of control - - - 0% - - - TIT039 2875217 3,592,316
YEHELR Acquisifon of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 51453 51453
B RES Acquistion of a non-controling nterest - - - (15040 - - - (150400 (40000 (19,040)
EH Z3AREEAMRE  Dividend paid to anon- oontrol\ingshareholder - - - - - - - - (105,150)  (105,150)
PER-E-TERERA(HE11) Final 2015 dividend declared (note 11) - (269374) - - - - - (269374) - (269374)
RIERETZAZT-R AT Deoemter 2016 B8 oM BMF 1SR 802 (6R7AF 560 91006 7096 16,9098
* ZERBERIEGEMBRRAKR PGS FEE - * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
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an\ IE/%UH:E%
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(2T RNFT-HA=1T—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2016

=EB-AF “T-AF
2016 2015
Btat AR¥FT AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RETHFEBHNRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B B¢ AT A Profit before tax 3,160,575 2,621,312
TEE - Adjustments for:
BERA Finance costs 7 239,857 175,131
FEIEEEE R A R Share of profits and losses of
AEbFEER associates and joint ventures (66,090) 298
HRITFSHA Bank interest income 5 (46,835) (19,783)
e Depreciation 6 90,013 78,896
M E A Amortisation of intangible assets 6 3,603 -
BIEHENYEE L Gain on transfer from properties held
WEMENW R for sale to investment properties 6 (189,522) -
WEWME QR BENEES Changes in fair value of
investment properties 6 (15,070) (14,250)
HEME  BEK Loss on disposal of items of
HETEE A E1R property, plant and equipment 6 863 1,054
HE—FMEARIMUEZE  Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 5 - (12)
& — & R R ESE Loss on disposal of an associate 6 10,242 -
ARRESRNITETEES  Changes in fair value of
AREENE the derivative component of
the convertible bonds 32 4,388 (63,033)
3,192,024 2,779,613
B T ETE (Increase)/decrease in prepaid land
(=), w lease payments (17,802) 963,093
F IR Y ZEIE N Increase in properties under
development (6,055,772) (781,801)
BB THEHEHNENMEEN  Increase in completed properties
held for sale (738,653) (1,661,983)
JENE 5 I N Increase in trade receivables (567,136) (752,683)
FENFIE - B2k Increase in prepayments, deposits
H b FE U FRIELE hN and other receivables (4,256,070) (3,679,239)
FEUE & (> B R FRIBIE AN Increase in amounts due from
joint ventures (451,440) (207,153)
JE LB R B A SR IR AN Increase in amounts due from
associates (70,037) (129,500)
BB S8 M EE (Decrease)/increase in trade and
CRA), /10 bills payables (556,902) 137,060
FERT & & SR FRIAIE N Increase in amounts due to
joint ventures 92,337 -
HENFEIER Increase in other payables and
& FRIALE AN accruals 10,653,789 1,298,253
SR HISRITIF IR Decrease/(increase) in restricted
S/ (3B ) bank deposits 949,851 (1,216,020)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2 NFT+ZA=+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2016

—E-AF —T-RF
2016 2015
Htat AR¥FT AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
GES (RIS Cash generated from/(used in)
operations 2,174,189 (8,250,360)
B FE Interest received 5 46,835 19,783
[SENEESS Interest paid (1,453,332) (1,083,408)
AT ERER Corporate income tax paid (813,986) (523,900)
BT b igER Land appreciation tax paid (512,471) (405,310)
KEEBEAN Net cash flows used in operating
WemEFH activities 558,765 (5,243,195)
REZHFSNESHE  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BEYYE  WMERRMBER Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (79,568) (79,490)
BEIHDERE Purchase of available-for-sale
investments (451,242) (62,018)
HEWE  HMENFZEER Proceeds from disposal of items
KPS IR of property, plant and equipment 148 -
AEERETE Capital injection in joint ventures (745,000) (165,512)
Y RE B8 2 7] Acquisition of subsidiaries 37(A) (40,352) (398,431)
WM B AR (TNMEABZER)  Acquisition of subsidiaries that are
not businesses 37(B) (657,999) (75,909)
WEE A E 5 Acquisition of joint ventures (1,956,224) -
g — = A R Acquisition of an associate (40,774) -
U g —TE IR I A Acquisition of a non-controlling interest (19,040) (269,498)
HE—RHEAT Disposal of a subsidiary - 508
& — g R A Disposal of an associate 36,000 -
HE—MEaEhE Disposal of a joint venture 700,000 -
BT IRFEIR B O Prepayment of equity investments (1,135,802) (559,916)
WEEEFE R Net cash flows used in investing
WemEFH activities (4,389,853) (1,610,266)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HE_ZT—RNF+-A=1+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2016

AL —=—hfF
2016 2015
Btat AR¥FT AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
METEFTISNIRELKE  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
IR R T E Capital contribution by non-controlling
shareholders 1,600,000 749,700
T SRITE N New interest-bearing bank loans
REMER and other borrowings 9,122,322 11,419,325
FTEERITER Repayment of interest-bearing
R E SRR HIE bank loans and other borrowings (4,742,076) (7,206,618)
Hx Sk Dividend distribution (269,374) (247,135)
DHEWB A RED Proceeds from partial disposal of
(Iﬁ%j&T HIHE) B interests in subsidiaries without
FriSs0a loss of control 3,592,316 2,016,042
FEFEAR AR R B EK Advances from non-controlling
shareholders 400,000 2,221,700
(B IEIEARAR R SRIA Repayment to non-controlling
shareholders (696,000) -
BEEBEANRENE Net cash flows generated from
pEiL financing activities 9,007,188 8,953,014
BERBSESEYILMELSE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,058,570 2,099,553
FYRE MREEED Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 4,841,360 2,725,737
EXFFHHTE  FHE Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net 22,797 16,070
FRAERAEEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR 8,922,727 4,841,360
ReRBSZEYEEH ST ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
& RIBITER Cash and bank balances 28 11,880,744 8,749,228
W ZIREBIERITIE R Less: Restricted bank deposits 28 (2,958,017) (3,907,868)
RENREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 8,922,727 4,841,360
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RRARRZZETZLF+—A+HEBRER
EHREERERREARASHE MK
YR—EERREREELR  BHER
Times Property (Holdings) Co., Limited °
BER_ZZENF-A-THEBERBH
—IERFRREE - AR A8 BN B Times
Property (Holdings) Co., Limited & & /& i
RimEZERBER DA - M =Rt
/& Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box
1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands °

RRBR—EREERAT - RAFE
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L —NE+=A=+—H 31 December 2016

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14
November 2007 under the name of Times Property (Holdings)
Co., Limited as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands.
Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 24 January 2008,
the Company’s name was changed from Times Property
(Holdings) Co., Limited to Times Property Holdings Limited.
The registered office address is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KYI-1108, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were mainly involved
in property development, property leasing and property
management in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd.
(“Asiaciti”), which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and the ultimate holding company is
Renowned Brand Investments Limited (‘Renowned Brand”),
which was incorporated in the BVI. Renowned Brand is
wholly owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (“Mr. Shum”), the
founder of the Company and the Group.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on 11
December 2013.



BAFEERAR Y RE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—XFt+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2016

1. OAFIREERFH(E) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONT’D)
BEMBLATNER Information about subsidiaries
KATFEMBARIAERWNT : Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:
KARIER
SRR, BRTEE/ EHES
REENHH TR Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEER
218 establishment registered B M  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BHEEBRAR ([EH]) (F) AEARRES BETT 100 - REBR
Wisdom Sharp Investments Limited BVI usD3 Investment holding
(“Wisdom Sharp”) (note ())
Millon Sensor Management Limited KREARES E - 100 H®EER
(I Million Sensor ) (iz(a)) BVI USsD1 Investment holding
Million Sensor Management Limited
(“Million Sensor’) (note (a))
Grand Highway International Ltd. HEEARES e - 100 H®EZR
(I Grand Highway]) (f{3t(a)) BVI USD1 Investment holding
Grand Highway International Ltd.
(“Grand Highway’) (note (a))
Venus Tower Limited([ Venus Tower |) (fiE(a) RBERRHES 1T - 100 AR
Venus Tower Limited BVI USD1 Investment holding
(“Venus Tower") (note ()
BERRERRR([RERR]) (M) AEARRES i - 100 RERR
Super Best Global Limited BVI usD1 Investment holding
(“Super Best’) (note (a))
BRIERARL R ([ ERER]) (i) HEEBRRES e - 100  H®EER
Clear Strength Holdings Limited BVI usD1 Investment holding
(“Clear Strength”) (note (a))
BRBRAR([BE])(F) KEBARRES (e - 100 RERR
August Skill Limited (“August Skill’) (note ()) BVI usD1 Investment holding
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—Z—XF+=-H=+—H 31 December 2016

— =<

1. LFREEEHGE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONT’D)
ERKBEATNER(E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
KARER
BT/ RY BRTEE/ BRAML
REENGH BN Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company IEER
£%8 establishment registered B B  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
ER(BR)ERERAFER]) (i) BB 900,000%7T - 100  ®EER
Wah Tai (H.K.) Development Limited Hong Kong HK$900,000 Investment holding
(‘Wah Tai") (note (a))
EARRREABRARA(EERARE]) (i) B 10,0007 - 100 REZRK
Hong Kong Times Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding
(“Hong Kong Times Investments’) (note (a))
BRLEBXERARLA(LEEE ) (Mia) A 10,0007T - 100 REER
Steelmine Minerals (H.K.) Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding
(“Steelmine Minerals”) (note (a))
B ERR AR (2% ])(Hia) B 61,782,691 - 100 H®EZRR
Profit City Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$61,782,691 Investment holding
(“Profit City”) (note (a))
JKEBR ARk ]) (i) BB 1T - 100 HREER
Times Bilion Limited (“Times Billion”) (note (a)) Hong Kong HKS1 Investment holding
RRBRAR(H%]) (M) BB T - 100 RERR
Precision Time Limited (“Precision Time”) (note ()) Hong Kong HKS1 Investment holding
BEARLR([HE]) (M) BB T - 100 RERR
Ocean Times Inc Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Investment holding
(“Ocean Times’) (note (a))
RMEEARAR (RN 1) () A 2B - 100  REER
Silver Boat Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding

(“Silver Boat") (note (a))
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—XFt+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2016

1. LFREEEHEGE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONT’D)
ERNBATNER (& Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
KRR
BMAL/RY BRTEE/ BHRADL
REENGH T A Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEER
= establishment registered B B  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BMmERGEREERAR([HAEE]) (F0)d) E/hEN 83,000,000 T - 100  REZRR
Guangzhou Times Property Group Co., Ltd. PRC/ USD83,000,000 Investment holding
(“Times Group’) (note (b)(d)) Mainland China
BMTRRCEHEREERAR((RALELE ) (a0) P&/ wEKM  ARK250,000,0007 - 100  RERR
Guangzhou Times Enterprise Real Estate PRC/ RMB250,000,000 Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China

(“Times Real Estate”) (notes (a)(c))

BMTERBEREERAR(EMNEE ) (FE)0) mE/RERS  ARK120,000,0007T - 100 MERBRREZR

Guangzhou Times Shengyu Investment PRC/ RMB120,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd. ("Guangzhou Shengyu’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China and investment holding

ERERBERHEREERAT ((RRBR))(He0) TE/$FHERE  ARES0,000,0007T - 100 R

Guangdong Times Shengyu Real Estate PRC/ RMB80,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China

(“Guangdong Shengyu’) (notes (a)(c))

BNTERBECEERARAR(ENBE)) (M) +E/+ERNE  ARE11,000,0007T - 100 BERR

Guangzhou Times Linli Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB11,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Linli") (notes (a) (c)) Mainland China

RERFEEREBRAF ([ HEPH]) (i e)c) hE/HRERE  AR¥10,000,0007T - 100 MERE

Zhuhai Zhongzhu Century Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Zhongzhu') (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China

HRBFREERAR((HAET ) (i) hE/hER  ARES50000007T - 100 #%mE

Fogang Guanheng Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMBS5,000,000 Property development
(‘Fogang Guanheng’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—XFt+=H=+—H 31 December 2016

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

1. 2AFRKSETEHGR) 1.

BEMBERRNER (&

Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)

KARER
KL,/ R BRTEE/ BRAML
REENGH BN Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company IEER
£%8 establishment registered B B  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BLTRREFHELRERAF((HLMRED (i@ +E/REMNE  ARKS2,0000007T - 100  #MER%Z
Foshan Yudonglong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB32,000,000 Property development
(‘Foshan Yudonglong’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BNTRERMEBRAR([EMERE]) (HiE@)c) RE /BN AR364,307,7507T - 100 9ER%
Guangzhou Minhua Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB364,307,750 Property development
(“Guangzhou Minhua’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BRETKEERTRARAR(HRER]) (Miee)  #8E/HREKM  ARMS000,0007T - 100 EfERRIERE
Fogang Shengxin Water and Electricity PRC/ RMB3,000,000 Garden landscape design
Garden Engineering Co., Ltd. Mainland China and property decoration
(‘Fogang Shengxin’) (notes (a)(c))
Rk TRAR AR ([ MR ]) (Fte)() E/HERN  ARHS000,0007 - 100  #gEE
Fogang Times Bairui Decoration Engineering PRC/ RMB3,000,000 Property decoration
Co., Ltd. (‘Fogang Bairui") (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
LmRREEEEARAR (bl (@) hE/hERE  AR%10,000,0007 - 100 #EmE
Zhongshan Times Kaixuan Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(“Zhongshan Kaixuan”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BLTEESREERNEREERAR ME/RENE  AR30,000,0007 - 100 #EEE
([BLEEsE)) (e PRC/ RMB30,000,000 Property development
Foshan Nanhai Times Shengyu Real Estate Mainland China

Development Co., Ltd.
(‘Foshan Nanhai Shengyu”) (notes (a)(c))
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—XFt+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2016

1. LFREEEHEGE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONT’D)
ERNBATNER (& Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
KRR
BMAL/RY BRTEE/ BHRADL
REENGH T A Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company IEER
= establishment registered B B  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
RS EREBRAR ([ HRLE](Hia() E/HRERN  AR30,000,0007 - 100 #EEE
Fogang Times Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB30,000,000 Property development
(‘Fogang Real Estate’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BINRAEEREERAR(ENRA ) (FEa() hE/HERN  AR¥161,075,8007T - 6896 MEMAE
Guangzhou Donghe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB161,075,800 Property leasing
(“Guangzhou Donghe’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMmREEMRERAR ([ EMNEE ) (FEE)0) hE/hER  ARES3500,0007T - 100 SE&(
Guangzhou Ruixian Landscaping Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB3,500,000 Landscape architecture
(“Guangzhou Ruixian”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
HEMRREEREERAR ([ HEEE]) (HiE)0) hE/RENE  AR%50,000,0007T - 100 #EREE
Zhuhai Times Fengzhuo Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Fengzhuo”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BREERKEEEAR AR HEXE]) () E/HEME  ARE10,000,0007T - 100 #EHEE
Fogang Times Yongsheng Investment Co., Ltd PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(“Fogang Yongsheng”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BERPEEXERETLF(HETED (M) hE/hER  ARES000,0007T - 100 gmE
Fogang Zhongyi Asset Development Limited Liability PRC/ RMB8,000,000 Property development
Company (‘Fogang Zhongyi’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BT =KRERHERRERAR(HBURE]) (Mi@o) +E/REMNE  ARK48,000,0007T - 100 #EREE
Foshan Sanshui Yuhua Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB48,000,000 Property development
(“Foshan Yuhua’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 141



WS R MIEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

1. 2AFRKSETEHGR) 1.

BEMBERRNER (&

Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)

KARER
BT/ RY BRTER/ BRADL
REENGH BN Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company IEER
£%8 establishment registered B B  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BHTRAMEAEEARAT((RRNEER)) (Wite)e) &/ FEME AR%1255000007T - 100 #EERE
Guangzhou Times Property Management Co., Ltd. (‘Times ~ PRC/ RMB125,500,000 Property management
Property Management’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BN AXGHAERAR (BN ) (FEe)(C) E/RERN  ARE10,010,0007T - 100 RERR
Guangzhou Times Tianyi Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,010,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Tianyi") (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMPERERREBRAR ([EMNER]) (FE@E)0) hE/hER  AR50,000,0007T - 100 #mE
Guangzhou Times Hongtai Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Hongtai’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BINTEERERRAR(ENESR]) (HEa) E/RERN  AR20,000,0007T - 100 #MER%
Guangzhou Fujie Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB20,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Fujie”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BEMRSREARDA(EERER)) (M) E/RERN  ARS30,000,0007 - 100 %Rz
Qingyuan Rongjing Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB30,000,000 Property development
(“Qingyuan Rongjing’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BEDERFPHERENA(ERER]) (Wia () E/HERN  AR300,000,0007T - 100 #ERE
Qingyuan Xilong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB300,000,000 Property development
(“Qingyuan Xilong’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
FIUTEREHERSERARA(PLER]) (@)  FE/FEME  AR¥4L5,000,0007T - 100 #EEE
Zhongshan Wanlian Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB45,000,000 Property development
(“Zhongshan Wanlian”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—XFt+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2016

1. LFREEEHEGE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONT’D)
ERNBATNER (& Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
KRR
BMAL/RY BRTEE/ BHRADL
REENGH T A Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company IEER
= establishment registered B B  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
FIUTAREHEREERARA((PLXSRE) (Hit@c) — FE/FEME  AR¥10,000,0007T - 100 #EEE
Zhongshan Tianyue Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(“Zhongshan Tianyue”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BN ERERBR AR ([ EMNRE]) () R/ BN AR¥10,010,0007T - 70 BARR
Guangzhou Junbao Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,010,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Junbao”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMASEEBRAR(RNKR ) () hE/hER  AR%50,000,0007T - 0 WERE
Guangzhou Tianlang Trading Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Tianlang’) (notes (2)(c)) Mainland China
BNTEBHARMESRAR((EMEE)) (Wi@c)  FEB/FERE  AKE360,000,0007T - 9 MEFE
Guangzhou Panyu Nanying Property Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB360,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Nanying”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BINTRARMERAR(ENRE ) (HHa)(C) hE/ BN AR¥S1,000,0007T - 51 WEm%
Guangzhou Tianhe Construction Material Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB51,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Tianhe") (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMTERERZEBRAR (EMER]) (FE@E)0) hE/hER  AR%10,000,0007T - 100 ¥R
Guangzhou Times Zichen Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Zichen”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BERESEXERARLA(ERER ) (Mia() ME/RENE  AR%42,300,0007T - 100 #EREE
Guangdong Guangchang Industrial Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB42,300,000 Property development
(“Guangdong Guangchang’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
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£%8 establishment registered B B  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
WERBEMERRARAA(RERE]) (Ha)c) TE/FEME  AR¥43,8000007T - 100 %R
Zhuhai Jingrun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB43,800,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Jingrun’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
HEMEERHEREARAR ([ HEEE) (Wikee)  #E/FEme  AR¥S0,000,0007T - 100 ER%
Zhuhai Jiayu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Jiayu”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
WETHERNEREARAR((WEHE)) (Wkae)  FE/FEme  AR¥L0,000,0007T - 100 WERE
Zhuhai Shenghui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB40,000,000 Property development
(‘Zhuhai Shenghui’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
ROYRERHERLERAR(RYPERE) (W) +E/+ErM  ARES50,000,0007 - 100 #EEE
Changsha Meiguiyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Property development
(“Changsha Meiguiyuan’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BHTLAESERA ([ ENLH]) (HiHe)c) RE/HEME  ARE10,000,000T - 100 EEgE
Guangzhou Fengdu Trading Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Dormant
(“Guangzhou Fengdu’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMmEnE HERAR ([ EMER ) (FEE)c) hE/hERE  AR%10,000,0007 - 100 RERR
Guangzhou Zhuorui Trading Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Zhuorui’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BIITRERKFREERARA(HLET]) (M) RE/ BN ARE300,000,0007T - 100  H®EZER
Foshan Times Yongheng Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB300,000,000 Investment holding
(‘Foshan Yongheng”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
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incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company IEER
= establishment registered B B  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BNTEABEERERARN(BNZE]) (Faee) - FE/FERE  AKE120,000,0007T - 100 WERERER
Guangzhou Times Commercial Management PRC/ RMB120,000,000 Property leasing and
Co., Ltd. ("Guangzhou Zhide") (notes (a)(c)(e)) Mainland China management
BUTEEEENEERERLA(ZBER]) (Mite)) =B/ FEME  ARE50000007T - 100 #EEE
Foshan Zhide Zhengxing Property Management PRC/ RMB65,000,000 Property management
Co., Ltd. (“Zhide Zhengxing”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BNTEENEEEERAR(2ENE]) (Fa0) E/hER  AR%80,500,0007T - 100 ygER
Guangzhou Zhide Property Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB80,500,000 Property management
(“Zhide Property’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BNTZENRCEREERAR(ZBMNE ) (tee) +RE/ &Rt ARE10,100,0007T - 100 DERERER
Guangzhou Zhide Technology Business Incubator Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/ RMB10,100,000 Property leasing and
(“Zhide Technology”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China management
EMTRERRE B RERA R ([ENRE]) hE/HRENE  AR¥30,000,0007T - 55  WFHERER
(MEER)ICm) PRC/ RMB30,000,000 Property leasing and
Guangzhou Chengze Technology Business Incubator Co., Ltd  Mainland China management
(“Guangzhou Chengze’) (notes (a)(c)(f)
HEEERHEREARAG(HERR]) (HiEe(0) mE/RERN  ARES000,0007 - 100 MER%Z
Zhuhai Guoji Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB5,000,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Guoji”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMTRENEERERAR(ENRE ) (e  TE/$FERE  AE%300,000,0007T - 2 NEER
Guangzhou Tiansi Property Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB300,000,000 Property management
(“Guangzhou Tiansi") (notes (a)(c)(g)) Mainland China
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Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BENEHEZELARAR(EMNBEAZE)) (Wit@e) B/ FEmE  AKE350,000,0007T - 50  MERE
Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB350,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BUTEERHEREBRAT(HLEE) (WiEEc)  RE/+EME  ARE300,0000007T - 100 #EREE
Foshan Fengrui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB300,000,000 Property development
(‘Foshan Fengrui”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
PUTEREREREERAR((PLER]) (HEec) — FE/FEME  ARE250,000,0007T - 100  WERE
Zhongshan Hengsheng Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB250,000,000 Property development
(“Zhongshan Hengsheng’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
fILmIEEAENEHERRER LA E,/hER  AR1,200,000,0007 - 100 #ERE
(TLishZR7 ) (i (a)) PRC/ RMB1,200,000,000 Property development
Foshan Shunde Hongtaili Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.  Mainland China
(“Foshan Hongtaili") (notes (a)(c))
BMNmEEEnEERAR(TEMEE ) (M) ME/RENE  AR%10,000,0007T - 60 WER%
Guangzhou Zengyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Zengyuan’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMMERRHERLERAR(RMNER]) (FitE0)  +E/®ERM  ARKS800,000,0007T - 100 #mE
Guangzhou Fengtuo Property Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB800,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Fengtuo”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
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FLTERERERTARAR(HUFER)(HiE0)  FE/PEAE  AKR%50,0000007 - 100 Mm%
Foshan Chengtai Property Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Property development
(‘Foshan Chengtai”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
HEMHRREHEREERAR (KRR (Mie)(c)  RE/®EXE AR%1,100,000,0007T - 100 R
Zhuhai Jinrong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,100,000,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Jinrong’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMTEREEFHEREREERAR E/hER  AR%10,000,0007T - 100 EEgg
([ENEZE]) (a0 PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Dormant
Guangzhou Times Zhiye Real Estate Sales Agent Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(“Guangzhou Zhiye”) (notes (a)(c))
FLTRREBEHERRERAR(HLRH) () TE/FERE  AE%200,000,0007T - 100 WERZ
Foshan Times Rongjin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB200,000,000 Property development
(“Foshan Rongjin”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BNTHEABERERLAR(ENBER)) (Hi@e) &/ +Er  AKH10,000,0007T - 100 EERMRS
Guangzhou Linlibang Network Technology Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Information technology
(“Guangzhou Linlibang’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China service
WEMLERHEREERAR((KELE) (Wit@e)  FE/FERE  AKE1,000,0007T - 100 MER%Z
Zhuhai Hongjia Real Estate Development Co., Ltd PRC/ RMB1,000,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Hongjia") (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
FLTRRBREHEREERAR(HURR]) (60 &/ RERKE  ARK600,000,0007T - 100 WERE
Foshan Times Yujing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB600,000,000 Property development
(“Foshan Yujing’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BUTERERERERRAR ((HLER]) (MiEEcC)  RE/+ERML ARK%1,860,000,0007T - 51 WERE
Foshan Huatai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,860,000,000 Property development
(‘Foshan Huatai’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 147



BAFEERAR MY RE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—XFt+=H=+—H 31 December 2016

1. LFREEEHGE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONT’D)
BENMBARNER (& Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
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BENmoL i EREERAR(EMLY) (Hit@c)  FE/FERE  AKE800,000,0007T - 100 9%
Guangzhou Hongkai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB800,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Hongkai’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BNTHSEEREERAR((EMAR) (Wi@c) B/ FERmM  ARKE500,000,0007T - 60 MERE
Guangzhou Kaijun Real Estate Development PRC/ RMB500,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Kaijun’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BLTRRESEHEREERAR(HUSR)) (M@ +E/REMNE  ARB900,000,0007T - 60 MER%
Foshan Times Shengjing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/ RMB900,000,000 Property development
(‘Foshan Shengjing’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMNmsl &R ERBRAR(ENAE]) (HEa)c) E/HERN  AR10,000,0007T - 60 REZMR
Guangzhou Kaiheng Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Kaiheng”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
ENTERRRABRARN(EMBEER] (@) RE/ BN AR357,000,0007T - 60 MERE
Guangzhou Libaijia Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB357,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Libaijia”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMERREBRRR([RNER ) (HiHa)(0) hE/hERE  AR%10,000,0007 - 60 MEHERER
Guangzhou Jiayu Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property leasing and
(“Guangzhou Jiayu”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China management
KETEEEXERLA(HKERR]) (Mita)c) E/RERN  AR62,316,0007T - 80  MEHEE
Zhuhai Shengjia Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB62,316,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Shengjia’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
wETABHERERAA(HERE]) (@) hE /RN 8,500,000 T - 100 &Rz
Zhuhai Baisheng Clothing Co., Ltd. PRC/ USD8,500,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Baisheng”) (notes (a)(b)) Mainland China
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= establishment registered B B  Principal
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BMTRECEERERAR(EMNFE ) (FE)0) ME/RENE  AR%10,000,0007T - 100 REBR
Guangzhou Bingfeng Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Bingfeng”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BNTRREHERZARAR(ENRR ) (FiHe)c) — HE/®ERE  AR¥800,000,0007T - 51 WER%
Guangzhou Qijun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB800,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Qijun’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
HEBERREBRRR ([ HEER]) (M) E,/hER  AREB00,000,0007T - 625  REAER
Zhuhai Shunsheng Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB800,000,000 Investment holding
(“Zhuhai Shunsheng”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMTRARE  EERRHERAF E/HEM  AR200,000,0007T - 100 M
([EMNBE]) (M) PRC/ RMB200,000,000 Money lending
Guangzhou Times Rongxin Micro-credit Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(“Guangzhou Rongxin”) (notes (a)(c))
BITRRERREERDRA(HILER]) (M) mE/HERN  ARE10,000,0007 - 100  RERR
Foshan Hongtai Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(‘Foshan Hongtai”) (notes (2)(c)) Mainland China
HEBEREEERAR([HERRR) (Mia() hE/REN  ARE100,000,0007T - 100 #EREE
Zhuhai Xin Times Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB100,000,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Xinshidai”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
FLTRREBRNEREERAR ((HLBE]) (Hiec) &/ PERM ARE4600,000,0007 - 5 MERE
Foshan Times Hongyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB4,600,000,000 Property development
(“Foshan Hongyu”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
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BLTRRZREHEREERARN(HUER) (Mi@o) +E/REMN  AREB800,000,0007T - 85 WERE
Foshan Times Fuijin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB800,000,000 Property development
(“Foshan Fujin”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BLTARERHERZERAA(HLERE]) (M@0 +E/TEMNE  ARK10,000,0007T - 100 ER%
Foshan Baiyingda Real Estate Development PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Baiyingda”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
REDNERERRAR(RTHAKX]) (FHEE)c) E/hER  ARE950,000,0007T - 52 MER%
Dongguan Kaiye Investments Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB950,000,000 Property development
(‘Dongguan Kaiye”) (notes ()(c)) Mainland China
BNEENFERERAR(EMEE]) (Hit@)c) E/RERN  ARK9,000,0007T - 100  #MEEE
Guangzhou Wanning Property Management PRC/ RMB9,000,000 Property management
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Wanning’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
REBENXERERAR(RZEE]) (Mit@)c) RE/HRENE  ARE1,000,0007T - 100 WEEE
Dongguan Wanning Property Management PRC/ RMB1,000,000 Property management
Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Wanning”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
wamRENZERERAR(HERE]) (Fe)() E/RER AR #500,0007T - 100 #gER
Zhuhai Yuanxing Property Management PRC/ RMB500,000 Property management
Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Yuanxing’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
fLTIERARNEERERD E/RERE  ARE1,000,0007 - 100 MEEE
([BLEEEE]) (MEE)C )) PRC/ RMB1,000,000 Property management
Foshan Shunde Hetai Property Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(“Foshan Shunde Hetai") (notes (a)(c))
BMm R AR R AR ([ EANEE]) (FEE)c) hE/RERE  AR%10,000,0007 - 100  HEER
Guangzhou Jiesheng Investments Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Jiesheng”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
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BNTEREHEREERAR(EMER ) (M@ )  RE/+ERE ARK%1,000,0000007T - 60  MEME
Guangzhou Fusi Real Estate Development PRC/ RMB1,000,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd. ("Guangzhou Fusi’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMBREXERAR (BN ) (Hita() E/hER  ARE250,000,0007 - 60 MERH
Guangzhou Kuntai Industrial Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB250,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Kuntai’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
KETREEMERRERARA(WERE) Wa)  TE/FER  AE310,000,0007T - 60 YEEE
Zhuhai Changxin Real Estate Development PRC/ RMB310,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Changxin’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BEREZEHERAR ([ERERZ]) (HE)c) R/ RERE  AR¥10,000,0007T - 0 BREZEREBRE
Guangdong Junan Elevator Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Elevator installation and
(“Guangdong Junan”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China maintenance
ERENRABRARA(EREL]) (HEE)0) hE/hER  AR%10,000,0007T - 51 RERR
Guangdong Fukai Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangdong Fukai’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BLEEERSREERDA(BLEEE]) (HiEe)  FE/+EMNE ARE149,2537317 - 665  MEmHE
Foshan Xinglanwan Plaza Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB149,253,731 Property development
(“Foshan Xinglanwan’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BNTEEREZAGREAAA(ENEE]) (M) B/ PEXM AR#200,0007 - 100 PEHEZ
Guangzhou Longya Investment Consultation Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB200,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Longya’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BETNERHEREEROR(RERE]) (MEc)  +E/FERE AR¥1400,000,000T - 55 WERE
Dongguan Yujing Real Estate Development PRC/ RMB1,400,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd. ("Dongguan Yujing") (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
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BENTEHEIEHEREERAR((EMEA ) (Wk@c)  FE/FERmE  AR600,000,0007T - 60  WERE
Guangzhou Shichuang Real Estate Development PRC/ RMBE600,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Shichuang”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BMRHaR RS ARAR((ENRTEE]) (FitEc) P8/ PERE  ARK148,000,0007T - 100 ¥R
Guangzhou Keladini Clothing Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB148,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Keladini”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BRAFREBRAR([ERRE ) (FE)c) E/ERN  AR10,000,0007 - 100 HEZRR
Guangdong Baoquan Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangdong Baoquan’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BEMRERMEREARAR(FEEE) Wit@c)  RE/+EMM ARE164,000,0007T - 100 #%mE
Qingyuan Jiada Real Estate Development PRC/ RMB164,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd. (*Qingyuan Jiada”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BNTREERHERLERAR(RMNES]) (MiE0)  +E/+ERE  AK%10,000,0007T - 100 #mE
Guangzhou Junheng Real Estate Development PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd (‘Guangzhou Junheng’) (notes ()(c)) Mainland China
BETRAERREERAAIFEEER]) (M a)(0) E/HRERN  AR10,000,0007 - 100 HEZRR
Qingyuan Times Hongjing Investment PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. ("Qingyuan Hongjing’) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BN A% AR AR (MR ) () E/hER  ARE180,330,0007T - 100 R
Guangzhou Xiangjun Copper Industry Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB180,330,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Xiangjun”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
BNTERREGRAF(RNER]) (Ha)C) ME/HERN  AR10,000,0007 - 0 RERR
Guangzhou Junhao Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Junhao”) (notes (a)(c)) Mainland China
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The English names of certain group companies registered in
the PRC represent management’s best effort to translate their
Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Notes:

() The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries
were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

(b) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
laws of the PRC.

(c) Registered as domestic enterprises under the laws of the
PRC.

d The statutory financial statements of Times Group were

audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP.

©) BN T EEEEEEAR A F Guangzhou Zhide Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. changed its name into EM R
HEIB AR A A Guangzhou Times Commercial Management
Co., Ltd. on 23 August 2016.

( BN T EGBY) %# & 12 A R A 7 Guangzhou Chengze Property
Management Co., Ltd. changed its name into /M #AE
RIS #¥E 2B R A 7 Guangzhou Chengze Technology
Business Incubator Co., Ltd. on 9 November 2016.

(9) Guangzhou Junbao, a 70%-owned indirect subsidiary of
the Company, holds 60% equity interests in Guangzhou
Tiansi. The Group considers that it controls Guangzhou
Tiansi even though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights
in Guangzhou Tiansi because the Group can exercise the
power of control over Guangzhou Tiansi through its control
over Guangzhou Junbao.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which comprise all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, an available-for-sale
investment, the embedded financial derivative component of
the convertible bonds and certain other payables included in
the other payables and accruals, which have been measured
at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2016.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

() the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 155



BAFEERAR MY RE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—=

22 BRI RRNEEREE

—E——FRF T F

156

AEEERNAFEMEHRRARA T
Ha] AR ERT BRI H 3R 2R -

BRI REERE0% - REEE - BAGA
BB BmELERE125  AROIIMER

KB
H28FAEFI A
BRR B s R 2R
ERRLACHEN

B IS R F 145

Bl @Rt ERIF 15

EHEN
REEERIE16% R

GillsS gl

ER T
REEERIE16% R

GillsS gl

FMFIERTAR

RERHEAISTH
fETA

BERFRAE

KB ERE R

Bt
EEETEF
REEE

BBITE R
HEZ D%

BE LEILEY

BULHHE
Bax

ETHEBRI SRS
EAEETA

R _E R R] R AE AT R B X R

BRRELEANH

B/ 48R
-

R ERERARAT 2016 FERE

NE+—-A=+—H 31 December 2016

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11

IFRS 14
Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Amendments to
IAS 27

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations
Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements
Amendments to a number of IFRSs

The adoption of the above new and revised standards
has had no significant financial effect on these financial

statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.
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Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC 22

Amendments to IFRS 12
Included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 1
Included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 28
Included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

Leases?®

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses?

Transfers of Investment
Property?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

First-time Adoption of
International Financial
Reporting Standards?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, except IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers and IFRS 16 Leases the Group considers
that these new and revised IFRSs may result in changes
in accounting policies but are unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under IFRSs. In April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to
IFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure
a more consistent application when entities adopt IFRS
15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying the
standard. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January
2018, and is in the process of making an assessment on the
impact of the adoption of IFRS 15.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)
IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating
Leases - Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees - leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At
the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use
asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-
use asset meets the definition of investment property in IAS
40. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect
the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be
required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence
of certain events, such as change in the lease term and
change in future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
IAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January
2019 and is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon
adoption.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s interests in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associates or joint ventures, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s interests in associates or joint ventures.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

° its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the output

arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
the Group’s interest in a joint operation are accounted for in
accordance with the IFRSs applicable to the particular assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, an available-
for-sale investment, the embedded financial derivative
component of the convertible bonds and certain other
payables included in other payables and accruals at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Fair value measurement (Cont’d)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, properties under development, completed
properties held for sale, prepaid land lease payments,
financial assets, investment properties and deferred tax
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

@)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

M

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel

REMNEEERAE of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
B4 or
(b) Wz BFENTEAEENE (b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
f8 : conditions applies:

0] ZERMNAEEAR—5E () the entity and the Group are members of the
KA same group;

(ii) —AEEARS (AT B (ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
ERAIHAEBELFE(E chj — other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow

EERNELRR  HELQ
KERMERT)

(i) ERERAEEAR—F=7

(i)

subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of

G &M the same third party;

(iv) —REBAE=FEENSE (v)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
BEhE mE—EEEAESE and the other entity is an associate of the third
= HERBMNEENT entity;

(v) ERAAEENEAEES (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
AN ERAERERERAM the benefit of employees of either the Group or
7 BRI FEHE an entity related to the Group;

V)  ERR(EFTAAATIES
kAR

Vi) (@O)EATIAA TH E S HE

ﬁéﬁﬂ/%’ijﬁﬁa 2 (3%
AR MEEEEA
; )32

|]]JI]

\
Vi

(vii) EREIEEMBEENEM

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of

Bk 8 A Bl ANE B s AN E which it is a part, provides key management
MEARIREFEEREAS personnel services to the Group or to the
BR7% © parent of the Group.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 4.75%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the

lease terms and 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 19%
equipment
Motor vehicles 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Cont’d)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
investment properties are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement or
disposal.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties (Cont’d)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
completed properties held for sale to investment properties,
any difference between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end. The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Income rights of property 3-20 years
management contracts
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Operating leases

Leases, including subleases, where substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessor, for those assets owned by the
Group under operating leases, they are included in the non-
current assets and rentals receivable under the operating
leases derived from lease and sublease arrangements are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group only had financial assets classified as “loans and
receivables” and “available-for-sale financial investments”
during the year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in finance costs for
loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in other income and gains, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in other
expenses. Interest earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments is reported as interest income and
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont’d)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss s,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
required judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans
and other borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and other borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings
and convertible bonds.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss represent
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair

value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Financial liabilities (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Loans and other borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Financial liabilities (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Convertible bonds

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition, the
derivative component of the convertible bonds is measured
at fair value and presented as part of derivative financial
instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised as
the liability component. Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and derivative components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to
the liability and derivative components when the instruments
are initially recognised. The portion of the transaction costs
relating to the liability component is recognised initially as part
of the liability. The portion relating to the derivative component
is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments, representing prepayments for
leasehold land for development for future sale in the ordinary
course of business, are stated at lower of cost and net
realisable value, of which those within the normal operating
cycle are classified as current assets, while those out of the
normal operating cycle are classified as non-current assets.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for
sale after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to be beyond the normal
operating cycle. On completion, the properties are transferred
to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an
apportionment of the total land and building costs attributable
to unsold properties. Net realisable value takes into account
the price ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated
costs to be incurred in selling the properties.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Retirement benefit scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
(the “PRC subsidiaries”) are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when all the following criteria are met:

(@) the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to purchasers;

(b) neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the properties are retained;

(c) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

(e) the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

For the Group, revenue from the sale of completed properties
is recognised upon the signing of the property handover
letter, which is taken to be the point in time when the risks
and rewards of ownership of the property have been passed
to the buyer.

Deposits and instalments received in respect of properties
sold prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Property management fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered and the inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Group’s presentation currency. The functional currency of
the Company is the Hong Kong dollar while RMB is used as
the presentation currency of the financial statements of the
Company for the purpose of aligning with the presentation
currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries operating
outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange translation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of non-PRC entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of non-PRC entities which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased
out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONT’D)

Judgements (Cont’d)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties (Cont’d)

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the management of the Group has reviewed
the Group’s investment properties and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors have
determined that the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through
sale is rebutted.

Accordingly, the Group recognises deferred tax in respect
of the changes in fair value of the investment properties
based on management’s best estimate assuming future tax
consequences through usage of such properties for rental
purposes, rather than through sale. The final tax outcome
could be different from the deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements should the investment
properties are subsequently disposed of by the Group, rather
than all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties are consumed substantially by leasing over time.
In the event the investment properties are being disposed
of, the Group may be liable for higher tax upon disposal
considering the impact of corporate income tax and land
appreciation tax.
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JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONT’D)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(a) PRC corporate income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in
Mainland China. Due to the fact that certain matters
relating to the income taxes have not been confirmed
by the local tax bureau, objective estimate and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws,
regulations and other related policies are required
in determining the provision for income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will impact on the income tax and tax
provision in the period in which the differences realise.
Further details are given in notes 10 and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in
Mainland China. The provision for land appreciation
tax is based on management’s best estimates
according to its understanding of the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.
The actual land appreciation tax liabilities are subject
to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its land appreciation tax
calculations and payments with the tax authorities for
certain property development projects.

The final outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and any differences will
impact the land appreciation tax expenses and the
related provision in the period in which the differences
realise. Further details are given in notes 10 and 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONT’D)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Recognition and allocation of construction cost
on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as
properties under development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to completed properties
held for sale upon completion. Apportionment of
these costs will be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss upon the recognition of the
sale of the properties. Before the final settlement of
the development costs and other costs relating to the
sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by the
Group based on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide
the development projects into phases. Specific costs
directly related to the development of a phase are
recorded as the cost of such phase. Costs that are
common to phases are allocated to individual phases
based on the estimated saleable area of the entire
project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related
cost allocation is different from the initial estimates,
any increase or decrease in the development costs
and other costs would affect the profit or loss in future
years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONT’D)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(e)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market

for similar properties, the Group considers information

from a variety of sources, including:

U

(i)

(i)

current prices in an active market for properties
of a different nature, condition or location,
adjusted to reflect those differences;

recent prices of similar properties on less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the dates of the transactions that occurred at
those prices; and

discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by
external evidence such as current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair

value measurement, are given in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the
following reportable operating segments:

(a) Property development: Development and sale of
properties

(b) Property leasing: Property leasing (including
lease of self-owned
properties and sublease of
leased properties)

(c) Property management: Provision of property
management services

The property development projects undertaken by the Group
during the year were all located in the PRC.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit
or loss before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax
except that interest income, finance costs, share of profits
and losses of associates and joint ventures, as well as head
office and corporate income and expenses are excluded from
this measurement.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived
solely from its operations in Mainland China. Except
for the Group’s certain available-for-sale investments
amounting to USD12,000,000 (approximately equivalent
to RMB80,444,000) (2015: USD10,000,000 approximately
equivalent to RMB62,018,000) and the Company’s
property, plant and equipment of RMB5,566,000 (2015:
RMB4,972,000), the Group’s non-current assets are located
in Mainland China.

Segment assets exclude interests in joint ventures, interests
in associates, available-for-sale investments, deferred tax
assets, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due from
associates, tax prepayments, restricted bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude amounts due to joint ventures,
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings, tax
payable, convertible bonds, deferred tax liabilities, and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

During the year, no revenue from transactions with a single
external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s
total revenue.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Segment revenue, segment results and other segment

4. BEERBEHGE) 4.

T NEHHERA - D HEME LM

PDEBRUAMRN - ZE—RNF+_A=+— information for the year 2016, and segment assets and
AR EEERBEZINNAT - liabilities as at 31 December 2016 are presented below:
L E ek YI¥ERE MEER
BE-Z—KF Year ended Property Property Property Bt
+=HA=+—HL1L5E 31December 2016 development leasing management Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2 EUWA Segment revenue
IR HE Sales to external customers 15,620,001 298,218 288,232 16,206,451
DERELE Segment results 3,184,232 154,966 43,180 3,382,378
E3) 3 Reconciliation:
B U A Interest income 46,835
AIMARESPTHET A Changes in fair value of the
HOoM AR EERE  derivative component
of the convertible bonds (4,388)
RO ESH Unallocated corporate expenses (90,483)
BB RN Finance costs (239,857)
FE(REE A A Share of profits and losses
kEEatEER of associates and joint ventures 66,090
CzIRIVE Profit before tax 3,160,575
PEEE Segment assets 49,134,196 2,736,381 92,901 51,963,478
E3): 3 Reconciliation:
AOBEHEE Unallocated assets 17,125,466
BEBTE Total assets 69,088,944
PEEE Segment liabilities 28,498,196 277,279 246,242 29,021,717
E3) 3 Reconciliation:
AOEMARE Unallocated liabilities 23,876,295
BIERR Total liabilities 52,898,012
HihpIER Other segment information
e Depreciation (35,965) (50,845) (3,203) (90,013)
KEYER Fair value gains on investment
AAEBERE properties - 15,070 - 15,070
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Segment revenue, segment results and other segment

information for the year 2015, and segment assets and

liabilities as at 31 December 2015 are presented below:

ek YHEEE MHER
BE-_T—HF Year ended Property Property Property st
TZHA=1+—H1EFE 31 December 2015 development leasing  management Total
AREFIT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2 EUWA Segment revenue
INBRFIHE Sales to external customers 13,225,336 244,625 168,202 13,638,163
DERELE Segment results 2,640,665 73,376 12,990 2,727,031
AR - Reconciliation:
FEUWA Interest income 19,783
A[MARESSTHET A Changes in fair value of the
AW AR EBEEE  derivative component
of the convertible bonds 63,033
RAOHEES H Unallocated corporate expenses (13,106)
BER AR Finance costs (175,131)
FE(EH &R A Share of profits and losses of
kEEEER associates and joint ventures (298)
B A Profit before tax 2621,312
PEHEE Segment assets 33,314,330 2,306,931 29,384 35,650,645
AR - Reconciliation:
RO EE Unallocated assets 10,219,638
BEREE Total assets 45,870,283
e E Segment liabilities 17,599,376 273,589 158,885 18,031,850
AR - Reconciliation:
AOEMARE Unallocated liabilities 18,580,438
BfEfRE Total liabilities 36,612,288
Hih &R Other segment information
e Depreciation (25,359) (49,895) (8,642) (78,896)
WEMER Fair value gains on
DR EERE investment properties - 14,250 - 14,250
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5. IgA - Rttt A R i &=

WA(MBAREERNEEXB)EFRHEEY
EFEHA - ERREROEERAIAR
MEEEEBRA -

REEWA - ERARKRESH DT

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
proceeds from the sale of properties, rental income received
and receivables and property management fee income during
the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is

as follows:

—E-RE —T-hF
2016 2015
ARKFIT ARKEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue
VI HE Sale of properties 15,620,001 13,225,336
RETHEENBEWRALLE :  Gross rental income from:
HEeEWE lease of self-owned properties 59,386 42,533
SRSy sublease of leased properties 238,832 202,092
YEEREBIWA Property management fee income 288,232 168,202
16,206,451 13,638,163
E g A Other income
HRITH BUA Bank interest income 46,835 19,783
E Others 46,603 14,302
93,438 34,085
Wz FEE Gains, net
FELENMEE RIRENE Gain on transfer from properties held for
ry 4z (FEE15) sale to investment properties (note 15) 189,522 -
AR Fair value gains on investment properties
A EEWE(FE15) (note 15) 15,070 14,250
ARIEAFITE T A D H Fair value gain on the derivative component
A EBERE(MEE32) of the convertible bonds (note 32) - 63,033
HEMB AR MK Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - 12
HNE F I E Foreign exchange gain, net 64,870 18,996
269,462 96,291
362,900 130,376
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6. RRAFE 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBKBRATFBEE G, (GTA) T3 The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
B (crediting):
—E-RE —ZT—AhF
2016 2015
J0f ARMFT ARKEFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BHEWEKAR Cost of properties sold 11,589,682 9,819,085
WA MIREYME L Direct operating expenses
HEREEERY (including repairs and
(BEHBRRE) maintenance) arising on
rental-earning investment
properties 4,711 3,459
EIEG  BEREEHY Direct operating expenses
(BEEeRAEDE (including rental and
HIEWE) depreciation of leasehold
improvements) arising on
the subleasing business 128,427 124,776
R E BRI < KA Cost of property management
services provided 233,382 144,397
e Depreciation 13 90,013 78,896
EREERH Amortisation of intangible assets 3,603 -
HEHENMESE A Gain on transfer from properties held
REMEWE for sale to investment properties (189,522) -
BEWMERARBERNES) Changes in fair value of investment
properties 15 (15,070) (14,250)
PEGTEd Auditors’ remuneration 6,385 6,178
BTIRMNFEZ(TEIFEEEEHM Employee benefit expense
(FfizEs)) : (excluding directors’ remuneration
(note 8)):
e Wages and salaries 472,279 336,193
RREFTEMER Pension scheme contributions 18,966 13,538

B FERMECERNEEEE  Less: Amount capitalised in
properties under

development (208,335) (177,369)
282,910 172,362
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—F—XF+=-H=+—H 31 December 2016

6. REMBITFIEGE) 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT’D)
—RE —ET-AF
2016 2015
Jifd AR% T AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
NEYHEREREBL Minimum lease payments under
HEME 2 EZHE operating leases regarding
=EHEFR office premises and leased
properties for the subleasing
business 96,484 86,142
HEWE - BE K& Loss on disposal of items of
RAEIE B R ESE property, plant and equipment 863 1,054
e —HEE A RREE Loss on disposal of an associate 10,242 -
HNEF I E Foreign exchange gain, net (64,870) (18,996)
WEMERSWAREEZELE  Rental income on investment
Fix AR#4,711,0007T properties less direct
(ZZ—h%F: operating expenses of
AR#3,459,0007T) RMB4,711,000 (2015:
RMB3,459,000) (54,675) (39,074)
AR ESITE T RS Changes in fair value of the derivative
WAnBEZE: component of the convertible
bonds* 32 4,388 (63,033)
* REEHNAMRESITE T AT OOR * The changes in fair value of the derivative component of the
REEZHTARABRRPH[EM convertible bonds for the current year are included in “Other
Fx] e expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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—E—XFt+=H=+—H 31 December 2016

7. MERAE 7. FINANCE COSTS
—E-KE —T-0F
2016 2015
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Interest expense 1,665,267 1,265,819
B BAREFE Less: Interest capitalised (1,425,410) (1,090,688)
239,857 175,131
8. EFERTHARIM 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
BiE EHRA - FEQREHE383(1) Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
@~ o) C)RMEARAR(FEEEEF T disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (b),
BR)ROIFEEFRENES RITHAED (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
FEEHMT : 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

—E-XKE ZT-RF
2016 2015
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wE Fees 720 680
HEms - Other emoluments:
e M EEYH =R Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 10,800 9,868
FIRBMBTEAT Performance-related bonuses 16,189 11,354
RIS TSR Pension scheme contributions 95 80
27,084 21,302
27,804 21,982
REBEE_ZTE—REFER_ZT—HF+=A For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
=+ HIEFE  SIBEERITHRERE directors and chief executive were granted share options.
EENRE -
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—E—XFt+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2016

8. EEFERTTRERFHM(E) 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(CONT’D)
(@) BIAFEHITES (@) Independent non-executive directors
FERNE T FEIEHTEERWE The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
20 : during the year were as follows:
—B-RE —ThF
2016 2015
AR FT ARBTFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BExL Ms. Sun Hui 240 240
HENXGE Mr. Wong Wai Man 240 240
BAFBL(R_E—1F Dr. Wong Kennedy, Ying Ho
NA=ZB#EFE) (Resigned on 3 August 2015) - 160
FEBEE(R_Z—HF Mr. Jin Qingjun
+AZ+NREZE) (Appointed on 28 October 2015) 240 40
720 680
FRWBENBLIENTESHH There were no other emoluments payable to the
e (ZS—RF : §&) - independent non-executive directors during the year
(2015: Nil).
(b) HITEERTHAR (b) Executive directors and the chief
executive
& RE
REYR= REHH B
Salaries, B4 T8It
allowances Performance Pension Faai k)
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BE-_Z2—X<E+=H Yearended 31 December 2016

=t—-HALFE
B Mr. Shum 2,867 5,124 15 8,006
RAEIB LA Mr. Guan Jianhui 1,913 2,450 16 4,379
Bt E Mr. Bai Xihong 1,913 2,467 16 4,396
TR AE Mr. Li Qiang 1,548 2,619 16 4,183
BRI E Mr. Shum Siu Hung * 1,458 1,661 16 3,135
GEIEA Mr. Niu Jimin 1,101 1,868 16 2,985

10,800 16,189 95 27,084
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8. EFRRTRAERIFIMGE) 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(CONT’D)

(b) BTEERITHER(E) (b) Executive directors and the chief
executive (Cont’d)

B R

REH RIGAME BRRE

Salaries, TEAT STEIftR
allowances  Performance Pension i FEk
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration

ARETIT ARETT AREFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

HE-_ZT—1F Year ended 31 December 2015
T A=+—HIFE

ShE Mr. Shum 2,571 3,698 10 6,279
ek Mr. Guan Jianhui 1,790 1,770 14 3,574
SE2) e Mr. Bai Xihong 1,780 1,778 14 3,572
TR E Mr. Li Qiang 1,366 1,761 14 3,141
BIKHE S Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 1,376 1,171 14 2,561
FE|REE Mr. Niu Jimin 985 1,176 14 2,175
9,868 11,354 80 21,302
* ZOKHE 89 5 3 A BE% E3 Cen * The English spelling of the name of Cen Zhaoxiong
Zhaoxiong ¥ 2% A& Shum Siu was changed to Shum Siu Hung with effect from 20
Hung » BEZZE—A~F+=A December 2016.
ZHBRER -
FABBESITHREBENEXR There was no arrangement under which a director
ENEANFHNZH(ZE—A or chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
FfE) remuneration during the year (2015: Nil).
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9. FHMEEHALRER 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FR - FHEENALEEBENEES The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(B EETHER) (T —RHE : UKE directors, including the chief executive (2015: four directors,
E(EDEEITHAR))  ZEE2EMTH including the chief executive), details of whose remuneration
FIBEHANN LS e TR - Fh—F are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration
(ZE—F1EF : —R2)FWEsESE (KILIE for the year of the remaining one (2015: one) highest paid
RATMESSITHAR) E B 15 W0 employee who is neither a director nor chief executive of the
™ Company are as follows:
s —ThF
2016 2015
AREFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e EBREYAN = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,107 1,067
FIREMAIELT Performance related bonuses 4,652 1,861
RIS EHEIHR Pension scheme contributions 15 14
5,774 2,942

10.

FrisIRBASE

AEBEAREBEEREL RN AEE
B RRIFTE MG E M ERDEEERE A
EHMEN - REFASHENABER
FESHRAER - AEEERB(NRASE
ENEBERREE MR L) BAGMNE
AFEH - BRAKRERANFEEL BEE
BEETARTKA - HEAREHER
BB HMFTEM ©

REI RS
RIBEFFEPEMEH([REMAEH]) A
FAHRITAMR - @B RIES - BERTE
MR ERBOTBEEEMEREREF
EFTfsaT R F B A E AR R E -

BREMNEE(EXALME)  FAAELEE
EREAEENEMITEARHEEAR
26%HIP B EMEHBE - EMNHER
D EFTSRIRZRE B - BHRIRAR
2.75%HF

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant
to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and BVI,
the entities of the Group which were incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and BVI are not subject to any income tax.
The Group was not liable for income tax in Hong Kong as the
Group did not have any assessable income arising in Hong
Kong during the year.

PRC corporate income tax

The PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) in respect of operations
in Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax
rate on the estimated assessable profits for each of the years,
based on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices
in respect thereof.

Except for Guangzhou Ruixian (as defined in note 1), other
subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China are
subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate of 25% during
the year. Corporate income tax for Guangzhou Ruixian is
levied on a deemed basis at a rate of 2.75% of its revenue
amount.
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NE+—-HA=+—H 31 December 2016

10. ISR (1) 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)
&+ IEE R PRC land appreciation tax
BE—HQANIAEF—A—BERAKPEAR According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
HME G ERE TG R — AN RE of the PRC on Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT”) (F#E A 4t
—AZ Tt BAERAKREARAFE + ANE £ I8 (E R E 1T 160]) effective from 1 January 1994
WEREI TR ERMBRINESR - EFEH and the Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional
PENEERA T FERAEREFRER Regulations of the PRC on LAT (25 A R H A1 + 1t 3gH
— IR (BN EH & Y2 2 PR S SRIER AT 40k MEITIRPIE EANRY) effective from 27 January 1995, all
i BIEEERARYERE S )HE income from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use
AT+ 13 (E 30% 2 60% K 2 3 T R 4 rights and buildings in the PRC (being the proceeds from
W IBER - M BEEFEENISET sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
A IR HIFIE B 2 M20% - B3y borrowing costs and property development expenditures) is
SR ERRET subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%

of the appreciation of land value with an exemption provided
for property sales of ordinary residential properties (i B1Z %
{£=8) if their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the
sum of the total deductible items.
FR - REBRELBAYRREEERELR During the year, the Group estimated and made provision for
PRl Efh st T ER I EH B - & LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant
B+ ERBENYERRBER TR PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are
EESHEET MRS HKEEEN T subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon
IMEF S BT &+ B (E R B E P IE S completion of the property development projects and the LAT
HEBRTH A © determined by the tax authorities might be different from the
basis on which the provision for LAT is calculated.
A —ThF
2016 2015
AREFTT ARKEFor
RMB’000 RMB’000

BNER Current:

PR EEPTISH PRC CIT 811,089 719,564
T HIRER LAT 487,933 480,919
TR (P 5E20) Deferred (note 20) (120,846) (130,239)

FEMIAX HEHE Total tax charge for the year 1,178,176 1,070,244
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10. FRTIRBASZ ()

P £ b S A (]
158 PO TE 9 3R 5T B RO R A5 A 1 B8 & 3 AR A%
B B ERREAENRIBER S 24

10.

H 31 December 2016

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

PRC land appreciation tax (Cont’d)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory tax rate to the tax expense at the

RIMEATX(BNEERE)BERRE 2 effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate
HERITE - (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as
follows:
—E-XF —T-TfF
2016 2015
AREFT % AREFT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ERBRIAE Profit before tax 3,160,575 2,621,312
BHEATERERAERNTIE  Taxat the PRC statutory tax rate 790,144 25.0 655,328 25.0
BT RRTREHRHE Effect of different income tax regimes
FE of certain companies 31 - 71 -
BREHHRA Income not subject to tax (17,362) (0.5) (15,788) (0.6)
REFRA S Expenses not deductible for tax 58,516 1.8 42,845 1.6
T IR (E R R Provision for LAT 377,103 11.9 461,888 17.6
THEERNH G2 Tax effect of LAT (94,276) (3.0) (115,472) (4.4)
AERNTIEEE Tax losses not recognised 65,460 2.1 41,744 1.6
BiBEHREEHAAOMEEE Taxlosses utiised from previous periods (10,933) (0.3) (2,645) (0.1)
[EEHE N E] Profits and losses attributable to associates
ABNERR and joint ventures (16,523) (0.5) 75 -
TR BLATANEFES  Withholding taxes on undistributed
1B profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC 26,016 0.8 2,198 0.1
BASEMERRRE
BT Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate 1,178,176 37.3 1,070,244 40.8
11. BR2 11. DIVIDENDS
—hFHNEERAREERARE The proposed 2015 final dividend of RMB15.63 cents per

15.63%7 (& H A R#269,374,0007T) B M
AARBRER—_ZE—NRNFRA-++HHE
ITHREEFAE EiE - TRZ-ZF—X
FRARE ©

EESRBRBEE_T A E+_A
e Emirmskﬁﬁﬂxéﬁwxﬁﬁ%
31519 AHEARE542,841,757 (=%
—hF : ARKE15.63%5) °

AEFNREZRABRSBFARBBRERRN
FEERRIBFE RS LR - TTRMEE »

share totalling RMB269,374,000 was approved by the
Company’s shareholders at the annual general meeting on 27
May 2016 and was distributed in June 2016.

The board of directors recommended the payment of
a final dividend of RMB31.51 cents per share totalling
RMB542,841,757, for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: RMB15.63 cents).

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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120 ZLFHREESISBAR
hEiRF

BREXBFDIBEBEAAR L BEREE
ANEBEFEFERFANBETERRAM
S 19 881,722,960,0000% (=T — F 4F -
1,722,960,0000%) 51 & °

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,722,960,000 (2015: 1,722,960,000) in
issue during the year.

—E—RF —ET-hHEF
2016 2015
RABEBERSEARGFE  Profit attributable to ordinary equity
(AR#TFIT) holders of the Company (RMB’000) 1,955,020 1,420,590
BEITE BRI Weighted average number of ordinary
(LAT5EH) shares in issue (in thousand) 1,722,960 1,722,960
BREREF Basic earnings per share
(BRARES) (RMB cents per share) 113 82

FREERNS R VRBFABARA LA
BB ARG EEMNENRBRMAE
S T B SR ST B MR ITESN
BREMEFAEETE - ARRAIEELE
BEYENTBRELB N BRKRES - &
RS RNE  DRRAUBRESK
BT BRI BN REE - AEH
B %6 B RN A8 5 S =B
FERBRBRESITETARONAAE
EESH(ER) -

204 EHUEZRERAT 2016 FEHRE

The diluted earnings per share amount is calculated by
adjusting the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The
Company’s dilutive potential ordinary shares are derived from
the convertible bonds. In calculating the diluted earnings
per share, the convertible bonds are assumed to have
been converted into ordinary shares, and the net profit is
adjusted to eliminate the interest expenses charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and changes in fair
value of the derivative component of the convertible bonds
less the tax effect, if applicable.
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—EFE—XFE+-HA=+—H 31 December 2016

120 FLAFEEESISBAR

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

LSRR F (]) ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (CONT’D)
—B-RE —T-hF
2016 2015
RATIEBERSEABERE  Profit attributable to ordinary equity
(ARBTFT) holders of the Company (RMB’000) 1,955,020 1,420,590
RERGEBERNBRN Interest expenses charged to the
FMBRAZ(ARETT) consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year (RMB’000) - -
AR E S OTAE T EZDH) Changes in fair value of the derivative
AREEZEH(ARETIT) component of the convertible
(M$7E32) bonds (RMB’000) (note 32) 4,388 (63,033)
AREESREERFHFE Profit used to determine diluted
(ARBTT) earnings per share (RMB’000) 1,959,408 1,357,557
BEITE BRI Weighted average number of ordinary
(LATFET) shares in issue (in thousand) 1,722,960 1,722,960
R AN ESFET TR Assumed conversion of the convertible
(LAFET) bonds (in thousand) 110,857 110,857
ARFTESREERTN Weighted average number of ordinary
LA I B (AT ET) shares for diluted earnings
per share (in thousand) 1,833,817 1,833,817
FRESERT Diluted earnings per share
(BIRARED) (RMB cents per share) 107 74
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—E—RF+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2016

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT
BT
HER
HELTH HEYE BOERE
kEF %45  Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold fixtures AE
land and improve-  and office Motor Msr
buildings ments  equipment vehicles Total
AREFT ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-RE 31 December 2016
+t=ZA=t+-H
DNE Cost:
RZZ—RF—HF—H At1January 2016 400,530 714,410 102,960 30,353 1,248,253
NE Additions - 54,062 18,919 6,319 79,300
UK B AR Acquisition of subsidiaries
GEX) (note 37) - 88,315 763 - 89,078
HeE Disposals - - (1,386) (1,824) (3,210)
HRARENE Transfer from investment
(PMEE15) properties (note 15) 159,674 - - - 159,674
R-T—RF At 31 December 2016
+-A=+—H 560,204 856,787 121,256 34,848 1,573,095
ZEE Accumulated depreciation:
RZE—XRF—HF—H At1January 2016 20,984 149,544 55,180 17,254 242,962
REFDEENIE  Depreciation provided
during the year 19,451 54,820 12,037 3,705 90,013
HE Disposals - - (485) (1,087) (1,572)
RZZ—R%F At 31 December 2016
+-A=+—H 40,435 204,364 66,732 19,872 331,403
HREFEE - Net carrying amount 519,769 652,423 54,524 14,976 1,241,692
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—E—XFt+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2016

13. Y% BERSME () 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

A
EER
AELi HEME WAERB
R #2iE Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold fixtures B
land and improve- and office Motor faEt
buildings ments equipment vehicles Total

ABEETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

—E-AfF 31 December 2015
t+t=ZA=t-H
PR Cost:
RZE—RF—H—H At1January 2015 268,447 669,975 82,076 34,453 1,054,951
N Additions - 44,435 21,424 2,287 68,146
HE Disposals - - (540) (6,387) (6,927)
EBEADRTEE Transfer from completed
HEHE properties held for sale 72,573 - - - 72,573
EERARENE Transfer from investment
(Fft5%15) properties (note 15) 59,510 - - - 59,510
RZE—RF At 31 December 2015
+=-A=+—8H 400,530 714,410 102,960 30,353 1,248,253
ZETE Accumulated depreciation:
WZE—RF—HA—H At1January 2015 10,190 96,430 43,927 19,392 169,939
REE HfH Depreciation provided
BRENTE during the year 10,794 53,114 11,647 3,341 78,896
HE Disposals - - (394) (5,479) (5,873)
RZZE—RF At 31 December 2015
+=-A=+—H 20,984 149,544 55,180 17,254 242,962
IREFEE - Net carrying amount 379,546 564,866 47,780 13,099 1,005,291
RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—H  RKEFHE At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s buildings with
#ANR¥476,689,0007C( —F—HF : A a net carrying amount of approximately RMB476,689,000
R #304,043,00070) KA EEE TEFE (2015: RMB304,043,000) were pledged to secure bank loans
EEIR - DUNEER T ARSERRITER (K granted to the Group (note 31(c)).
#31(c)) °
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—E—XFt+=H=+—H 31 December 2016

14. FfI1BEEHIE 14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
—E-RE —E-hF

2016 2015

AR¥TFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R—A—BMERmeRE Carrying amount at 1 January 1,545,738 1,385,474
FERE Additions during the year 6,427,349 4,500,888
gk A &) (M FE37(B)) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37(B)) 920,906 82,228
HE—HMBAE Disposal of a subsidiary - (8,035)
B SRR Y E Transfer to properties under development (6,409,547) (4,414,817)
RT+ZA=+—AMEE£E Carrying amount at 31 December 2,484,446 1,545,738
B BIEAEL Less: Current portion (268,523) -~
JERNEREE Non-current portion 2,215,923 1,545,738

HETHURPEANGBZEABEER
B BT3RS HARRE - i IRKBE -
BB ERETYE -

RZE—A"F+-A=+—8 " KELE
R B ANREE17,922,0000(ZF—HA
F o AR¥EA46,142,0007T) HI%E TAEEH
SR ERE - UBRBETAEEME
TEF(FE31(0) °

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held
under a long term lease, construction on which has not yet
commenced. Balances will be transferred to properties under
development when construction commences.

Certain parcels of the Group’s leasehold land with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB17,922,000
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB46,142,000) have been
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note
31(c)).

15. |EYE 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E-RF —T-hHEF
2016 2015
i3 ARE T ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—ArRESHE Carrying amount at 1 January 1,352,680 1,397,940
EEAEEASBRME Transfer to owner-occupied
properties 13 (159,674) (59,510)
ERADR TRERENME  Transfer from completed properties
held for sales 390,000 -
Bz 2 i A R 251322 Net gain from a fair value adjustment
DR BEFAEMEF W recognised in other income and
gains in profit or loss 5 15,070 14,250
R+—A=+—HKEmELE  Carrying amount at 31 December 1,598,076 1,352,680
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15.

REMRGE)

REBMREWEMN BN B R E
HERE REVFIZRBELHER

HEEFE=H  BLHABHMEBIRGS
B 53R R M 5E40(a) °
RZZE—REF+-A=+—H8  ££EH

WEMERBLAEREEGHBEMARE
ERITAERAFRBEBERFEARRARTS
BEESFHHERARE1,598,076,0007T
—ZT—1HF : AR¥1,352,680,0007T) °
AEBEYFETWZF—RINE-BERD
BHAREEYEETINGGE - BEE
EBRETSHHE  BE BUUHRELH
FRERKE - REBNGRIMBERRE AE
THEREZGHEMLAERE RGES
RETEN R-E—REER-_T—HF
TZA=1T—H AEEMREWEDE
B LS R TASENG BIRITER
REMEFK(IFES1(C)

_/\¢&—§_£ﬁ5+_ﬂ:+_
A AEBENREDENAABERASE
AP ABIR(EIE)ETE -

RAFEZHE - FIERF2E 2HILEN
REEFEEBCRAENABEFEEA
HEHFEIE

15.

—NE+=—H=+—8 31 December 2016

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONT’D)

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland
China and held under a medium term lease. The investment
properties are mainly leased to third parties under operating
lease arrangements, further summary details of which
are included in note 40(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2016 at RMB1,598,076,000 (2015:
RMB1,352,680,000) by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited,
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, on an
open market, existing use basis. Every half year, the Group
decides to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for
the external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group has discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed for financial reporting. At 31 December 2016
and 2015, the investment properties of the Group were
pledged to secure the interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31(c)).

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, fair values of the Group's
investment properties were measured using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.
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—E—RF+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2016

15. |BEYM*RGE)

[AEEEBR(E)

HEREMEMLENFOEREARIEOM

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONT’D)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuations of

EHIIWT - investment properties:
EXFTER Valuation Significant Range or
Rt BARE EERMETHY techniques unobservable inputs  weighted average
ZE-7E C5-1E 2016 2015
BRUERDL  BENEE MREMHER 41,000~ 40750 Times Property Center ~ Direct Comparison ~ Market unit salerate ~ 41,000to 40,7500
-5% (BFAK(TF 8000 8150 - Retal Method (RMB/square metre 82,000 81,500
RAARET) ('sqm.))
BROERL  BRERE TREBNMER 0000 2970 Times Property Center  Direct Comparison ~ Merket unit sale rate 30,000 29,700
- (B¥AR - Office Method (RMB/sq.m)
ARHET)
BUBERL  BRENE mREIEEE 450000 430,000 Times Property Center ~ Direct Comparison ~ Market unit sale rate 450,000 450,000
-kg (B - Car parking Method (per one space)
BREA(RL)  REE  SEGERRBYE  o50%  TER Block No. 26 of Times King Investment method ~ Term yield Reversionary ~ 3.50% NA
i knERe(8R  400% TR City (Zhongshan): yield Market rent 4.00% N/A
-1185%% ([EANETAR) 5138 TR -1t to 3rd Floor (persqm. permonth 511085 N/A
tom)
BREARL)  REE FEURRERME (0% TER Block No. 26 of Times King Investment method ~ Term yield Reversionary ~~ 4.00% NA
$060%: kmEHe(5R)  450% TR City (Zhongshan): yield Market rent 4.50% N/A
-4855% UEL TR - 4th to 5th Floor (p.m) 341042 N/A
16. & 16. GOODWILL
=
2016
ARMTFTT
RMB’000
RZF—RF—HA—H At 1 January 2016 -
W EEHT B A F) (H5E37(A) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37(A)) 47,230
R-ZBE—RE+-A=+—HKRK Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2016
NAREHEE 47,230
RZZE—RF+A=+—8H At 31 December 2016
PR Cost 47,230
RETBEERE Accumulated impairment -
BRE SRR Net carrying amount 47,230

210

R ERERARAT 2016 FERE



B SRR MY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—XFt+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2016

16. E&(##) 16.

[k ;PR ERE
AEEERERAHESHEEDKRA
METFANRECELEU(RSELSE
fiz]) - ZENERSELFMOAEKRSE
HORBERBEFEET  KANRE
MERHINEEERENOVHEECRZE
MEEIR) AEE - RAHMR KR SRR
B RERAAREE LA B IR o

GOODWILL (CONT’D)

Impairment test on goodwill

The Group’s goodwill acquired through business
combinations were derived from four different cash-
generating units (“CGU”). The recoverable amounts of
these four CGU have been determined based on a value-
in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a four-year period prepared by
management, and the discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

17. REELEMNER 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—B-RE —ThF
2016 2015
ARHEFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EIREEFE Share of net assets 1,894,554 187,455
BB FTE ARS8 Goodwill on acquisition 437,318 3,253
2,331,872 190,708
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17. REELENER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONT’D)
AEBELRENFBOT ¢ Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:
BAK
Percentage of
i/ e
RANEE hEE B4 BHAE
TR Nominal ~ Ownership interest Voting power Profit sharing
BENEY value of tZA=+-H tZR=+-H TZA=t-H
Place of registered/ 31 December 31 December 31 December TEER
£ registration and paid-up —“E-AF “ZT-1F ZE-RE “T-1F ZE-RE “Z—HF Principal
Name and business capital 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 activities
AREFZ
RMB’000

HERBREERAR e/ BN 337,780 49 49 50 50 49 49 NEHE
([gH]) PRC/ Property
Zhuhai Xiangyue Mainland China development
Investment Co., Ltd."

(“Zhuhai Xiangyue’)**

BNEARRAIZREAARAR  HE/HEM 50,000 51 51 50 50 51 51 MEHE
([ENEB]) PRC/ Property
Guangzhou Yungu Technology Mainland China leasing
Investment Co., Ltd."

(“Guangzhou Yungu')**

BNEB@ENRERAR e/ RN 3,750 20 - 50 - 20 - B
([EMEE ) PRC/ Technology
Guangzhou Youdong Internet Mainland China development
Technology Co., Ltd."

(“Guangzhou Youdong')*

ENEREHEREARLE  FE/HERM 160,000 75 - 50 - 75 - MERE
([ENER]) PRC/ Property
Guangzhou Xingsheng Real Mainland China development
Estate Development Co., Ltd.*

(“Guangzhou Xingsheng’)**

XM FHERTARAR  RE/HER 516,154 75 - 50 - 75 - hER%
([RE(BM)) = PRC/ Property
Horizon (Guangzhou) Property Mainland China development
Development Co., Ltd."

(*Horizon (Guangzhou)’)*

ENESRSRERAR! e/ RN 82,501 52 - 50 - 52 - MERE
([ENEg ) PRC/ Property
Guangzhou Fengding Mainland China development
Hardware Products Co., Ltd."

(‘Guangzhou Fengding’)

BNmBRREERAT e/ RN 200,000 20 - 50 - 20 - RERR
([BMNER )" PRC/ Investment
Guangzhou Jingjun Mainland China holding

Investment Co., Ltd."
(‘Guangzhou Jingjun’)**
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17. REELEMRER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONT’D)
Bl
Percentage of
i/ E4
RANEE waE REE BN E
FMR Nominal ~ Ownership interest Voting power Profit sharing
EEMILA value of +=B=t+-H +=p=t+-A +-A=+-A
Place of registered/ 31 December 31 December 31 December TEER
2% registration and paid-up —E-AF “T-1F ZBE-RFE —T-1F ZE-F —Z—FF Principal
Name and business capital 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 activities
AREFT
RMB’000

RMAREABRAR RE/ B 250,000 50 - 50 - 50 - RERR
([ENKE])" PRC/ Investment
Guangzhou Daye Mainland China holding
Investment Co., Ltd."

(‘Guangzhou Daye’)’

MIT—RENARMARAT  TE/ER 10,000 147 - 333 - 49 - DERE
(R-%e ) PRC/ Property
Shenzhen Yihaocang Scientific Mainland China development
Innovation Technology Co., Ltd."

(“Shenzhen Yihao Cang’)**
* ZERFRFEANNMBREREEER * The financial statements of these companies for the year

S NIE B S Rl S e
W EAMK B ARER

ZENRY REMEMERE LR
%% TW%X%%H&$ BIESR
REIMFR L ETBEEMS °

e
g

BEAREEEZSERRRRT LN
BHhEEGZELRBEZELANMA
BERBAREGIERGRE AEER
ZELNARREZELNAEEAHLRA
EHIE: MEBAZSAFERED
WREBEEAAEBEEZEN KRR
B EE Bl RZERAAN
REBRERTEE NG ERANK
B WERERERE -

#

o

i}

S
o

Dﬂ
D
b

were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ermnst & Young global network.

The English names of these companies represent the best
effort made by the directors of the Company to directly
translate their Chinese names as they do not register any
official English names.

Pursuant to the share transfer agreements entered into
between the Group and these companies’ shareholders
and in accordance with the articles of association and co-
operation agreements of these companies, the Group and
these companies’ shareholders have joint control over these
companies; and the decision about the relevant activities
of these companies requires the unanimous consent of the
Group and these companies’ shareholders. The investments
in these companies are, therefore, treated as investments in
joint ventures of the Group and the equity method is applied.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 213



BAFEERAR MY RE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—XFt+=H=+—H 31 December 2016

17. REELRMERZ(I]R)

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONT’D)
KE(EMN) (WRALREEN—BEAEE Horizon (Guangzhou), which is considered a material joint
12E) Ty B HE B9 4 2 5 35 g I DA 20 % venture of the Group, is a property developer in Mainland

N

China and is accounted for using the equity method.

TRITAKB(EMNMNPKEERRE - B The following table illustrates the summarised financial
MEFHENTAEZEERFAREKLEGS information in respect of Horizon (Guangzhou) adjusted for
B R R M BREE SR ¢ any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:
—E-RE
2016
ARH¥FTT
RMB’000
ReRReEED Cash and cash equivalents 203,951
HAi B & E Other current assets 1,397,883
MENEE Current assets 1,601,834
ERBEE(TBENE) Non-current assets, excluding goodwill 1,752
BRAWEES S ENHE Goodwill on acquisition of the joint venture 148,589
R S8 Trade payables (40,717)
E b FE A 5RIE R JERT IR Other payables and accruals (44,893)
FERTLIR Tax payable (49,000)
irEAAS Y Current liabilities (134,610)
BERBEBERIEREDEE Deferred tax liabilities and non-current liabilities (385,759)
BEFE Net assets 1,231,806
BEFE(TEERE) Net assets, excluding goodwill 1,083,217
HAREERNGERFENERLR Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the joint venture:
RNEBFTERELLGI Proportion of the Group’s ownership 75%
SREEEETENEEFE Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture,

(TBEEEE) excluding goodwill 812,413
BREWEEENEE Goodwill on acquisition 148,589
HERREE Carrying amount of the investment 961,002
A Revenue 765,709
FLEWA Interest income 625
PrEE R Depreciation and amortisation (527)
BiE Tax (36,870)
FEFMBEEABALLE Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 120,485
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17. REELRHER(I]) 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONT’D)
TRIWRBKER M TEANRNERS The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
ERENBIBEER information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not

individually material:

—E—RF —E-hHEF
2016 2015
ARH¥FTT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EIEE & EFNEE Share of the joint ventures’ losses
for the year (13,286) (304)
BHAEETENTHESEARE Share of the joint ventures’ total
comprehensive losses (13,286) (304)
REBRNEGERENERD Aggregate carrying amount of the
ZARETE(E Group’s interests in the joint ventures 1,370,870 190,708
REBEHEESEPENEHRNGE VW The Group’s balances with its joint ventures are disclosed in
K FEo5 R - note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
RZEBE—X"F+=—A=+—8 A£EBR At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s interests in
AEPENE TRICIEERRM - UESE joint ventures was pledged to secure the bank loans and
FAREBERRITERRMER(FFES1(C) ° borrowings granted to the Group (note 31(c)).
18. REEATFIMNER 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
—E-XF —E—hF
2016 2015
ARH¥FTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 386,563 49,471
BB P A P Goodwill on acquisition 2,089 -
388,652 49,471
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18. MREIEATFIMER(18) 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONT’D)
AREEBMESARINFEBNT : Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows:
AEBEENL
BRAEEZE D
=, B4  Percentage of equity
RAMEE interest attributable
TR EEN Nominal to the Group
ih Bh value of +=B=+—H
Place of registered/ 31 December
HiB registration paid-up —Z—XE —T—hHF FEEK
Name and business capital 2016 2015 Principal activities
ARMTFTT
RMB’000

BMNmRRAGEREERBERAR B HEAM 11,000 30 30 MEMAE
(EMEFRATE ) PRC/ Property development
Guangzhou Times Hongwei Mainland
Investment And Development China
Company Limited *

(“Guangzhou Times Hongwei”) *

BMNTEHEAREE/NEER BB 200,000 - 20 BERER
B BERAB(EMNAE])™ PRC/ Money lending
Guangzhou Baiyun Heyintaifu Mainland
Micro-credit Co., Ltd. * China
(“Guangzhou Baiyun”) **

BEMEHCTERRR" BB 47,089 49 - LIESR
(TEMERET])" PRC/ (ETEEAE
Guangzhou Huangpu Mainland Manufacturing
Chemical Co., Ltd. " China
(“Guangzhou Huangpu
Chemical”’) *

* ZERNTRFANMBREAREEAL * The financial statements of these companies for the year
KERTRN T KB B2 were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
AR E MK B A RIEZ - member firm of the Emst & Young global network.

** AEEER-_Z—A"F-A=-+TNBH b The Group disposed of 20% equity interest of Guangzhou
EREMNEE20% M R AE R Baiyun on 29 February 2016.

" ZERRWARFMEMER AT " The English names of these companies represent the best

%
WZERRNRIX AW ARRFES
=

ENNZERRNF XEREEMS °
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18. MBELFIMHER(F) 18.

TRIRBLE R E XA E AR A S E
BRAWBHHER

NE+—-HA=1+—H 31 December 2016

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONT’D)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

information of the Group’s associates that are not individually
material:

—E—RF —E-hHEF
2016 2015
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEIEEE L DT EENE, (E518)  Share of the associates’ profit/(loss)
for the year (1,626) 6
FE(REE & R R 2 ERA Share of the associates’ total
(BB 85 comprehensive income/(loss) (1,626) 6
ARES BB A A R R A Aggregate carrying amount of the
AR EE Group’s interests in the associates 388,652 49,471

AEEBEEBE N R NEHRRGE MR
R FE26FR IR TR ©

19. AJHHERE

The Group’s balances with its associates are disclosed in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

INVESTMENTS
—E-RE —T—AF
2016 2015
AR TFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JELETESEEE - BAREE Unlisted trust plan, at fair value 220,500 -
IEEMRAIE - A" Unlisted equity investments, at cost* 326,058 82,018
546,558 82,018

* ZERBARATIE  ARERETE
ERTISHREMR - EERR R _F
—RNFTZA=1T—H Rt 5EtE
ZERANRAEE BZSRENE
AR EAEL MENERKRAE

These investments were stated at cost because the
investments did not have a quoted market price in an active
market. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of such
investments cannot be measured reliably and the underlying
fair values of these investments were not less than the
carrying values of these investments as at 31 December
2016.
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20. RIERMIESERAE 20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
EEREEE Deferred tax assets
WEERERIBEENEENT The movements in deferred tax assets during the reporting

period are as follows:

FEstRE

REAME

MR T =5

Accruals

t#iEEH  and other
&%  deductible

BIEEE Provision ~ temporary b= @
Tax losses for LAT differences Others Total

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETZ ARETR
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

R-Z—hA%—A—H At 1 January 2015 72,852 89,188 46,364 1,170 209,574
FERGEBRFA Credited to the consolidated

(FrzE10) statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 10) 32,569 32,685 2,123 - 67,377

RZT—HF At 31 December 2015 and

+-A=+—8K at 1 January 2016

RZE—R"F—H—H 105,421 121,873 48,487 1,170 276,951
FERGABRER Credited/(charged) to the

A/ (k) (HFEE10) consolidated statement
of profit or loss
during the year (note 10) 45,795 36,085 (7,347) - 74,533
RZZ—RF At 31 December 2016
+-A=1+—H 151,216 157,958 41,140 1,170 351,484
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20. ;[RIERPEERARE) 20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (CONT’D)
EEREEE Deferred tax liabilities
WEHRRERIBEENEENT The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the reporting
period are as follows:
#
Wy B B iip= PN
NGIE-E ROBFIE
DAABERR MR
Fair value ®E Taxes on
adjustment YW¥E{ undistributed
arising from Revaluation  profits of the
acquisition of of investment  subsidiaries Fo
subsidiaries properties in the PRC Total
ARMFT AREFT AREFT AR®Fr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-Z—HF—HA—H At 1 January 2015 787,850 212,575 46,919 1,047,344
W —REM B Acquisition of a subsidiary 34,430 - - 34,430
FENGEBRE (Credited)/charged to the consolidated
(3t A\) /% statement of profit or loss during
(WH5E10) the year (note 10) (68,623) 3,563 2,198 (62,862)
RZZ—HF At 31 December 2015 and at 1
+=ZRA=+—8k January 2016
W-Z—XE—A—H 753,657 216,138 49,117 1,018,912
WEE—HHEAT Acquisition of a subsidiary
(MI5E37(A) (note 37(A)) 2,359 - - 2,359
FENGABRER (Credited)/charged to the consolidated
(Gt A) /08 statement of profit or loss during
(Kf3£10) the year (note 10) (123,477) 51,148 26,016 (46,313)
RZZ—RF At 31 December 2016
+=-—A=+—H 632,539 267,286 75,133 974,958
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20.

220

EIERMRRER AR (I])

R-ZE—RF+-A=+—H AEEE
PEAMEERNSE TREEEAARKE
290,696,732 7L( ZE—HAF+_H=+—
A : AR#258,953,3167T) ' sZZ K187
BEEFERTHEL  UEHEEBHQ
AIHBERNAE - AREWERZEE
BERRAELHIBEAE  AELEENWNE
ARIEEEH—BER  TRATKAES
EELEFERTE A B UK ST E RS 18 -

RIBFBEBEAENE - BEHRPEAM
AZEINERECRTIREIEREER
P BBU0% N TERRL © ZIEREFRKE =
TENEF-A-HBEM  BARE-ZF
TLHE+T_A=+—HREFHNAEFN - m
RE A EINRIRE P E RDE B B ER]
BRWIHE - RIREREIERIHR R - &
REBBERNRERE% © Eit - AEEA
ARERPEAMKIZOMBEARTR —ET
NF—A—HEELENARN D IKHREH
ANTEANTL

7 42 ik AN £ [ RA AR B PR AR S O B BB A )
R-ZE—XRNF+-_A=+—HHkKER
BF AR 4,066,486,0000t( —E—FHEF
+ZA=+—8: AR%3,432,338,000
TO)FTER R TBII B ERIEIERIE - EER
B ZEMBARRATERB KRR
BEDIRBRAAT -

R ERERARAT 2016 FERE

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The Group had certain tax losses arising in Mainland China
of RMB290,696,732 as at 31 December 2016 (31 December
2015: RMB258,953,316), which can be carried forward for
a definite period from the year in which the losses arose for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the application rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

No deferred tax has been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
RMB4,066,486,000 as at 31 December 2016 (31 December
2015: RMBS3,432,338,000) that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future.
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21. AP E 21. PROPERTIES UNDER
DEVELOPMENT
S i
2016 2015
AR¥F ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEAR T AR AE THY Properties under development expected
FEER Y to be recovered:
—F R Within one year 10,457,550 9,312,037
—Fi& After one year 18,267,001 10,791,829
28,724,551 20,103,866

22.

23.

AEBEFREPYEOUNPEABITIZR
HHEALENEE L

AEEETHEFROER T —RER=
E-RAF+-A=1T—HEARTRITR
HERA - DMEEE T ARENIRTE
FMAEFR(HTES1(0)) °

B THEHENME

AREERIHERENDRUNTEAR
b o PTA B3 TRHEH SR YR TR AR
KA B EME BIEETIRR -

REB-—RERZF-RAF+_A=1—
B AEEETERTHEHENDEE
ERFRITRAMERA - URBETA
KB RITEFRRER(HTE31(C) -

R 7R

AEBENENE HHAEEREHBEN
% DHENEORERBEERIONE
BRI © R SHET S -
M 5 H OB R A 2 A T R 4B
EH AR B -

22.

23.

The Group’s properties under development are all located in
Mainland China and situated on leasehold land with long term
leases.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, certain of the Group’s
properties under development were pledged to banks and
other lenders to secure the bank loans and borrowings
granted to the Group (note 31(c)).

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located
in Mainland China. All completed properties held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, certain of the Group’s
completed properties held for sale were pledged to banks
and other lenders to secure the bank loans and borrowings
granted to the Group (note 31(c)).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trade receivables mainly arise from the sale
of properties. Considerations in respect of the properties
sold are payable by the purchasers in accordance with the
terms of the related sale and purchase agreements. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing. The carrying amounts of
trade receivables approximate to their fair values due to their
short term maturity.
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23. BEEESRIE(IE) 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)
PR EW S SEIAEBR O T ¢ An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

—E—XRHF —ZT—RHF
2016 2015
AT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=@EAR Within 3 months 1,550,171 1,047,645
PO = 75 {E A 4 to 6 months 190,162 240,718
+Z+ @A 7 to 12 months 382,971 468,548
HBiE—F Over 1 year 455,258 220,649
2,578,562 1,977,560
RIE—RNFR-_ZE—RF+_A=+— The balances of the trade receivables as at 31 December
AMEWE SRIERBI ARBH - TR 2016 and 2015 were neither past due nor impaired and
B BHZZRETRAEENEFER related to a large number of diversified customers for whom
MiZER P el I E {08k o there was no recent history of default.
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24. BfIHIE - RERHEME 24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

W R I8 OTHER RECEIVABLES
—E-XRF —ZT—RHF
2016 2015
ARKTFTT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e R HALEWEIR Deposits and other receivables 5,454,583 1,262,065
B T EFRIE Prepayments for leasehold land 3,679,234 3,826,039
H AT FRIA Other prepayments 2,177,808 1,143,504
11,311,625 6,231,608
RENER S Current portion 9,604,119 5,619,077
IEmBNEE S Non-current portion 1,707,506 612,531
11,311,625 6,231,608
TE SRR - ke K CH W GRIR Th 4K Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are unsecured,
A 2B BRBEEEFHR - non-interest-bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.
TENT T FH EFRIB 5 BL IE7E AR 75 T A Prepayments for leasehold land represent the prepayments
MRS L HMTE IS - for leasehold land with the application of land use right

certificates in progress.
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25 MEN EASELENE: 25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT

I8 VENTURES
—E—XRHF —ZT—RHF
2016 2015
ARKTFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE A b Due from joint ventures:
— &5 A - Shenzhen Yihao Cang 293,149 -
—BMNEE — Guangzhou Jingjun 256,091 -
—BEMNLs — Guangzhou Fengding 100,000 -
—BMNEA - Guangzhou Yungu 9,221 1,020
—XE(EM) - Horizon (Guangzhou) 132 -
— TR — Zhuhai Xiangyue - 206,133
658,593 207,153
EREEPENFIENEERT - 28 B The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, interest-
REREEE - BIEEDENFTIANRE free and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of
HefEEIEAABE - ZFEBGRIER the amounts due from joint ventures approximate to their
RiBEASORE © fair values. None of these receivables is either past due or
impaired.
=F-RF —ThHF
2016 2015
ARBFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT E &S Due to joint ventures:
—IREE — Zhuhai Xiangyue 63,367 -
—EMNIR% - Guangzhou Jingjun 28,970 -
92,337 -
ENEEPENTEVEIEE 28 A The amounts due to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-
RERRFERER - ENEEDENRENIRR free and receivable on demand. The carrying amounts of the
HEEEAE QAR EE - amounts due to joint ventures approximate to their fair values.
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26. FEWENE A FHRIA 26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM
ASSOCIATES
—E-XRF —ZT—RHF
2016 2015
ARH¥FTT ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUE & A A Due from associates:
— BN AL T - Guangzhou Times Hongwei 421,610 351,610
—EMNEHLT — Guangzhou Huangpu Chemical 37 -
421,647 351,610
RIS N RIMFRIBERE - 28 0 B The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-
RERKEEE - EUEE AT FIEMNER free and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the
HeEEAEAREBE - ZERWEIEMR amounts due from associates approximate to their fair values.
RBEASORIE The receivables are neither past due nor impaired.
27. WA EHRR 27. TAX PREPAYMENTS/TAX PAYABLE
(2 TFEHABIXN (@) Tax prepayments
= —ThHF
2016 2015
ARH¥FTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEGDZEFTET Prepaid CIT 106,520 103,376
FEG IR EF Prepaid LAT 433,425 203,769
539,945 307,145
(b) FEHBIR (b) Tax payable
—E-RE —ET-RF
2016 2015
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEGDEERTIERT CIT payable 818,367 812,402
JE 8+ 3 (E R LAT payable 631,830 426,712
1,450,197 1,239,114
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28. Bl RBaSFERYMLEE 28

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PR 5 R 1T 75K

AND RESTRICTED BANK

DEPOSITS
—E-XRF —ZT—RHF
2016 2015
AR¥FT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e RIRITERS Cash and bank balances 11,880,744 8,749,228
B ZRBIRTTE R (FRE(a) Less: Restricted bank deposits (note (a)) (2,958,017) (3,907,868)
R RREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 8,922,727 4,841,360
AREHE (F7E D) Denominated in RMB (note (b)) 8,907,374 4,727,983
E M B EHE Denominated in other currencies 15,353 113,377
8,922,727 4,841,360
Bt - Notes:
(@) RIBFEEREER AEENETYWE (a) Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain
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FEAREREERITESFFER—T
SREMHBWTEERSRIE - KA
BoMZE-—RE+-A=+—H " %
X B HIR S A ARE?2,335,308,000
T(ZE—RF : AR¥2,653,647,000
T e

R-E—RF+-A=+—HA&EBEA
R ¥546,318,000 L (=T —HF : A
R #673,194,0007T ) B Z R HI R 17 1%
FERRITETNEZRRSFNMNER
FrigsriE - BB IRITHER © HiE
FEAZIRHBRITER SEEAR
#76,396,000L(ZE—HF : AR
581,027,0007T ) B9 Fl 4 3 IR Hl $R 1777 K
EEBATEHER -

B2 AR IR BB 8 #O S ME E 548
BRI ROER - ARBETI B iR
HibE¥ - Bt REBEEEBE RN
RINER ZHEBHIIRTT - AR LB
A EE o

FRRIETHRSRERITE A FRAX
BZBFI R BA - RERBEF
EBYARZRGRITERORE S RZI
HERREE - |RITEREIRGRITER
AERNIHEROCEAEERITNR

7
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property development companies of the Group are
required to place certain amounts of pre-sale proceeds
received in designated bank accounts for specific use. As
at 31 December 2016, such restricted cash amounted to
RMB2,335,303,000 (2015: RMB2,653,647,000).

The restricted bank deposits as at 31 December 2016
amounting to RMB546,318,000 (2015: RMB673,194,000)
represented the loan proceeds in the monitoring accounts
designated by the banks, in which case the use of the
restricted bank deposits is subject to the banks’ approval.
The remaining restricted bank deposits amounting to
RMB76,396,000 (2015: RMB581,027,000) were primarily
time deposits.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, subject to the relevant rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest income at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents and the restricted bank deposits
approximate to their fair values. The bank balances and
restricted bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.
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20. BEMRSARARRE 29.
EREE RN RS ARG ESRER
FIBEBEB AT

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

—E-RE —E—HF

2016 2015

AREFr ARMF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within 1 year 2,351,123 3,147,891
—F1& Over 1 year 844,720 566,982
3,195,843 3,714,873

ENESRBERREEER %28 8
RIEREZXEARANINERKEEE

RBEMKR - BNEZHARRENAA
BEZROCEAERNEDSRE AAENE
SHRENFRERARBHEE -

30. HthFEfRIRK ERTHRIR 30.

The trade and bills payables are unsecured, non-interest-
bearing and repayable within the normal operating cycle or
on demand.

The fair values of trade and bills payables at the end of the
reporting period approximate to their corresponding carrying
amounts due to their relatively short term maturity.

OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUALS
A —ThF
2016 2015
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Uig e RialhoE Deposits received and receipts in advance 16,631,587 10,304,272
FEETRIE N B e 3R IE (Mif3Ta)  Accruals and other payables (note a) 3,410,699 1,510,099
UGB 1E B A AIfE 7B Payables for acquisition of

project companies 527,263 140,500
JERTFILE Interest payable 557,700 354,301

TR SR AR AR B S A LA Other payables to the non-controlling
FE FIE (M D) shareholders (note b) 5,256,324 2,362,104
26,383,573 14,671,276
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—E—RF+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2016

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (CONT’D)

hi=]

B - Notes:

(@) HAHMEMNZTIBRESRIBHNETE () Certain other payables included in other payables and
ftb FE 1< 5K IH A A R 57,948,000 7T, - accruals amounting to RMB57,948,000 are related to the
HEINEEB AT ER - BIEIREEEY acquisition of subsidiaries. Pursuant to the equity transfer
& EBREN—HD  AEBEFEHE agreements, as part of the consideration, the Group has
PMER TSR EEBREE TYWE committed to lease or sell certain properties to the then
HASKHEFZEWE QR ERHNR shareholders of the subsidiaries at a below-market fixed
W AT RLEREYENTER price. Such obligation is measured by reference to the
FE o WEENFIBENARBEEHR market price of the associated properties. Changes in the
EaBEREAS R o fair values of these payables are credited/charged to the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(o) RZE—-RER-_E—RE+=-A (b) Details of other payables to the non-controlling shareholders
=+—8  [IEERBEEL R EMmE as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are set out by project
NRBEBHRFBIRER QAFH AT company as follows:

—E-RF —E—RF

2016 2015

BiaE ARETFT AREFT

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Gy Foshan Hongyu (i 1,587,827 -
wEEE Zhuhai Changxin (i 876,000 -
EMRER Guangzhou Tiansi (i 497,625 47,626
ENER Guangzhou Fusi () 400,000 -
REEms Dongguan Yujing (i) 370,000 -
BN Guangzhou Kuntai (i 300,000 -
BEINAEOR Guangzhou Chengze (i) 30,000 30,000
BEMNEZR Guangzhou Junhao (i) 9,600 -
BB Guangzhou Kaijun () 1,070,000 1,070,000
BN e Guangzhou Kaiheng (i - 696,000
L ESR Foshan Huatai 0] - 455,700
A= Foshan Xinglanwan () 52,494 -
S Guangzhou Nanying (i) 62,778 62,778
5,256,324 2,362,104

Biat - Notes:

0] HERRIETEE QR ATIERIEIERAR R TR 0] The balances represented amounts due to the non-
FIE  REEKRIERR 28 X controlling shareholders of the project companies indicated
BEFEERR - which were unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed terms

of repayment.

(i) e BIgEN BN E IR R A (ii) The balance mainly represented the payables to the non-
WIE - ZERNRIBERESE T controlling shareholder of Guangzhou Nanying. Such
(ZEMENKEN =25 IFERRR payable balances were in connection with certain properties,
FBE)EHE  WEERBR TRERER the economic benefits of which were solely attributable to
AN JE IR AR AR B TR R E TSR the non-controlling shareholder, and where appropriate
HEEABROTET A E - ZEEN measured by reference to the market value of the associated
FEARBENEGINGEEBRRPT asset balances, reflecting the Group’s obligation to the non-
A HIBR o ARARAR S [ 82 IE 47 AR AR B R controlling shareholder. Changes in the fair values of those
ZE—=F+ZA=+—HIIUNHE payables are credited/charged to the consolidated statement
ZiHE EHFRENEEREARE of profit or loss. Pursuant to a supplementary agreement
62,778,000 B % S e 3008 - entered into between the Group and the non-controlling

shareholder as at 31 December 2013, it is mutually agreed to
settle such payables at a fixed amount of RMB62,778,000.
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31. HHERTERRHAMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS

ZB-RF —T-AF
2016 2015
BRF= BHME
Effective b 8 Effective |53 G
interest rate Maturity Amount interest rate Maturity Amount
(%) AR®F (%) ANEETFT
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ME Current

RITER—&2IER Bank loans - unsecured 6.0-6.7 2017 248,410 6.2-9.3 2016 70,700
RITER—HHEE Bank loans - secured 6.4-8.9 2017 213,898 5.6-10.3 2016 288,414

BEZR-FER Senior notes — secured (note )
i 11.2 2017 1,493,766 - - -
1,956,074 359,114

EL ) Non-current

RITER— IR Bank loans - unsecured 49-64 2018-2020 2,547,856  7.1-10.3 2017-2018 1,331,960
RTER—HHEA Bank loans - secured 49-8.1 2018-2026 3,893,509 51-9.8 2017-2023 3,843,074
EfpfER—EHEE Other borrowings - secured 6.4 2019 144,000 - - -

BAEE-BHER Senior notes - secured (note f)
(B¥3Ef) 12.2-135 2019-2020 3,996,498  11.2-135 2017-2020 5,200,369
nalEH (M) Corporate bonds (note g) 7.0-8.2 2018-2020 7,950,605 7.0-82 2018-2020 4,955,665
18,532,468 15,331,068
20,488,542 15,690,182
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1. HHESHBTETFREMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
(#8) AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONT’D)
—E-XKE ZT—RF
2016 2015
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DT Analysed into:
JEEEIBITER Bank loans repayable:
—FR Within one year 462,308 359,114
F_4F In the second year 3,309,256 2,753,555
FE=Z2ETF(BEEEMTE) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 2,859,074 2,263,479
Jidsp chak:a Beyond five years 273,035 158,000
6,903,673 5,634,148
HAbfEEERBNK Other borrowings (including senior notes
(BREAEBERARES) and corporate bonds) repayable:
—F R Within one year 1,493,766 -
E_F In the second year 2,984,983 1,483,097
E=EFAF(AZEREWF) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 9,106,120 8,672,937
13,584,869 10,156,034
20,488,542 15,690,182

Wit

Notes:
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RZZE—A"F+-A=+—H8 B&HE
B ARM346,308,000C( ZF —F4F ¢
A R ¥ 259,553,0007T ) #) & T 7t B 88
TERREMETARSEAARE
5,541,927,0007C( ZE—HF : AR
4,552,757,0007T ) K FEm ENERFT B R e
Hb &R BRI RSN - AEEF
BETSIRITE R H 55 B E R &
FTE o AEEMT BRITER R EAME
HEEmeEEIEAREE -

BR-ZE-ANEt+-A=+—H2EA
AR #3,096,498,000C( =T —FF :
AR¥3,717,272,0007T) K& FE LR
BIASETT([ & DEHESN - AREENR
HHRM AT BRITER R EMER
IAAREERTE -

R ERERARAT 2016 FERE

As at 31 December 2016, except for certain current bank
loans and other borrowings amounting to RMB346,308,000
(2015: RMB259,553,000) and non-current bank loans
and other borrowings amounting to RMB5,541,927,000
(2015: RMB4,552,757,000) which bear interest at floating
rates, all the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings bear interest at fixed rates. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans and other

borrowings approximate to their fair values.

Except for certain senior notes, amounting to
RMB3,996,498,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB3,717,272,000) which are denominated in United States
dollars (“USD”), all the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings are denominated in RMB as at the end
of the reporting period.
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31. st REBITERREMEIER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

(#]%) AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(CONT’D)

Biat - (&) Notes: (Cont’d)

(© RIREHR - AEERNE TEED KR (©) At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
FRTREMERA - LEERTAE assets were pledged to banks and other lenders for securing
ErFTBRITERREMMER o the interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings

granted to the Group.

ZEEEMERES The carrying values of these assets are:
—E-RF —Z-hF
2016 2015
HiF AR®FT AR Fr
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EME Investment properties 15 1,598,076 1,352,680
NEEENER Interests in joint ventures 17 325,187 -
HREPYE Properties under development 21 3,694,391 4,468,706
M - BE RERE Property, plant and equipment 13 476,689 304,043
ERIHEHERNYE Completed properties held for sale 22 256,529 122,573
B L HE A Prepaid land lease payments 14 17,922 46,142
6,368,794 6,294,144

(d) R-_E—XFE+-_HA=+—H &£ (d) At 31 December 2016, out of the Group’s total interest-
B2t 2B TERREMETTS bearing bank loans and other borrowings, a borrowing
—EBit AEREESEAARK amounting to RMB367,700,000 (31 December 2015: Nil)
367,700,000 c( ZZE—HF+ = A included in non-current liabilities, was secured by the pledge
=+—H:E)NEIUAREERAE of the Group’s entire equity interest in Guangzhou Longya, a
—E 2 ERB AT EIMNE DR ZR% wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
RERIERIEA -
R-ZE-—XRNE+-_A=+—H &8 At 31 December 2016, a 60% equity interest in Foshan
st o Bl A A R 110,000,000 7T ( = Shengjing and a 12.48% equity interest in Dongguan Kaiye,
E—FEFE+_A=+—H: ARK which are subsidiaries of the Group, were pledged as
140,000,000 7T ) K A R #5 144,000,000 security for certain borrowings with aggregate amounts of
S CE—RET-A=T—H: 8K RMB110,000,000 (31 December 2015: RMB140,000,000)
ETERTIARNEENBRBIFILES and RMB144,000,000 (31 December 2015: Nil), respectively.
BI60% Hk AN 3 Jo SR 2 9L HE 19 12.48%
MRAE TR VE R o

(e) R-IE—XRF+-_A=+—H &£58EE (e At 31 December 2016, a 52% equity interest in Guangzhou

it A AR#27,800,0007T( ZZE—H4E
FTZA=+—8B: B)NEAEEETE
RN AREEE S EEMNERH52%
MR A T VE R o

Fengding, which is a joint venture of the Group, was pledged
as security for the Group’s certain borrowing with an
aggregate amount of RMB27,800,000 (31 December 2015:
Nil).
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31. stERRBITERRHEMEFH: 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

(#&) AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONT’D)
Hist - (&) Notes: (Cont’d)
() BEER 0] Senior notes
0) ZE-NFRIEIMN12.625% % ) USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019

TERERE
RZE—NWF=ZA=+— On 21 March 2014, the Company issued 12.625%
H ARAREBEASEN senior notes due 2019 in a principal amount of
90278% TN - T — N4 USD225,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
3| 89 & 4 % /& 225,000,000 RMB1,383,188,000) at 99.278% of the principal
ETXT(HERDHDARE amount of such notes (the “Senior Notes March
1,383,188,000 7T ) K9 12.625% 2014”). On 2 May 2014, the Company issued
BEZB(IZE—NFE=A additional 12.625% senior notes due 2019 in a
BEEE]) R_T—NF principal amount of USD80,000,000 (approximately
HEAZH AXRAREEX equivalent to RMB492,640,000) at 100.125% of
4 %8 #9 100.125% %8 o 2 17 the principal amount of such notes (the “Senior
RZE-—NFHHEALEAL Notes May 2014”). The Senior Notes March 2014
80,000,000 T (FHERHIAR and the Senior Notes May 2014 were consolidated
#5 492,640,000 7T ) #912.625% to form a single series which is referred to as the
BEEZR([ZZ2E-—NERAE “USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019”. The USD
REE])  —T-FE=AE 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019 are listed on the
SEREE_T—NFR AR SEHK and bear interest from and including 21 March
ZERAMAEKE — R - SifE 2014 at the rate of 12.625% per annum, payable
Bl - NFERH12.625% semi-annually in arrears.

ELBEERE] - ZT—NFE
B 12.625% E LB L RER
B Em B —F
=A=+—RA(BEZA)EU
12.625% M) F M E5H 8 - FF

FXR—R -

RAT A EER AR @ 17 At any time, the Company may at its option redeem
HERPTIER A& FE100% 5 the USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019, in whole
IEAEEMNERIE - ERE but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100%
EHmIEMH T — NFEE A of the principal amount redeemed plus the applicable
12.626%ETTEREAERE - AR premium. The USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019
AR EE T NF=A are also redeemable at the option of the Company
“+—HEHBRMNETETE at certain predetermined prices in certain specific
HENRETREEEERE periods prior to the maturity date of 21 March 2019.

B — T — hEDHH12.625%
ETLEERRE
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31.

?

Hrat - (&)

()

=

)

it B

BEEEE)

(i)

(i)

ZE -t FEHM10.375% A
REBLZE

RZZT—mFLA+, B &
NEEEERE AL FER100% %
TR-ZIE—+HIHPLAELE
% A A R 900,000,000 7T )
10.375% B L ZH([=ZF—MO
FLtABEEE]) - —_=—H
F+A+TIEA  AAFHREE
R4 REH100.125% 1 T3 1T
L FIBASBREAA
R #:600,000,0007T#910.375%
EBEER(ZZ2-—NE+AE
EE|) —T-NELAE
EERE-TNFE+BEL
ZEAHAKE—ZY - HE
Bl T —+EFEHM10.375%
ARBELEER] - —ZT—+
FEHHIM10.375% AR EE %
ZERBRIET WEZE
—mFELA+NA(BEZA)
HBLA10.375% K F | K& B -
FEFIAF—K -

AN B AT IR
HERFTIER A £ F100% R
MEAEENERE  BE2
HmMIEH D - T —HFE R HW
10.375% ARBEBEZRE - K
NEINAEEE T —+F+
B+ BEHBANETEE
HERIRE TR TCERE
B =—ZF—tFHHM10.375%
AREABLRTIE ©

ZE T FEHIM11.450% %
TLBERIE

R-ZE—RE=AFHA AR
AR B IE A B /9 99.350% 3%
TR ZZE_ZFRHARE A%
/280,000,000 % 7T (10 & B
4N R#1,722,784,000 7T ) B9
11.450% B ARE(=ZB=F
3 B §9 11.450% £ T B %
EE|) _T-_ZTFEIHY
11.450% = LB £ ZE B R
Frkm ¥E=_F—RF=A
A H(BFEZB )R A11.450%
HEFEE  BEFIAF—

Ko

SE+— A=-+—H 31 December 2016

TEFRHEMmEST 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONT’D)

Notes: (Cont’d)
) Senior notes (Cont’d)

(ii) RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017

On 16 July 2014, the Company issued 10.375%
senior notes due 2017 in a principal amount of
RMB900,000,000 at 100% of the principal amount
of such notes (the “Senior Notes July 2014”). On
14 October 2014, the Company issued additional
10.375% senior notes due 2017 in a principal
amount of RMB600,000,000 at 100.125% of the
principal amount of such notes (the “Senior Notes
October 2014”). The Senior Notes July 2014 and
the Senior Notes October 2014 were consolidated
to form a single series which is referred to as the
“RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017”. The RMB
10.375% Senior Notes due 2017 are listed on the
SEHK and bear interest from and including 16 July
2014 at the rate of 10.375% per annum, payable

semi-annually in arrears.

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem
the RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017, in
whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus
the applicable premium. The RMB 10.375% Senior
Notes due 2017 are also redeemable at the option
of the Company at certain predetermined prices in
certain specific periods prior to the maturity date of

16 July 2017.

(iii) USD 11.450% Senior Notes due 2020

On 5 March 2015, the Company issued 11.450%
senior notes due 2020 in a principal amount of
USD280,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB1,722,784,000) at 99.350% of the principal
amount of such notes (the “USD 11.450% Senior
Notes due 2020”). The USD 11.450% Senior
Notes due 2020 are listed on the SEHK and bear
interest from and including 5 March 2015 at the rate
of 11.450% per annum, payable semi-annually in

arrears.
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31.

(#8)
Wizt ()
0 EEEmE)

(iif) —E-F

F|HEBHY11.450% 5=
TTREZE(E)

RNQNF A EEATMAER - %
HERER AL FE100% R
ERHENELRE  BOoz
ERmIEE D — T —BFE K
11.450% & LB R R - AR
AMAEREE T -_TF=H
AHEEARMNE TEEHHE
NG TELIETERER
T FE|HM11.450% 3K T
BEER BE_Z_ZF3|
HR911.450% E LB EZER
HEMFE  S2EAQRHEH
A-ZE—H¥=H - BrAE

A o

REFE U BHRRERNELEREBTED

7

HBMITEREHEMER 31.

—EFE—XFE+_-H=+—H 31 December 2016

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONT’D)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(4] Senior notes (Cont’d)

(i)

USD 11.450% Senior Notes due 2020 (Cont’d)

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem
the USD 11.450% Senior Notes due 2020, in whole
but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100%
of the principal amount redeemed plus the applicable
premium. The USD 11.450% Senior Notes due 2020
are also redeemable at the option of the Company
at certain predetermined prices in certain specific
periods prior to the maturity date of 5 March 2020.
For further details on the USD 11.450% Senior Notes
due 2020, please refer to the related announcement
of the Company dated 2 March 2015.

The senior notes recognised in the consolidated financial

T statements are calculated as follows:
“E2-+FIH ZE-NFIHH ZECEFIH
#10.375% £12.625% £11.450%
AREEERE EnBARE EnBAEE
RMB10.375% USD 12.625% USD 11.450%
Senior Notes Senior Notes Senior Notes @t
due 2017 due 2019 due 2020 Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZ-RF—A—HHEESE  Carying amount as at 1 January 2015 1,472,609 1,844,033 - 3,316,642
FRB#T Issuance during the year - - 1,722,784 1,722,784
RHHAK Transaction costs - - (33,830) (33,830)
FlE i Interest charged 181,462 251,403 171,973 604,838
ST AE AR 0B R FERT Interest paid and Interest payable included
HIEME A FI B REMFE in other payables and accruals (170,974) (241,968) (176,745) (589,687)
0 5 R Exchange realignment - 85,787 93,835 179,622
RZZ—RF+-A=+t—HK  Caryingamount as at 31 December 2015 and
T RE-A-BANERSE 1 January 2016 1,483,097 1,939,255 1,778,017 5,200,369
FlE i Interest charged 166,204 267,192 221,345 654,831
STAEMEMFUE R EZUEE)  Interest paid and interest payable included in other
BT EREMNFE payables and accruals (155,625) (255,797) (212,974) (624,396)
ERTI RS Exchange realignment - 135,407 124,053 259,460
RZZE—R"F+-A=+—H#  Caryingamount as at 31 December 2016
FHSE 1,493,766 2,086,057 1,910,441 5,490,264
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31.

NE+—-HA=1+—H 31 December 2016

HERTEFRREMMBF 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONT’D)

(%)

Hrat - (&

U]

BEERE)

BREBRTAANEEE TRFEFEINE
MaZHIMTE A B ([HEARERALD
HRARERELER  XAZEHEL
FIERANE TR (EHER -

—E-NFEHIM12.625%FE TELE
% —ZE A FEHM10.375% AR
BEZBR T ZTFIHA11.450%
ETLBERESIR18.5% - 11.2% &
12.2% B BERFIEE S o

RAES

RZZE—AF+tA+FEA BREH
(HRARRARIRPEKINEZERBR
a]) AR B A R #2,000,000,0007T #)
EEETRAARES (22253
HOARY6.75% A FEH]) - —T =
TN ARKEG.75% A RIES BN
BEITHHRFT AFEDE - REITHE
BFAFE=FR FREEBEEEE LR
FEANEXMESFHEAAREZAELE
2HAHFHS T _TFIHOARSE
B.75% N FES - —E-_TEFHMHA
R 75% A RIEHFR LEEFZ S
ET o B 7% FRERFR - BFX

MWZE—AF+H=+A  BREE
A R B2 AR #53,000,000,000 7T K T
BETHAFRARRER(=B—N
FAHHARET85%AFESH]) - =
EFERATF7.85%  AH=F - FF
REEREN DEEHFZ S LT -

Notes: (Cont’d)

)

Senior notes (Cont’d)

The senior notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by
certain subsidiaries of the Group which are incorporated
outside the PRC (“Subsidiary Guarantors”) and are
secured by the pledge of certain shares of such Subsidiary
Guarantors.

The effective interest rates of the USD 12.625% Senior
Notes due 2019, the RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017
and the USD 11.450% Senior Notes due 2020 are 13.5%,
11.2%, and 12.2%, respectively.

Corporate bonds

On 15 July 2015, Times Group, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company established in the PRC, issued domestic
corporate bonds at a par value of RMB2,000,000,000 in
the PRC (the “RMB 6.75% Corporate Bonds due 2020").
The RMB 6.75% Corporate Bonds due 2020 will mature in
five years from the issue date. Upon the third anniversary of
the issue date, Times Group shall be entitled to increase the
coupon rate and the bond holders shall be entitled to sell
back the whole or part of RMB 6.75% Corporate Bonds due
2020 at par. The RMB 6.75% Corporate Bonds due 2020
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and bear interest

at the rate of 6.75% per annum, payable annually in arrears.

On 26 October 2015, Times Group issued non-
public domestic corporate bonds at a par value of
RMB3,000,000,000 in the PRC (the “RMB 7.85%
Corporate Bonds due 2018”). The coupon rate is 7.85%
per annum, for a term of three years. The bonds are non-
guaranteed and are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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3. AIRBITEREHMER 31.
(¥8)

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONT’D)

Kzt - (&) Notes: (Cont’d)

) NAESH(E) () Corporate bonds (Cont’d)

On 18 January 2016, Times Group issued non-public
domestic corporate bonds of RMB3,000,000,000, with a
term of three years at the coupon rate of 7.88% per annum
(the “RMB 7.88% Corporate Bonds due 2019”), with the
option to redeem by Times Group at the end of the second
year. The RMB 7.88% Corporate Bonds due 2019 are non-
guaranteed and are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

RZZE—RF—A+NA BREE
%17 A R #3,000,000,000 7T #) = 4F £
FAHRENARES  ZEMNEAST
F788%([ZB—NFHHMWARY
7.88% A FIMEH )  HREBBERE
“ERERBERES - —T-NEFIHH
WARKET7.88% A FRIEHFBEEREN
RYIFEHRZ G T

RIGE VB RREANARESFEN The corporate bonds recognised in the consolidated financial

T~ statements are calculated as follows:
CECEFIEMN ZEB-NFIEN ZE-AFHEH
AR%6.75% AE%7.85% AR%7.88%
ARMESH ATESH ARES
RMB 6.75% RMB 7.85% RMB 7.88%
Corporate Bonds ~ Corporate Bonds  Corporate Bonds @t
due 2020 due 2018 due 2019 Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-E-nE-A-BHEESE  Caryingamount as at 1 January 2015 - - - -
FREET Issuance during the year 2,000,000 3,000,000 - 5,000,000
ZHRA Transaction costs (24,000) (25,039) - (49,039)
REXH Interest charged 65,397 42,307 - 107,704
STAEMENZERESZUER  Interest paid and interest payable included
BRI B REMFE in other payables and accruals (63,750) (39,250) - (108,000)
RZZ—RF+-A=+t—HK  Caryingamount as at 31 December 2015 and
“E-RE-A-BNEALE 1 January 2016 1,977,647 2,978,018 - 4,955,665
HREET Issuance during the period - - 3,000,000 3,000,000
SRR Transaction costs - - (24,890) (24,890)
FaXH Interest charged 140,684 245,800 233,176 619,660
SAEMBENTUERENZUES  Interest paid and interest payable included
RS REMNTIE in other payables and accruals (135,606) (238,834) (225,390) (599,830)
RZE—"E+-A=t+-H Carrying amount as at 31 December 2016
MERE S 1,982,725 2,984,984 2,982,896 7,950,605

TEEFIHMNARKE TSR AFES - =
T N\FEHHOARKET785% R EIEF AR
T-hEIHMARE7.88% A AIEH D BIl%
7.0% - 8.2%K8.2% M B FIE:T B -

The effective interest rates of RMB 6.75% Corporate Bonds
due 2020, RMB 7.85% Corporate Bonds due 2018 and
RMB 7.88% Corporate Bonds due 2019 are 7.0%, 8.2%
and 8.2%, respectively.
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32.

AR R %
RZE—WFE+AZ+EB  AATIEA
SRE100%MEREITR S —NFREAR
& 485 /5388,000,000/8 7T (FHE NP AR
#308,369,0007T ) & AT #2 i & 5 ([ AT AR
&%) BAmRES R LT -
AR ESFIEFF RS E - WIEEEE
BEf BAKEEAETHBRR KR RE
RIVEHHELR o

BEHFE AGENRIRAAEIZE RFE N
B HARR (B BE R S EL AR (B 5 R R Al iR
MREHFEE IR EARRNRE T KT
SR EEC10B M AL R Lk ([ H ik
7 ]) - HESXRRESFGERR o &1
HHREIS0B LA E - WBRIRV iR
BEREERES  TRRESBATER
110,857, 1425 AR (0 - HERERELE
BITHAR D 18 K 8 AR AR AN 46.05% o

N-Z—OE+ A —+F B UEESFTA %
5% 1& % BT 15 7038 /% #8.383,668,0007% 7T (#8
BN AR306,213,0007T) ©

=

HEE-T—RFT-A=+—H HE#E
B B AT AR E S o

SF+— A =-+—H 31 December 2016

— = /N

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 25 July 2014, the Company issued convertible bonds due
2019 in the aggregate principal amount of HK$388,000,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB308,369,000) (the
“Convertible Bonds”) at the price of 100% of their principal
amount and the Convertible Bonds were listed on the SEHK.
The Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate of 8% per
annum and are payable quarterly in arrears and jointly and
severally guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Convertible Bonds, the
bondholders have the right to convert their Convertible Bonds
into fully paid ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.10
each to be allotted and issued by the Company upon
conversion of the Convertible Bonds (“New Shares”) at any
time during the conversion period at the conversion price then
in effect. Based on the initial conversion price of HK$3.50 and
assuming full conversion of the Bonds at the initial conversion
price, the Convertible Bonds will be convertible into
110,857,142 New Shares, representing approximately 6.05%
of the ordinary share capital of the Company, as enlarged by
the issue of New Shares.

The net proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Bonds
of HK$383,668,000 (equivalent to RMB306,213,000) were

received on 25 July 2014.

Up to 31 December 2016, there was no conversion or
redemption of the Convertible Bonds.
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32. AImARIRSF ()

AMEREFDERASRAASRITET

—NF+-—A=+—

H 31 December 2016

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT’D)

The Convertible Bonds were recognised as embedded

ANaEdsmT - financial derivatives and a debt component as follows:
BAXSE
TEIT A
aER Embedded
Debt financial
component derivatives
(Hiita) (Kiatb) st
(Note a) (Note b) Total
AR¥FT ARBFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZZE—RF—HF—H As at 1 January 2015 197,218 120,887 318,105
ey Interest expense 34,924 - 34,924
BAFE Interest paid (25,121) - (25,121)
—Hﬁ‘ﬂﬂiﬁmil, L8 Y Changes in fair value of
ARBEZH (M) the derivative component of
the Convertible Bonds (note 6) - (63,033) (63,033)
HEE 34, 58 2 Exchange realignment 9,530 3,526 13,056
R-ZEE—RE+=-A=+—H Asat31 December 2015 and
r=F—R F—H—H 1 January 2016 216,551 61,380 277,931
B Interest expense 36,939 - 36,939
EAFLE Interest paid (26,626) - (26,626)
ABRESITET RIS H Changes in fair value of
DR EEEE(MiEe) the derivative component of
the Convertible Bonds (note 6) - 4,388 4,388
bE Exchange realignment 15,490 4,440 19,930
RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—H Asat31 December 2016 242,354 70,208 312,562

wis -

BED Rk
5B IR TR

(@)
B B9 BT

AREROTET AN R AE
TH HRABRFMNE17

BXATIER

HERARBEGR®R I

Notes:

TE ) FREHIRR R
BEBMFIE
9% IR EEIH

B EhTE
15 5K
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AEBERERENRAEE AR
BHFHE ABRAR D AR ES
EBENAAEE  UERARFER
AR ESF R RN A EE -
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Debt component was initially recognised at its fair
value, which was the residual amount after deducting
the fair value of the embedded financial derivatives
from the net proceeds at the initial recognition, and it is
subsequently carried at amortised cost at an effective
interest rate of 17.9% per annum.

Embedded financial derivatives comprise the fair value
of the option of the holders of the Convertible Bonds
to convert the Convertible Bonds into ordinary shares
of the Company at the conversion price; the fair value
of the option of the holders of the Convertible Bonds
to require the Company to redeem the Convertible
Bonds; and the fair value of the option of the
Company to redeem the Convertible Bonds.
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32. AImARIRSF ()

Wyt - (&)
(o) (&)
FZERAVEFRAERE  EEP—

%%
TRBRERWITE - Bt - ZSRIER
TAPAAK  MERERAE—WES
PTETE -

FHREE S B A AR ERD 2B
TREFERERABRATN TR
FHZA=+—RETHE  —AXE
DRRFERARNSBOITET ARG
B AnBEABRAIENTERE
ABZ(FBIE)NELERMT

SE+ - A=+—H 31 December 2016

®)

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT’D)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(Cont’d)

These embedded options are interdependent as only one
of these options can be exercised. Therefore, they are not
able to be accounted for separately and a single compound
derivative was recognised.

A valuation on the Convertible Bonds has been performed
by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, an independent qualified valuer, on 31 December
2016. The binomial model is used in the valuation of the
embedded financial derivatives. The quantitative information
about fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) is as follows:

RIE—XRE
+=A=+-8
A WA REE fR{ETE FUBER@EARE ®A
Fair value at Valuation Unobservable
Description 31 December 2016 technique inputs Adopted
AR SRITETA 78,365,000/ 7T ZIEAER BEHRE() 5.33%
Embedded financial derivatives HK$78,365,000 Binomial model Credit spread (i)
) 45.86%
Volatility (ii)

0) FsRAMESF S E2EEE
B REBEFHBBEUNE AR
BT A(REF) WEEEE

.
F o

(i) e R D EREZE AR
BIE (BIERABMIER) B
EKFETE o

BEHEE LA SHR AR S RT
ETENAABEREN - KKEE
MR RARSMITETA
MR EESEN -

BARSRITETANEBERSET
FEBRNEEBEHMEL - W&
EBEDEANTEERBHREN
BEMEHED o

(i) The credit spread adopted is determined with
reference to the yield of other non-convertible
instrument (or bonds) having a similar quality rating

and similar investment characteristics.

(ii) The volatility adopted was based on the average
of the peer companies’ volatilities (including the

Company’s volatility).

An increase in credit spread may result in an increase
in the fair value of the embedded financial derivatives.
An increase in volatility may also result in an increase
in the fair value of the embedded financial derivatives.

The value of the embedded financial derivatives
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions, which have been made by the directors
of the Company based on their best estimates.
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33. B&E 33. SHARE CAPITAL
fis 12 Shares
—E-RE —T-hHF
2016 2015
JETE ¢ Authorised:
10,000,000,000/%( ZZE— R : 10,000,000,000
10,000,000,0000% ) & i@ % - (2015: 10,000,000,000) 1,000,000,0005% 7T 1,000,000,0007% 7T
S EE010E T ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each HK$1,000,000,000 HK$1,000,000,000
BEIREHRE Issued and fully paid:

1,722,960,000/% ( —Z—F4F :

1,722,960,000 (2015: 1,722,960,000)

1,722,960,0000% ) @M% - ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 172,296,000 T 172,296,000/ 7T
FIEEC.10ET HK$172,296,000 HK$172,296,000
HER Equivalent to ARK#135,778,000t A R#135,778,0007T
RMB135,778,000 RMB135,778,000

FRRAIL EEF o

There was no movement in share capital during the year.
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RSB 5t &l

AR ETEEEREI([5T8]) - 51
B EREAKEEERNELERNE
BERSHEE - ENAER2EEREAR
RAEfEE - EEEREXES - H
REF BN IEFE N ERNEBE ER2 R
EFoHERBER -_ZE—=F+—A+NH
(THRMBH ) BBNEEBBRERZERMIK
o BB B BE10FHRAB R
L

FREARQRIBCRBLEIN - AR RRREE
B R AR R EMBAE B TR B A
EREBREETERATZETHORNDESH
B &XATSBALLTHHEETRNE
HH)10% (BN172,296,0000 /%15 ) - BTG
FRB T B BTN R B HI30% © FRER
NEIBCRBLAESN - PMER+ (8 A H#IRE
EHTREBERARABE THOBEE(BRE
EITE MR ARTTER A B ) BITE RS T
BITHRODBETGBBE BTN B
B91% ©

ERARBPRAEZBRERSENOSRE
/31.00/8 7T ° RIEAE AR B AR A0 &Y BA
BHEFSE2EBNBERT @ EREABR
T ZHE A FRERE SR L EAE
BIRBRCHE B BIRERT104F -

RITERE SR EOBEREMETNE
BENNRBEFNHEESERET @ I
PMRERTIINESE  (NREBH(A
RBXARMETESEEN B T )BT
BRBERMAI OO ERKHE - (R
ERFEL AR AESXBBRAEHR
ERMFIE A ERFHUHIE + i) i
fHEE

SF+— A =-+—H 31 December 2016
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include any employee, management member or director of
the Company, or any other eligible participants upon the
terms set out in the Scheme. The Scheme was adopted
pursuant to the resolutions of all the shareholders passed on
19 November 2013 (the “Adoption Date”) and shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the
Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
and other share option schemes of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue as at the Listing Date (i.e., 172,296,000 shares) unless
the Company obtains approval from its shareholders and
must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
grantee (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue, unless approval of the Company’s
shareholders is obtained.

The amount payable by the grantee on application or
acceptance of an option shall be HK$1.00. The period within
which the shares must be taken up under an option shall
be determined by the board at its absolute discretion and
in any event, such period shall not be longer than 10 years
from the date upon which any particular option is granted in
accordance with the Scheme.

The subscription price in respect of each share issued
pursuant to the exercise of an option granted under the
Scheme shall be solely determined by the board and shall
not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing price of
the shares as stated in the SEHK’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant, which must be a day on which the SEHK is
open for the business of dealing in securities; (i) the average
of the official closing prices of the shares as stated in the
SEHK’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share.
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34. FRBxHERTEI(¥R)
B-F-=F+—ATARRMHEE
BEARIR RSB AR IRAE -

35.
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(a)

(b)
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(d)

AEERAFEIBEFENRHE
TENMEFHYNAEENGE ED
EHRTE -

BARER
AEEBNFABRRERE_TTN
FHZRA=1t—RBILFEHRARE
ES SRR L) =PNCITRE (& N-= o] ]
BERBEENRREITAER BRI
B R ERE -

BB
BARRREE(ERBH B QR HM
IR AT T ) Y B A A
WHEIE S 2 MR E5 - 3k
(FER FEFR AR R tH B P /B8 2 A 8B
DRAREEHERT ) BEMRER
TR IR A s (W AR R
) 2 R ZHE

REFEMHBEIRIER - AKE
EHRBEFEMrREE T ARER—
TE L Pl ey iR BR R B b 3R E R E A A
i RAFFERBRRR AT (EH
TEEFENERR) BEFHR
NEE - BHBREBEIESEHRE
BRREARL0% - AIEENELE
MHE— B  AERBAES
AARBHBEFEREERIEME
Koo AT ARRATEBAEE
FRERARREERMERE RN
25% °
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F+—-H=+—H 31 December 2016

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT’D)

Since the adoption of the Scheme on 19 November 2013, no

options have been granted pursuant to the Scheme.

35.
(a)

(b)

()

(d)

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the Group.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal value
of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Reorganisation and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor
during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the
cost of acquisition and the non-controlling interests
acquired in the case of acquisition of additional non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries, or, the difference
between the proceeds from disposal and the non-
controlling interests disposed of in the case of
disposal of partial equity interests in subsidiaries to
non-controlling shareholders without loss of control.

Statutory surplus funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the companies now comprising the Group
which are registered in the PRC shall appropriate a
certain percentage of their net profit after tax (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) calculated under the
accounting principles generally applicable to the PRC
enterprises to reserve funds. When the balances of
this reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s capital,
any further appropriation is optional. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses or to increase capital. However, the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at a
minimum of 25% of the capital after those usages.
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36. Ao HESMIFIERIE 36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

SEEXHMEAT WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
RIS B E KN BN B A RIAY R Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
BHINOT controlling interests are set out below:
—E-RE —E—RF
2016 2015
IR ERIEER Percentage of equity interest held by non-
AR B DL controlling interests:
3811 e Foshan Hongyu 25% -
GAEES Foshan Huatal 49% 49%
Hes Dongguan Yujing 45% -
E Al Guangzhou Shichuang 40% _
R Dongguan Kaiye 48% -
ENE B Guangzhou Fusi 40% -
IRk & Guangzhou Qijun 49% 49%
G2 3 Foshan Shengjing 40% 40%
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3. HENPLEEMIFERE 36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

= R E KRYPE 22 B (#8)

WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONT’D)

—E-RE —E—RF
2016 2015
ARMFT ARKEFor
RMB’000 RMB’000

BT IEEREENFE Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to non-

FE, (&) - controlling interests:

I EE Foshan Hongyu (587) -
FRILESR Foshan Huatai (17,053) (1,178)
REWs Dongguan Yujing - -
EINEEA Guangzhou Shichuang 32,129 -
S Dongguan Kaiye (1,195) -
B E R Guangzhou Fusi (1,175) -
BEINRUE Guangzhou Qijun (11,159) (3,703)
L= Foshan Shengjing (5,311) (5,876)

R E B AR SR Y Accumulated balances of non-controlling

REtiEeR interests at the reporting dates:

FRILBE Foshan Hongyu 1,599,413 -
B EZE Foshan Huatai 893,199 454 551
REWs Dongguan Yujing 629,714 -
EINEEA Guangzhou Shichuang 528,000 -
eSS Dongguan Kaiye 454,677 -
BMER Guangzhou Fusi 472,425 -
BEMRE Guangzhou Qijun 377,138 388,297
BRILAE = Foshan Shengijing 348,764 354,075
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36. BSOS MIEIXEIE 36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

SEEXHMEAT(IE) WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONT’D)

TRHAALAMFEARNTBEERE - The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

Fri% S ) & 58 TR EETT (AT A B FE 0BG AT information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed

SR are before any inter-company eliminations:

BLEZE  BNRR  BLER O BENRE  RRAEX BLBRE BNER  REMR

“E-NE Foshan Guangzhou Foshan Guangzhou Dongguan Foshan Guangzhou Dongguan
2016 Huatai Qijun  Shengjing  Shichuang Kaiye Hongyu Fusi Yujing
ARBTT ARBFT ARETT ARBTR AREFT ARETT ARETrT AREFZ

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

WA Revenue - - - - - - - _
BRI Total expenses (34,801) (22773 (13.277) (1,002 (2,756) (2,349) (2,939) (635)
FEHA%MEEE  Share of profits or losses
of joint ventures - - - 81,002 - - - -
EEFE/(BE)  Profit/oss) for the year (34,801) (22773  (13.277) 80,000 (2,756) (2,349) (2,939) (635)
FE2EE/ Total comprehensive
(&) as profit/{oss) for the year (34,801) (22773  (13.217) 80,000 (2,756) (2,349) (2,939) (635)
REEE Current assets 5518449 3,936,474 3,468,028 18410  1,219601 8398905 1,910,327 3,080,799
FRBEE Non-current assets 18,209 13,628 9,338 1,344,002 3,647 812 1,076 223
mEBE Current liabilties (2,678,303) (2,775,433  (2,205,456) (42,411) (132,005 (3,352,066)  (530,343) (1,681,658)
FRBAE Non-current liabilties (1,035500) (405,000  (400,000) - (144,000) - (200,000) -
WEEHFIE,/(FH) Net cash flows from/
HMERESTETE (used in) operating
activities (1,690,010 720,792 211,200 41,194  (1,075312) (2481,758) (1,777,233)  (1,395,615)
REEHFERN Net cash flows used in
BERETE investing activities (6,327) 2,721) (#1)  (1,263,000) (3,037) (16) (203) (12

REEDHS,/(EH) Net cash flows from/(used

MAESREFE in) financing activities 1,885,561 (634,573) 356,597  1,223964 1,091,329 5,082,830 1,784,000 1,400,000
BARBELEEME  Netinoreasein cash and

ENFE cash equivalents 189,224 92,498 567,846 2,158 12,980 2,601,056 6,564 4373
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3. HENPLEEMIFERE 36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

= R E KRYPE 22 B (#8)

WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONT’D)
BILER E e FILER
—T—hF Foshan Guangzhou Foshan
2015 Huatai Qijun Shengjing
AREFor AREFor ARKEFor
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1 ON Revenue - _ _
BRI Total expenses (2,344) (7,558) (19,751)
FEEE Loss for the year (2,344) (7,558) (19,751)
Total comprehensive loss
FEXMABELE for the year (2,344) (7,558) (19,751)
REEE Current assets 2,123,493 2,452,944 1,906,722
ERBEE Non-current assets 1,781 2515 4,977
mEEE Current liabilities (1,167,819 (700,417) (925,572)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (29,800) (962,600) (100,939)
EEEERTS(ER)M Net cash flows from/(used in)
Re M T operating activities 58,861 (1,676,072) (1,668,999)
REZEERD Net cash flows used in investing
BeneF5 activities - (7) (40)
REESMENE S RE TR Net cash flows from financing activities 1,008,800 1,762,575 1,685,360
ReME2EEDY Net increase in cash and
1N cash equivalents 1,067,661 86,496 16,321
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37. IHRMIELT

(A)

EBaot

WEEMNEE  HLIEEEERK
SRE

BEEREEERENBELR
MBRER —E—NFE_ARART
MR EE R G - B EEEIN
AR #44,000,0007TH R & REB U
BEMEZEMI100%BE - EMNE
EARPEKINBEREENEE
BATF - HEAREEERELTHD
RZT—ANFMEATK - L& - &
MNEBZEERARNEBAMBAR -

BEEAMESEEBLIEEES
ERHNERRR _T-R"F-_HA—H
R A BREEEE  BRMEE
BIAARKS,000,0007t0 RS RE
W BB 5 1L IR 12 & 29 100% A 42
BRLIEE AR AR BERIZHNER
BEEMEEELNR - HEREEE
BREHFER-_T—R"REF_Ax
BX o i - #EILIBIE S RE KRR
SEOMBELRF -

RIER R EE B RIS R EE
HERER - E—HF+_-_A=+—
Al AR EEE G - BRYE
&2 DA R #3,000,0007T A IR &
KRB W ZRE R F A 100% I8 1 o
RERESNPREKIHBEREE
MEEIENF o HAREEREES
TZHER T —NFMNATK ° It
% EREDKAREEHNE

NI

F+—-HA=+—H 31 December 2016

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(A)

Business combination

Acquisition of Guangzhou Wanning, Foshan
Shunde Hetai and Zhuhai Yuanxing

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement entered
into by Times Property Management and the then
shareholders of Guangzhou Wanning on 5 February
2016, Times Property Management acquired a
100% equity interest in Guangzhou Wanning at a
cash consideration of RMB44,000,000. Guangzhou
Wanning is a property management company
established in the PRC with limited liability. The
relevant equity transfer registration arrangement was
completed in April 2016. Since then, Guangzhou
Wanning became a subsidiary of the Group.

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement entered
into by Times Property Management and the then
shareholders of Foshan Shunde Hetai on 1 February
2016, Times Property Management acquired a 100%
equity interest in Foshan Shunde Hetai at a cash
consideration of RMB5,000,000. Foshan Shunde
Hetai is a property management company established
in the PRC with limited liability. The relevant equity
transfer registration arrangement was completed in
February 2016. Since then, Foshan Shunde Hetai
became a subsidiary of the Group.

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement entered
into by Times Property Management and the then
shareholders of Zhuhai Yuanxing on 31 December
2015, Times Property Management acquired a
100% equity interest in Zhuhai Yuanxing at a cash
consideration of RMB3,000,000. Zhuhai Yuanxing is
a property management company established in the
PRC with limited liability. The relevant equity transfer
registration arrangement was completed in April 2016.
Since then, Zhuhai Yuanxing became a subsidiary of
the Group.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 247



WS R MIEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—XFt+=H=+—H 31 December 2016

37. BB AT () 37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTD)
(A EBEHt(E) (A) Business combination (Cont’d)

WEEMNEEZ - #ILIEEEFZRE Acquisition of Guangzhou Wanning, Foshan
R (&) Shunde Hetai and Zhuhai Yuanxing (Cont’d)
EMEBEE - #ILEEARRIKER The aggregate fair values of the identifiable assets
% B YHE A BRI AT a8 R B E and liabilities of Guangzhou Wanning, Foshan Shunde
BEMNARBEEENT Hetai and Zhuhai Yuanxing as at the respective dates

of acquisitions were as follows:

RS R
M REE
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
ARKEFIT
RMB’000
L E e L] Property, plant and equipment 73
mLEE Intangible assets 9,437
FEUE 5 3E Trade receivables 73
A RIE - 2 R E M EW R IE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 12,285
TR & RIRITEERR Cash and bank balances 8,231
E b A FOR K FERT RUR Other payables and accruals (4,238)
EIERTE B & (F5E20) Deferred tax liabilities (note 20) (2,359)
B EEFEH AN EE Fair value of net assets acquired 23,502
MUEELENEE Goodwill on acquisition 28,498
LR Satisfied by cash 52,000
B L ENR e RIASEEY An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
MEDFEATT - equivalents in respect of the above acquisitions is as
follows:
ARKTFT
RMB’000
BRIRERE Total cash consideration (52,000)
REEIRENRE Consideration to be paid subsequent to current year 20,210
FAEARE Consideration paid during the year (31,790)
FTERIR & RIRT TAS R 1B RE Total cash and bank balances acquired 8,231
BHEREEMNEE  FILIERaRR Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
HERENR e RS EMRLFE of the acquisition of Guangzhou Wanning,
Foshan Shunde Hetai and Zhuhai Yuanxing (23,559)
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37. IRRMIE LT ()

(A)

EBaoH (&)

WEEMEE - BILIBEEER R
SR ()

BMNEBE - fILIERE T LIKER
B BRM G EEEARERE
TE-RFT AT HLEFE
MR B WA SN B BERTE

ERANEEIEZERAEMNBE -
BRI ERR & 2= K IR E IR B ) 3 75
REBHEB A HRIRHELEN
Rl Ras B A A 28 o B ERAlEHD
TS BRI °

WEERRERR
REFKDEXEERERERLER
BREN-F—RFENANBEIL

R R - RREEERN
AR #26,052,0007T#)3 & R B I
BERBRLTH70%RIE - BEREL
ARPEKRINBERETERLE
REERERT - HEREERE
ELHFER_T—RFALATK °
& - MERBRLZERBAKEN
BT -

F+—-HA=+—H 31 December 2016

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)

(A)

Business combination (Cont’d)

Acquisition of Guangzhou Wanning, Foshan
Shunde Hetai and Zhuhai Yuanxing (Cont’d)

The post-acquisition financial results of Guangzhou
Wanning, Foshan Shunde Hetai and Zhuhai Yuanxing
had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
revenue or profit for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the
expected synergies and other benefits from combining
the activities of Guangzhou Wanning, Foshan
Shunde Hetai and Zhuhai Yuanxing with those of the
Group. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax
purposes.

Acquisition of Guangdong Junan

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement entered
into by Times Property Management and the then
shareholders of Guangdong Junan on 8 August 2016,
Times Property Management acquired a 70% equity
interest in Guangdong Junan at a cash consideration
of RMB26,052,000. Guangdong Junan is an elevator
installation and maintenance company established
in the PRC with limited liability. The relevant equity
transfer registration arrangement was completed in
September 2016. Since then, Guangdong Junan
became a subsidiary of the Group.
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37. BB AT () 37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)

A EXKEOH(E) (A) Business combination (Cont’d)
WEEEREAR L () Acquisition of Guangdong Junan (Cont’d)
EREBLZAWERBN I ERIEE The aggregate fair values of the identifiable assets
REBEMAREBEAENAT and liabilities of Guangdong Junan as at the date of

acquisition were as follows:

RU B RERE

WA AREE

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

ARETFT

RMB’000

Y - BB MEE Property, plant and equipment 23

FEURE 550 Trade receivables 30,195

BRI - 0e REAER IR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 2,824

e RIRITERS Cash and bank balances 1,162
e E H30E Trade payables (17,230)
HAth T 5RI8 I JE R T 5RIE Other payables and accruals (799)
FERIERIR Tax payables (5,718)

kB EEF BN AN EE Fair value of net assets acquired 10,457
FEPEAR RS Non-controlling interests (3,137)

7,320

U EERREE Goodwill on acquisition 18,732

VAR & 2+ Satisfied by cash 26,052
BHELANEARERIACEED An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
MEFBELSTOT - equivalents in respect of the above acquisition is as

follows:

ARETFT

RMB’000

LIRS RE Total cash consideration (26,052)

NEEFEBEMRE Consideration to be paid subsequent to current year 8,097
FERNENRE Consideration paid during the year (17,955)

PRt BEHIIR & iR 1TAE Bh 4858 Total cash and bank balances acquired 1,162

ERWEERRLTHNIRS NIREE Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

BY R S5 of the acquisition of Guangdong Junan (16,793)
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37. IRRMIE LT ()

(A EBES/HE)

W R SR B 2 (4R

EREZOWIB R G EEHAE
BH#HE—"T-—R"Ft+t-_A=t—H
LFERNGEBARNBLBRER

2 o

N

EHERNAEEZRAEERKZH
BERRGRASENEEREH
BHEEMELMNRGR RS R E M
ek o BB RER TS A

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)

(A)

Business combination (Cont’d)

Acquisition of Guangdong Junan (Cont’d)

The post-acquisition financial results of Guangdong
Junan had no significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated revenue or profit for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the
expected synergies and other benefits from combining
the assets and activities of Guangdong Junan with
those of the Group. The goodwill is not deductible for

%o income tax purposes.
(B) WEMBLQR(TMEAXERK) (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
businesses
WEKERE Acquisition of Zhuhai Changxin
BEKSSEARBIKEREER Pursuant to the relevant equity transfer agreements
BENR—_E—RAF+—A=++t entered into between Zhuhai Xinshidai and the then
HilVHHBEREEERSE T shareholders of Zhuhai Changxin on 27 November
8 EZ AR LA R #228,800,000 7T 2015, Zhuhai Xinshidai acquired a 100% equity
IR e R EREIKERERN100% interest of Zhuhai Changxin at a cash consideration
& - IKBRERNFBIKZHE of RMB228,800,000. Zhuhai Changxin is a property
PREEMERE AR - HEREE development company established in the PRC with
BELLTHERZZE—XRF=A% limited liability. The relevant equity transfer registration
e lkfE MBREDKARNER arrangement was completed in March 2016. Since
BORT B A A then, Zhuhai Changxin became a subsidiary of the
Group.
WERERIIEBBNAIHBAIEE The identifiable assets and liabilities of Zhuhai
rEEMT : Changgxin as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
ARETT
RMB’000
BRPYIE Properties under development 375,498
& RIRITEERR Cash and bank balances 2
H At JEA 5RIE N FE A IR Other payables and accruals (146,700)
228,800
B &2 Satisfied by cash 228,800
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37. BB AT () 37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)
B) WEMEBAR(TEAZE) (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
(#&) businesses (Cont’d)
WEHRERE (&) Acquisition of Zhuhai Changxin (Cont’d)
ER i ENRE S NIRSEEBY An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
mAFRBEOMT equivalents in respect of the above acquisition is as
follows:
ARKEFT
RMB’000
BB ERE Total cash consideration (228,800)
RBEFEREBEANRE Consideration paid for the acquisitions in prior years 148,000
FAERE Consideration paid during the year (80,800)
i aIR & RIRTT4ERR 1858 Total cash and bank balances acquired 2
ERANERERENRERASE Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
BY)IRLFE of the acquisition of Zhuhai Changxin (80,798)
WEEE MRS Acquisition of Guangzhou Keladini

252

RAREMN BB EEMNE e E R
MERREN-_T—RFEA+/\B:T
HERAREEE RS - BEIMNE
2P ARBE177,320,000 7T IR £
KRB U EE BN BHAL 8 fE 79 100% A%
HE o BMNEH B B B S K
EREAWEFAE AR - HHEARE
EREEETHER S —F— A
TR o b1 EMNEREEB K A
RNEBMAKIBAR ©

R ERERARAT 2016 FERE

Pursuant to the relevant equity transfer agreement
entered into between Guangzhou Shengyu and the
then shareholders of Guangzhou Keladini on 18 July
2015, Guangzhou Shengyu acquired a 100% equity
interest of Guangzhou Keladini at a cash consideration
of RMB177,320,000. Guangzhou Keladini is a
property development company established in the
PRC with limited liability. The relevant equity transfer
registration arrangement was completed in January
2016. Since then, Guangzhou Keladini became a
subsidiary of the Group.
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37. BB AR ()

—EF—RF+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2016

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTD)
B) WEMEBAT(TERER) (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
(&) businesses (Cont’d)
U Bg MR fE (4]) Acquisition of Guangzhou Keladini (Cont’d)
& I RHAz 3 T2 pA i B ER ) R 24 B The identifiable assets and liabilities of Guangzhou
BERAGBNOT : Keladini as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
Y - BB M Property, plant and equipment 667
R Properties under development 235,993
FEWE 5 5kI8 Trade receivables 3,598
FENRIE - B e M E A E YR TE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 3,780
R & RIRTTEERR Cash and bank balances 401
eI 8 2508 Trade payables (148)
EAth < 5RIE I JE R T 5RIE Other payables and accruals (66,971)
177,320
KB & I Satisfied by cash 177,320
B EMYIERRE RIBEEFED An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
MEFEATT - equivalents in respect of the above acquisition is as
follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
BN SRE Total cash consideration (177,320)
RBEFERBEARE Consideration paid for the acquisitions in prior years 119,810
FRAEMRE Consideration paid during the year (57,510)
FrU s IR & IR TR B KE Total cash and bank balances acquired 401
BRRBEMNBHmENRe MReE Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
B F5E of the acquisition of Guangzhou Keladini (57,109)
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’D)
B) WEMBATR(TEAZEK) (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
(%&) businesses (Cont’d)
BB E MR Acquisition of Guangzhou Jiesheng

REBEEMNEREEMNERE KRR
R-T—AF+ALRFILHIER
BrEEpE  BINERAARE
15,333,0007T H) 4 (B U B B M 32
BEEERRE - BINER AT
R BRETREERAT - 48
BAREERECLHFE N TR
F—RAZEK - Ik BMNREEK
REEENOHEAR -

MR UEE B B E BRI EE

Pursuant to the relevant equity transfer agreement
entered into between Guangzhou Zichen and the
then shareholders of Guangzhou Jiesheng on
7 October 2015, Guangzhou Zichen acquired a
100% equity interest of Guangzhou Jiesheng at a
total consideration of RMB15,333,000. Guangzhou
Jiesheng is an investment holding company
established in the PRC with limited liability. The
relevant equity transfer registration arrangement was
completed in January 2016. Since then, Guangzhou
Jiesheng became a subsidiary of the Group.

The identifiable assets and liabilities of Guangzhou

MEEMT : Jiesheng as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
M - BB NG Property, plant and equipment 88,315
R& RIBITEER Cash and bank balances 22
FERTE S5 FR0E Trade payables (20,763)
HAb B FRIA Other payables (52,241)
15,333
AT R FEERE : Total consideration satisfied by:
Be Cash 10,000
E b A FRIE K FERT AR Other payables and accruals 5,333

254 EMUEZRER AT 2016 FERE



WS R IRMIEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—EFE—RFt+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2016

37. IRRMIE LT ()

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’D)
B) WRKELDR(TFREHK) (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
(#) businesses (Cont’d)
e }El{\l\!ﬁgﬁ(ﬁ) . Acquisition of Guangzhou Jiesheng (Cont’d)
ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬂi{,ﬁﬁ’gfﬁﬁ&fﬁ{fﬁ{g% An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
THFBEAHIT - equivalents in respect of the above acquisition is as
follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
BESRE Total cash consideration (15,333)
REFZREMNNRE Consideration to be paid subsequent to current year 5,333
FRENRE Consideration paid during the year (10,000)
FrU s IR & IR TR0 B 5E Total cash and bank balances acquired 22
BRKERNERNRe MRS Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
etz pntasbes=c] of the acquisition of Guangzhou Jiesheng (9,978)
WEE L 2 EEE Acquisition of Foshan Xinglanwan

REGEIL B IR B L 2 852 & AR
BR-_ZE—AF+-AtRIIHN
HAREEE R - BILBRAA
R #99,253,731 T IR & KB W
B 1L 2 85 266.5% 8 I 4E o 4511
EEEBBNPBKINERETY
ERENAF - HEAREESRT LR
HFERZZT—R"F+—A%K - Iit
% BILEEEBEKRATEERMN
BARR] -

Pursuant to the relevant equity transfer agreement
entered into between Foshan Hongtai and the then
shareholders of Foshan Xinglanwan on 7 December
2015, Foshan Hongtai acquired a 66.5% equity
interest of Foshan Xinglanwan at a cash consideration
of RMB99,253,731. Foshan Xinglanwan is a property
development company established in the PRC with
limited liability. The relevant equity transfer registration
arrangement was completed in November 2016.
Since then, Foshan Xinglanwan became a subsidiary
of the Group.
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37. WEMEATGR) 37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT'D)
B) WEMEBAT(TERER) (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
(%&) businesses (Cont’d)
WhE B L 2B (ME) Acquisition of Foshan Xinglanwan (Cont’d)
R 2B ENIE H RS S RIE The identifiable assets and liabilities of Foshan
EXGENT : Xinglanwan as at the date of acquisition were as
follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
TEFOE - e M E A ER R Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 168,336
R RIBTTEER Cash and bank balances 99,258
E A pE T ERIE K FERTRIR Other payables and accruals (120,024)
147,570
PG Ea Non-controlling interests (48,316)
AR @ A Satisfied by cash 99,254
@ LARYNIEARe RIBEEED An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
MASEEONIAT equivalents in respect of the above acquisition is as
follows:
ARETFT
RMB’000
LIRS RE Total cash consideration (99,254)
Frib BB IR & SRERITAE R 4B 5R Total cash and bank balances acquired 99,258
EREWEBHLEEENIRS RIRSEEY Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
MAFEE of the acquisition of Foshan Xinglanwan 4

256 U EZRER AT 2016 FEHRE



B MR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—XRF+ZH=1+—H 31 December 2016

37. IRRMIE LT ()

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTD)
B) WHEKBAR(FMEAXEK) (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
(&) businesses (Cont’d)
WG LB RE Acquisition of Foshan Baiyingda
RIEG L ISR E LS B E SRR Pursuant to the relevant equity transfer agreement
RRZZE—RNFRA=ZTHIIYH entered into between Foshan Hongtai and the then
HEARR RGBT UAA shareholder of Foshan Baiyingda on 30 May 2016,
R #10,000,000 7T 89 IR & R B I Foshan Hongtai acquired a 100% equity interest
B AEENDIRE - #LA of Foshan Baiyingda at a cash consideration of
BEAPPBEKIHBRETME RMB10,000,000. Foshan Baiyingda is a property
AR - AR EE RS development company established in the PRC with
ERZZT—RFEATK - b& - limited liability. The relevant equity transfer registration
HBLUEREEKATEBENNEAR arrangement was completed in July 2016. Since then,
Ao Foshan Baiyingda became a subsidiary of the Group.
HILEZERKERBNE#RE The identifiable assets and liabilities of Foshan
ENBENT : Baiyingda as at the date of acquisition were as
follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
FE Y2 Properties under development 525,956
R & RIRTTEERR Cash and bank balances 10
E A JE AT FRIE M 5T IR Other payables and accruals (515,966)
10,000
IR XA Satisfied by cash 10,000
AR LLMKENRE e RRSEED An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
MEFELTT - equivalents in respect of the above acquisition is as
follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
IR RIE Total cash consideration (10,000)
BB IR & RIRITHERRBEE Total cash and bank balances acquired 10
ERANERLERENRE NS EEY Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
R FRE of the acquisition of Foshan Baiyingda (9,990)
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37. BB AT ()

(B)

BB E 2R (TERER)

(&)

WEREME TR

TR PR 551 L) 6 2 B 1 P2 0 L RS IR 3R
RZZ—NFNLANBR M AEE
fRiEsEE R - FILRRUAARE
55,000,0007T #9358 & 1B Ui E N
PEZn 2 ERARIE - BMNE AR
B MBRETYEREQR
HEAREESEELLHEER -
—ANEFE+— AR o Wik - BMNE
DEXAEEBHNBAG -

BN E RSN BRI EE
REEIT

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)

(B)

Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
businesses (Cont’d)

Acquisition of Guangzhou Longya

Pursuant to the relevant equity transfer agreement
entered into between Foshan Hongtai and the then
shareholder of Guangzhou Longya on 8 September
2016, Foshan Hongtai acquired a 100% equity
interest of Guangzhou Longya at a cash consideration
of RMB55,000,000. Guangzhou Longya is a property
development company established in the PRC with
limited liability. The relevant equity transfer registration
arrangement was completed in November 2016.
Since then, Guangzhou Longya became a subsidiary
of the Group.

The identifiable assets and liabilities of Guangzhou
Longya as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

AREFT

RMB’000

TERNFOE - me MEAMEW R Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 85,001
E b R T8 K FEET R IE Other payables and accruals (30,001)
55,000

AR & 2 A+ Satisfied by cash 55,000

BRLANRENRE KRS EEY

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

MHEFEATNT - equivalents in respect of the above acquisition is as
follows:

AREFT
RMB’000
I8 SR(E Total cash consideration (55,000)
REZREMNRE Consideration to be paid subsequent to current year 15,000
FRENRE Consideration paid during the year (40,000)
BB RIR & R ERTT 45 8R4 R Total cash and bank balances acquired -

FRANEEMNESNRS RIREE Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
BRI F5E of the acquisition of Guangzhou Longya (40,000)
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(B)

WEME 2R (TERERE)

(%)

It 8 M 3 2R

IR IR BB B N ¥ 2R & R AR R
RZE—RF—AZ+/BFUN
EERREE R - EMBEUA
R #154,270,000 7T F IR & B Uk
BE NI 2 AR o BNz
BRPRKRNERETYEME
AAl o BAARBEESEECLHER
ZE-RFLARK - & - BM
HEEXNATSENHB AT -

BN RS B I E BRI E E
REEWT :

F+—H=+—H 31 December 2016

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)

(B)

Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
businesses (Cont’d)

Acquisition of Guangzhou Kuntai

Pursuant to the relevant equity transfer agreement
entered into between Guangzhou Shengyu and the
then shareholders of Guangzhou Kuntai on 26 January
2016, Guangzhou Shengyu acquired a 100% equity
interest of Guangzhou Kuntai at a cash consideration
of RMB154,270,000. Guangzhou Kuntai is a property
development company established in the PRC with
limited liability. The relevant equity transfer registration
arrangement was completed in July 2016. Since then,
Guangzhou Kuntai became a subsidiary of the Group.

The identifiable assets and liabilities of Guangzhou
Kuntai as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

AREFT
RMB’000
Taf T A &R (MIEE14) Prepaid land lease payment (note 14) 269,963

B MIRTTHES

Cash and bank balances 14

E b 3RIE R FERTFRIE Other payables and accruals (45,721)
STERITE R HMERK Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings (69,986)

154,270

VAR & S+ Satisfied by cash 154,270
B LMY IEAR e RIBEEED An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
MEFELWTOT - equivalents in respect of the above acquisition is as

follows:

ARETFT

RMB’000

BB SNE Total cash consideration (154,270)

Fr MR & R IRI TR B TE Total cash and bank balances acquired 14

ERANERENBRENR S MRSEEY Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

Piiasbeis=l of the acquisition of Guangzhou Kuntai (154,256)
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37. BB AT ()

NE+—-A=+—H 31 December 2016

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’D)
B) WEMEBAR(TEAERK) (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
(&) businesses (Cont’d)
W 8 A R B Acquisition of Guangzhou Xiangjun

R IR N SR 7= N F) B8 B B AR R
R-ZT—XNFAAZRFIIMIEE
R ERE  BNERAARE
256,000,000 7T HY 3R & B U I8 E
MR 2 IARME - BN AR
FERNINBERETMERER
A o EEREEREE R ER S
T—RNF+AZEK - t1& - BN
BEXKATEBNHEAR -

BEMARERUE R RN R EE

Pursuant to the relevant equity transfer agreement
entered into between Guangzhou Zichen and the
then shareholders of Guangzhou Xiangjun on 3
September 2016, Guangzhou Zichen acquired a
100% equity interest of Guangzhou Xiangjun at a
cash consideration of RMB256,000,000. Guangzhou
Xiangjun is a property development company
established in the PRC with limited liability. The
relevant equity transfer registration arrangement was
completed in October 2016. Since then, Guangzhou
Xiangjun became a subsidiary of the Group.

The identifiable assets and liabilities of Guangzhou

FEedEmT Xiangjun as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

ARETT

RMB’000

TafS T EFRIAE(MEE14) Prepaid land lease payment (note 14) 382,784

& RIRTTEERR Cash and bank balances 120

FERRRIE ~ 24 R EH A EY A Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,902

o th AR08 N JE ST RE Other payables and accruals (128,806)

256,000

AR &+ Satisfied by cash 256,000
B LRYIERR e RIBEEED An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
MEFEATOT ¢ equivalents in respect of the above acquisition is as

follows:

ARKEFor

RMB’000

430 S R(EB Total cash consideration (256,000)

RNEFEEMNRE Consideration to be paid subsequent to current year 210,000

FREMNRE Consideration paid during the year (46,000)

PR RIR © IR TAS R 4258 Total cash and bank balances acquired 120

BEBEENASNESNBRES Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
B %E of the acquisition of Guangzhou Xiangjun (45,880)
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37. IRRMIE LT ()

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’D)
B) WEMBAR(TEAZEK) (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
(&) businesses (Cont’d)
BEERRR Acquisition of Guangdong Baoquan

B EIMNE S RERRR SRR
R-ZT—XNF+=-ANBTIHAE
Bl EEE RS BINEBEUAR
5 58,800,000 7T K IR & X B W B8
BREROEHRE - BERRREAB
RPRKINEREEREERA
Ao EEREEEE LT ER S
E-RNF+ZAREK - & ER
REERBAEENHB AR -

ERERPKER RN EANEE

Pursuant to the relevant equity transfer agreement
entered into between Guangzhou Junheng and the
then shareholders of Guangdong Baoquan on 6
December 2016, Guangzhou Junheng acquired a
100% equity interest of Guangdong Baoquan at a
cash consideration of RMB58,800,000. Guangdong
Baoquan is an investment holding company
established in the PRC with limited liability. The
relevant equity transfer registration arrangement
was completed in December 2016. Since then,
Guangdong Baoqguan became a subsidiary of the
Group.

The identifiable assets and liabilities of Guangdong

KBENT : Baoquan as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
Re RIRITHER Cash and bank balances 2
AR - RS REMEWFIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 79,144
H b e I & fEst IE Other payables and accruals (20,346)
58,800
LAIR & 2+ Satisfied by cash 58,800
BHELRNEARE RIBEEED An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
mEFRELSWOT ¢ equivalents in respect of the above acquisition is as
follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
4aIH SRS Total cash consideration (58,800)
REFIZFEMNKE Consideration to be paid subsequent to current year 11,761
FERNEARE Consideration paid during the year (47,039)
PR IR & R IRTTAS AR %R Total cash and bank balances acquired )
EREWEERRANRSERSE Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
B nL s of the acquisition of Guangdong Baoquan (47,037)
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37. BB AT ()

(B)

WEHE2 R (TERER)

(%)

WEERRE

BEEREEHEREEZRIE
R-ZB—RE+-A+HBITIH
RRARR S R - BRASMUA
R # 267,160,000 T M IR £ R B I
BERRENDIHRE - BFEEE
ABRPREKNERETYEME
NAE - EEREEERERLHER
TE-XRE+-ATK - B B
REZEDHRAAEENKIBAR -

BERENERHNERRIEE

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)

(B)

Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
businesses (Cont’d)

Acquisition of Qingyuan Jiada

Pursuant to the relevant equity transfer agreement
entered into between Qingyuan Hongjing and the
then shareholders of Qingyuan Jiada on 15 December
2016, Qingyuan Hongjing acquired a 100% equity
interest of Qingyuan Jiada at a cash consideration
of RMB267,160,000. Qingyuan Jiada is a property
development company established in the PRC with
limited liability. The relevant equity transfer registration
arrangement was completed in December 2016.
Since then, Qingyuan Jiada became a subsidiary of
the Group.

The identifiable assets and liabilities of Qingyuan Jiada

/
FaEmT as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
TEft i E B (FisE14) Prepaid land lease payment (note 14) 268,159

Be MIRTTHER

Cash and bank balances 25

EH b FE {5018 R JERTRIE Other payables and accruals (1,024)
267,160
A& A Satisfied by cash 267,160

BR LR ENRe KRS EEY

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

MESFEATT - equivalents in respect of the above acquisition is as
follows:

ARHETFT
RMB’000
@IS RS Total cash consideration (267,160)
NEFIBFENRE Consideration to be paid subsequent to current year 54,180
FERNEARE Consideration paid during the year (212,980)
PN BERIIR © iR 1TAE eh4E 58 Total cash and bank balances acquired 25

BERWE SRR ENIRSNREE Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
L iyl of the acquisition of Qingyuan Jiada (212,955)
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38.

BARR
RB|EHRR - AEREFETRITE TR
BEFREHER  ZFRBEFERA/AR
SEMENETEEELHNRBER
RBERGR - REZFBEERRIZIBN
K& AEBEBERRITEEENEES
RIS RERRIBA S ER S K E
T AARERRZERBEYNENSIER
BLEAE - ARENERYAABERS
EREE L ARG - YREHERGE
BRLBRER  BHEMBEE —RNE
BEEREHRYER —EMFREDL -

RBEMRAUE T AREMXBEENZ
BEFmERITREMNERSTRNT

38.

NE+—-HA=1+—H 31 December 2016

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of the mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for
certain purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments
by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principal together with the accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to
the banks, and the Group is entitled to take over the legal
titles and possession of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee periods start from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and end upon the issuance of real estate
ownership certificates which is generally within one to two
years after the purchasers have taken possession of the
relevant properties.

The amount of guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to the purchasers of the Group’s properties
as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

=i —ThHF
2016 2015
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MAEEMEETHEEERN Guarantees in respect of the mortgage
RIBE IR EHAER facilities for certain purchasers of
the Group’s properties 18,098,257 11,819,002

39.

EERA - EERNFWERT - HEY
WA 2R FENBFEEERERREA
S EREFME NS - Rt ESANH
IR R ARIERIEH B

B E KB fnaY 3K
REBBLEE BRITE R R E bSPTIR
MEERBMDHFE  BRGREMBHRE
MIFEST ©

39.

The directors consider that in the case of default in payments,
the net realisable value of the related properties can cover the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage principal together
with the accrued interest and penalty, therefore no provision
has been made in the consolidated financial statements for
the guarantees.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND SHARES

Details of the Group’s assets and shares pledged for the
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings are
included in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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40. EEHRZHE

H 31 December 2016

40. OPERATING LEASE

ARRANGEMENTS
(@ EALEHEA (@) Aslessor
AEBEREBESHETHHAELR The Group leases its investment properties under
B BTEHBENT1Z=164F - operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
HAEBRK— MBI BB L RE for terms ranging from 1 to 16 years. The terms of the
& o leases generally also required tenants to pay security
deposits.
RRERR - ANEB IR T 0] B As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
ELHE AT HREEBNER total future minimum lease receivables under non-
B R PR & K FH E B W R TE B 5 a0 cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling
™ due as follows:
—RE —E-hF
2016 2015
AREFTT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 46,359 42,134
FEFAF(RIEEERT) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 108,341 64,311
AFE After five years 149,918 6,474
304,618 112,919
(b) {EREBA (b) As lessee
REERBELCHEZHHAST The Group leases certain of the office properties and
WAMEREEDF(R T () ° commercial properties (see (c) below) under operating
HTERNMEREN T6EA =507 ° lease arrangements. Leases for the properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 6 months to 50
years.
REEER - NEERBET 8B At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
EEHE - RN TYHRE AR KRR total future minimum lease payments under non-
HEMEEFRIBEEIT - cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:
—E-XRF —ZE—RF
2016 2015
AREFTT ARBTFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
—&FR Within one year 121,588 80,302
F_ERELTF(BEERRE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 466,020 331,207
AFig After five years 1,468,971 659,526
2,056,579 1,071,035
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40. EEHRZHR)

40. OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

(c) ®EHEZH (c) Subleasing arrangements
AEBR_ZTE——FT-AREE The Group acquired Guangzhou Zhide in December
MERE - WiEBREMNEERENE 2012 and commenced its subleasing business
NI EEAER - ZEWET through Guangzhou Zhide and its subsidiaries by
MBYE=FHEE - AEBHRE refurnishing and subleasing the properties leased from
HTHNEBFES - independent third parties to external tenants.
il vizk e Sublease payments to be received
EAH T AN P YR E A AR T Terms for subleasing to external tenants are
FA7H - RIMEER - XEERE negotiated ranging from 1 to 17 years. As at the end
AR EEEE AL EE - RNV HARE R of the reporting period, the Group had total future
BREYFE P A R PR S 1B FE YOS AE BUIR minimum sublease payments expected to be received
HELWT under non-cancellable subleasing arrangements with
its tenants falling due as follows:
—E-XRF —T—hF
2016 2015
ARKFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 179,678 315,005
E_EFERF(BIEEEME) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 238,648 125,810
hF% After five years 37,178 42,561
455,504 483,376
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41. %&ifz 41. COMMITMENTS
B SCHTEE40() 5 il 1 48 45 FH & AR E ) - In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
NEBRFEEIRBEE AT E A - in note 40(b) above, the Group had the following capital

commitments as at the end of the reporting period:

—E-RF —E—HF
2016 2015
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BETAERVEH B - Contracted, but not provided for:
HE+H Leasehold land 5,238,920 2,273,617
FREER Y5 Properties under development 6,299,819 6,060,520
AR E Equity investments 1,699,731 1,119,246
13,238,470 9,453,383
b - AEBEBEBE AR RAEEDER In addition, the Group’s capital commitments related to
BARFSE(WARFTALSOAT - associates and joint ventures which are not included above
are as follows:
—E-RF —E—HF
2016 2015
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BETAERVEH B - Contracted, but not provided for:
FEE Y Properties under development - 5,120
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(a

5 RAEERIN -

—EF—RF+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2016

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BRREMBMRE S RENR
7% 8 B30 4R o5 19 P £

B 2EFEAANTEARS

(a)

elsewh

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

ere in these financial statements, the Group

had the following material transactions with related

parties during the reporting period:
=F-RF —ThHF
2016 2015
k=3 AR¥TFT ARBEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MEMTRRERPESEE Lease of office premises from 0]
BERARRF— ST Guangzhou Times Development
HERP NG Enterprise Group Company
Limited and Ms. Li Yiping 1,295 1,295
Htat - Note:
(i) ENTMRARBRCEEBEFR 0] Guangzhou Times Development Enterprise Group
AE(HRBEREE ] A—H Company Limited (“Times Development Group”)
BT ——FRASMLEE is a company controlled by Mr. Cen Jiancai, father of
HRXBESEVREEFOA Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, from year 2011 onwards. Ms.
Al F—¥Z T AEEIELEE Li Yiping is the spouse of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung. The
HIBC S - THE Bk R ER rates and conditions of the lease are similar to those
HIBILE=ZANBERREMHE offered to independent third parties.
B -
(b) EERAEEFMHMRS (b) Other transactions with related parties

) REEFER  AEBER
HRERENER HERE
REREEZMOHETE

R

(i) RREFEA - AATFHE
BB AR R EET
FHSEBANERLEEAR
Rz EENEBE—
SR THAN —HREmE
KN FEREE -

M

(i)

The Group used certain trademarks registered
by Times Development Group on a royalty free
basis in both years.

Times Real Estate, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, used and occupied a property
with a gross floor area of approximately 111
sg.m. owned by Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse of
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, on a rental free basis in
both years.
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42. RBFHREH(K)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTD)
(b) EEREBAEMNEMRS(E) (b) Other transactions with related parties
(Cont’d)
(i) RZE—XFNLA+NAE (i) ~ Guangzhou Shengyu has transferred of 50%
BN BB EERELERR equity interest of Zhuhai Hongjing Investment
B AR A RH50%M4E T & Co., Ltd. to Guangzhou Jingjun on 19
ML o September 2016.
(c) EEREERMIREZLEER (c) Outstanding balances with related
parties
AR A B IEAR R R P FTIREE © A As disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
EEHEEBE N NEEEMNLE position, the Group’s balances with its associates and
HAEIRI - 28 BEETEEN joint ventures are unsecured, interest free and have no
HARR o fixed terms of repayment.
FRN - AEERE —EEETE During the year, the Group subscribed a portion of
WD RRNFE  2BREARE the subordinated tranche of a trust plan, at an amount
220,500,0007T © Z & B ENEZEA of RMB220,500,000, which was accounted for as
B 75k o R ABRSIE AT & & available-for-sale investment in the consolidated
& o ZlaratElEmmAEEEE statement of financial position. The trust plan in turn
PEZI—FEEFRE —FERERS granted the funding from senior and subordinated
BRRBIGEE - RE=FOFE investors as a 3-year interest-bearing loan to
B o REBIERZIEET SRR Shenzhen Yihao Cang, a joint venture of the Group.
MEHFBBA BT RFRED The Group, as the holder of the subordinated
o tranche of the trust plan, has no guaranteed return of
investment.
(d) HEBEFEEEAB(REESI)® (d)  Compensation for key management personnel
H - (including directors) of the Group:
—E-RF —E—hF
2016 2015
AREFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e EMEREYHZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 44,936 30,134
FIRBMATEAL Performance related bonuses 56,362 31,188
RIKEFT B Pension scheme contributions 617 435
101,915 61,757
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Further details of directors’ remuneration are included
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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43. BN SIEMIA 43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
NBEHF  SEFNSR T ENERE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
ORI instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
—EB-R"E+=ZA=t+—8 31 December 2016
ZHEIEE Financial assets
AHHER
7953 cHEE
PEWRE Available-
Loans and for-sale P
receivables financial assets Total
AREF AREFT ARE T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE 55708 Trade receivables 2,578,562 - 2,578,562
SPAFER R e REAMEYW  Financial assets included in
RENEREE prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 5,454,583 - 5,454,583
U & S ERFIE Amounts due from joint ventures 658,593 - 658,593
e 2 N R 5B Amounts due from associates 421,647 - 421,647
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments - 546,558 546,558
IR HISRITIE R Restricted bank deposits 2,958,017 - 2,958,017
BeRIELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 8,922,727 - 8,922,727
20,994,129 546,558 21,540,687
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43.

AR SERmTR(E)

43.

ZE-AE+ZHA=+—H@E)

L —XF+=-H=+—H 31 December 2016

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONT’D)

31 December 2016 (Cont’d)

EHEE Financial liabilities
ERRSE
BAABESIE
HemeE
R A Financial
FENERMEE liabilities
Financial at fair value
liabilities at  through profit Hst
amortised cost or loss Total
AREF7 ARETFT ARETFR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ENESEERERE Trade and bills payables 3,195,843 - 3,195,843
ST AEfhFE N FIE K JERT T IE Financial liabilities included in
HemasE other payables and accruals 9,424,058 57,948 9,482,006
JENE S ERMTIE Amounts due to joint ventures 92,337 - 92,337
STRRITERNEMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 20,488,542 - 20,488,542
Qe Convertible Bonds 242,354 70,208 312,562
33,443,134 128,156 33,571,290
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43. HEBNBSHERTA(IR)

—ZE-hAF+=-HA=+—H

—EF—RF+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2016

CATEGORY (CONT’D)

31 December 2015

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

THEE Financial assets

AHEEs

ER R SHEE

e IR Available-
Loans and for-sale F
receivables financial assets Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE 550A Trade receivables 1,977,560 - 1,977,560

SHAFERRUE e REMEYR  Financial assets included in
RENEREE prepayments, deposits and

other receivables 1,262,065 - 1,262,065
WA E P ERNFIE Amounts due from joint ventures 207,153 - 207,153
FEU — B A B ) 518 Amount due from an associate 351,610 - 351,610
A ERE Available-for-sale investments - 82,018 82,018
SR ISR TR Restricted bank deposits 3,907,868 - 3,907,868
HERBRLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,841,360 - 4,841,360
12,547,616 82,018 12,629,634
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43. HEBNBSHERMTR(IR)

CATEGORY (CONT’D)

“E-REF+ZA=T—-H#E

31 December 2015 (Cont’d)

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

EHEE Financial liabilities
wAREEYIE
Hemans
RESHRAR Financial
TENemAE liabilities
Financial at fair value
liabilities through profit st
at amortised cost or loss Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
[ENEB SR Trade payables 3,714,873 - 3,714,873
SFAEMREN AR ERTZUER)  Financial liabilities included in
TREE other payables and accruals 4,045,220 52,615 4,097,835
SHERITER R EMmER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 15,690,182 - 15,690,182
RES e Convertible Bonds 216,551 61,380 277,931
23,666,826 113,995 23,780,821
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4. EMTEANLOARERL

RREER

AEENERTAREERRABENS
BAHERINOEEELAABERAT

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair value, are as follows:

R-ZE—XEF As at 31 December 2016 BEEE AREHE
+=B=+—H Carrying amounts Fair values
AR¥FTT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
THEE Financial liabilities
SFERITER R EAMAE R Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 20,488,542 21,327,980
Al ES Convertible Bonds 312,562 471,530
20,801,104 21,799,510
R-ZZE—RF As at 31 December 2015 BREE AREE
+=—A=+—8 Carrying amounts Fair values
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A==k Financial liabilities
SHERITER M EMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 15,690,182 16,277,814
EEA Convertible Bonds 277,931 408,133
15,968,113 16,685,947

EEEDFE - BKESFA - FEAEN
R e MEMEWFIAEN S REE
JEUW B B MR - FEUCHEE 2RI
B ZRFRTER  RERBAEFE
Y- BB SFIE - ARG AEMENK
BEREFARENERAENAAEERR
REERE  TEARZFTATEREHA
28 -

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from joint
ventures, amounts due from associates, restricted bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 273



B AR MY =t
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—=

44,

274

EMITAMAIARERLZ
RREERER)

TREE;RRBENAABEAZTIAAR
X577 (REFBFBREERIINERRSZ T
AIRGEEAR c U TFHERBRERHIAR
BEAREE -

AERRITERREMERNRABEDH
BEHMARRRSRERENK - FERR LR
HREMIEABRUN T ANB AT B X
MRAE - RZT—RFET_A=1—
B AREFBRITREMERORELD
1% E S TEK e

AREFERUATERAEERBEESRT
AW DA EE -

B DREEREREEREED
E RIS (R IGER )i B

F-H . ARBERGBETETE &
HEDEMERY A A EER
EBERNEEBABERE
BRI BREE

F=: AABERGBETEATE &
METDEMERE AR BER
EREANKEBABEAT
AIEEREUR

R ERERARAT 2016 FERE

NE+—-HA=+—H 31 December 2016

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instruments could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31
December 2016 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1:  fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2:  fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 8:  fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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44. M T AN LOAEERZ 44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

REERHEE) HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
T —IHAHEERE I RZE—X Except an available-for-sale investment, the Group did
F+-_A=+—H XEEBEFETM not hold any financial assets carried at fair value as at 31
BAREBEYRENSREE December 2016.
BEALEENEE Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
R=Z—-~"5+=A=+—F Asat31 December 2016 BTEARETZAABENE

Fair value measurement using

RS EXTRE  EXFUBER

WHE BARE BAHE
(E-%) (B=&) (B=8)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs @t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AREF7 AREF7 AREF7 AREF7T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AL ERE Available-for-sale investment - - 220,500 220,500
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4. EMTANARBERL
REEBERE)

BEARBENAE:

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

R=ZB-AE+=-A=1+—-H Asat31December 2016

NTHERETZ AR BENE
Fair value measurement using

ERmS EXTRE  EXAFUBE

H5E WARE WARE
(B-%) (B=8) (B=%)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs @t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR¥F AR¥Fr AR¥FT AREFx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HAEMREAZUER Financial liabilities included in other
[EEt BN S REE payables and accruals - 57,948 - 57,948
TERTERRAMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings - 21,327,980 - 21,327,980
AkRES Convertible Bonds - - 471,530 471,530
- 21,385,928 471,530 21,857,458
WZZ—AF+-A=1—H Asat31 December 2015 ATFIARE T2 AR BETE
Fair value measurement using
RS EDNGE- - S VO
HRE BARE BARE
(F—H) (E=H) (E=8H)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETFT ARETFT ARETT NEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
S AHMENZIER Financial liabilities included in other
BN SRARE payables and accruals - 52,615 - 52,615
HERITEFREMER Interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings - 16,277,814 - 16,277,814
ARk ES Convertible Bonds - - 408,133 408,133
- 16,330,429 408,133 16,738,562
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44.

45.

EMIAMIARERL
RREERR)

RER F—PHEE_REXEAALB
EFfEEE  TESREELCRAES
ASEBHE=R(ZZT—FF : &) o

& RuE B EE B B R B3R

AEENEREETZERERES K
B FPAENRE - 2E MR EWRIR
MEREE  BESEEENFTIA - B
BEQRMFIR - AIEBERE - ZRE)
RITFFANRE KBS EFEY - AKE
MERABETIEBRENESFA 5TA
Hip R RERENSREE - 5
BIRITESR R B A R R AR E S -

(@ FI=mp
AEBEBEHTISF RS E BT
ZEAEEBEFTYHFENIRTE
AR EAERAERE - NEBHARE
FA A A] ) 3 42 B 2R R B A KRR

6 o
Z2

AEEHBOTSHNEESHRME
ZEAEENFBNEFENRES
fRI5HAE -

RZE—RE+A=+—8"

4 H AR ®5,888,235,0007C( =%
—hF : AR#¥4,812,310,0007T)
BVERTT & 3 R B At (& RIS LOZ B A

B -

44.

45.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2015: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from joint
ventures, amounts due from associates, available-for-sale
investments, restricted bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. The financial liabilities of the Group mainly
include trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings and the Convertible Bonds.

(@) Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank
loans and other borrowings bearing floating interest
rates. The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
long term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2016, total bank loans and

other borrowings of RMB5,888,235,000 (2015:
RMB4,812,310,000) were with floating interest rates.
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45. EREAREE BERBE

(a)

A= b ()
TRAPEMBEMEE R T E
HERT - FRARKERATEHRA
ME(EBRTBERTERLEME
R E) AR FRET Y% (ERN
FREEXRABIEEN) HHENE
IR BB - BAKER
Hi B ET g -

Bk AT 154 AT R % BA 8% Fh 4 SE Y 4
m Or4)

SE+ - A=+—H 31 December 2016

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(a)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit
before income tax (through the impact of floating rate
bank loans and other borrowings) and the properties
under development (through the capitalisation of
relevant borrowing costs) during the year. There was
no impact on the Group’s other equity.

Increase/(decrease) in profit before income tax
and properties under development

=F-AF —ThHF
2016 2015
AR¥TT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

L0 2= BEAR 1 00 B Bh If 100 basis points decrease in interest rates
B PSR AT A1) Profit before income tax 8,462 7,145
FEH Properties under development (50,313) (40,430)

WA RIES100EE 2, If 100 basis points increase in interest rates
ERPTS B AT A E Profit before income tax (8,462) (7,145)
FaEEgesky/ES Properties under development 50,313 40,430
278 HHUHEZRERAE 2016 FERS
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45. SRR EEBEERBE

(¥8)

SE+— H=-+—H 31 December 2016

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONT’D)
(b) SMNERE (b) Foreign currency risk
AEBEHERSREE A 0 28 The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
TS UARBEIT o NEFHE China and most of the transactions are conducted in
ERABTIEHUARESE  ME RMB. The Group’s assets and liabilities are principally
TRITEB R ETHMEAZE - denominated in RMB, while certain bank balances
BhEEEROBRRESDNEHE and certain other payables, senior notes and the
BEEH(E o ANEE B N R YR ELANE R Convertible Bonds are denominated in other foreign
% o currencies. The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange risk.
T3k 5 BRE BT Ho 8 2R i R g The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
ISR - fESREHIR - AEER end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
FEfE(AREEEERABA change in the RMB exchange rate against HK$,
LA BEHBSHHDE)RAEB NG with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
B(HNBEBINER ) HWARE profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
PR R 1A 1R 0] L B Bl Y BURY monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity
Mo (due to translation of foreign operations).
BRBLAT
Ext#/ FEEH A
(&) (FB2) #m,/
Increase/ Increase/ (RA)
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in exchange in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
% ARBFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—B-RE 2016
AR BTIRE If the RMB weakens against the HK$ 5 58,108 (73,312
AR S BTHE If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ 5 (58,108) 73,312
—T-hF 2015
MAREHBTEE If the RMB weakens against the HK$ 5 75,571 (90,718)
MARBHBETHE If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ 5 (75,571) 90,718

* TRERENE

*

Excluding retained profits

2016 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED 279



B AR MY =t
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—=

45 AR EEERERBR

280

(¥&)

(c)

EEER
AEEHESTEERR - AEH
MR e RS FEEBYRZRHIRT
FREBHFRPEAMBEFRT -

AAREMBRRENES MRS
EEY  ZRBIRITHER - BURE
SR FIABRNHE - ke RE
fRKFRBENSMEE - BRAE
RMFIR - U E N RIMFIA
A ERENREERAKE
REEREEAZENZKEER
%o AEENEMEREEYEE
REERR -

AEEC REMEEUNETEE
ERHFRITRE - WIRHIERIARE
RxEBEERETEREME - %F
BROBEFBENGREPHRE
FOBRESS
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NE+—-A=+—H 31 December 2016

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits are mainly deposited with state-owned
banks in Mainland China.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, amounts due from joint ventures,
amounts due from associates and available-for-sale
investments included in the consolidated statement
of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.
The Group has no other financial assets which carry
significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of its property units and provided
guarantees to secure the obligations of these
purchasers for repayments. A detailed disclosure
of these guarantees is made in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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45. gﬁjﬁlﬁwﬁ"éﬂ BERBE

(d) FREDNEER
AEENERBEERFTRNE
SRALEEY AAEEEBR
REE A EEREBRE AT AE
SR EMT A -

TERBARNEENHRERRERE
RIMERMEFENSRAGBENET
B -

R-ZB-—AE+ZA=1t—H

45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(d) Liquidity risk
Management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents, and the Group has
available funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its construction
commitments.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the
Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period based on the contractual undiscounted
payments.

At 31 December 2016

RERE
On demand
AREFT

DHSEA  3E12{8A HiB5E
Less than 3to12 1ZE5F Over Foh
3 months months 1to 5 years 5years Total

ARBBTFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFZT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ENESTERER Trade and bills payables 3,195,843 - - - - 3,195,843
SAHMENZIERJES Financial liabilities included in

FENLRBE other payables and accruals 9,424,058 - - 57,948 - 9,482,006

EAEPERTIE Amounts due to joint ventures 92,337 - - - - 92,337
HERTERRAME Interest-bearing bank loans and

other borrowings - 650,421 2,946,417 20,877,042 351,633 24,825,513

AARES Convertible Bonds - 6,641 19,924 380,820 - 407,385

12,712,238 657,062 2,966,341 21,315,810 351,633 38,003,084
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45 AR EEERERBR

(¥&)

(d) FEMERRRGE)

R-E—ARE+=-A=+—H

(CONT’D)

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

At 31 December 2015

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

PHSEA  3Z12{@A HRiB5F

REKEE Less than 3t012 1856 Over st

On demand 3 months months 110 5 years 5 years Total

ANREFTT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ERNE530E Trade payables 3,714,873 - - - - 3,714,873

STAEMEMFIER Financial liabilities included in

e FBNSRARE other payables and accruals 4,037,875 - 7,345 5,637 46,978 4,097,835
HEBRTERR Interest-bearing bank loans and

HifE other borrowings - 459,635 1,259,215 19,845,013 203,665 21,767,528

ARk ES Convertible Bonds - 6,290 18,871 381,788 - 406,949

7,752,748 465,925 1,285,431 20,232,438 250,643 29,987,185

BRER Capital management

282

AEEEREANBRAREBASEEE
UFRFEEERENRE S - RIRRIEHER
RREamFEAEEREN S WK
EEARRBIARM D BAEA

REFIFHBREARRE  AEEAHFEX
MERRARE - FARREEEAN - BITH
Bk EBE AR A ER

AEENAEEREREL X /REERITE
Ko g RURBEFELERNH - BE
FRRIbRE BRIT R A SRR (A
FARAOR KPR IR AR B S B E B 7
IR T M IRTTAESR (BRIZRHIRITER)

.
Al= °

R ERERARAT 2016 FERE

The Group’s objectives of capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt-to equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated based on net debt and equity.
Net debt is calculated as total interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings (as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) and the debt component of the Convertible
Bonds less cash and bank balances (including restricted
bank deposits).
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45. MM EEREHERBRK 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(8) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D)

EXREE (&) Capital management (Cont’d)

RIPEER - BEFHEEESERINT The net debt-to-equity ratios at the end of the reporting

periods are as follows:

—E—XRF —ET—hfF
2016 2015
AR¥TFIT ARMFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
STERITEREHEMERK Interest-bearing bank loans and
(FH7¥31) other borrowings (note 31) 20,488,542 15,690,182
e TmRESNaEE S Add: Debt component of the
(Mf3E32) Convertible Bonds (note 32) 242,354 216,551
B R RIRTTERR(MIRE28) Less: Cash and bank balances (note 28) (11,880,744) (8,749,228)
BERE Net debt 8,850,152 7,157,505
P Equity 16,190,932 9,257,995
BEFREERLL X Net debt-to-equity ratio 54.7% 77.3%
46. HEHLEIE 46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD
(@) RZZE—tF—A+"8  ~QF @) On 16 January 2017, Foshan Hongtai, a wholly-owned
2EMBRATGLEREBAMARK subsidiary of the Company, acquired a parcel of land
EHE— BRI ERE LT located at Nanhai district, Foshan City, Guangdong
FEEEALH - THREAARE Province, the PRC, through public bidding. The
3,137,000,0007T * HAEFILIBHRL consideration of the land is RMB3,137,000,000, of
EEXENBRKRESLEZB AL which Foshan Hongtai has paid RMB159,160,000 up
B Xt AR¥159,160,0007T ° to the date of approval of these financial statements.
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RZE—+tF—A=Z+=H"
RN AR EER AN £ 5K 100% 3
TRZZEZZFHNBHASEA
375,000,000 T (HHERH AR
& 2,571,450,000 7T ) H6.250% &
EEBR(IZZ_ZFHHNER
6.250%BEEE]) c —T =T HF
FI Hi #96.250% 35 JU 18 7t 22 ik 7 B
XL TE=ZTE—+F—A
T+ =H(BE%E)BLA6.250%
MEMEEE  B¥FHRRIAN—
R o RRBIRZEMBIREFIE B
HAIE WA BRIEFEARYE
2,526,976,0007T - BT =%
FRHARZEIT6.250% B L ZIEMRF
B #B2MEBHAS—+tF—A
TEEARRNBBARS -

%

\ZZE—+F-A++tH - AQF
EMEBR _E—+F=A"+—
A(TEE B DRAERZERE
REFE106.313% K IEE B &=
EEHB(ETREZB)MERT R
REFME(E)BHER TN
F R HAR) 18 R IE 2112.625% E T8
EER - BREARFTBHAZE
—tFZA+EHMERAS -

R-E—+F_A-+=H AR
AEENBARBILBERERARA
MEWE—RBARPREEREHL
M= KERHE - ZHRORER
AR#1,779,900,0007T © ME =%
LHIEMFTER B - LB HRE
5+ AR #148,400,0007T °
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F+—-H=+—H 31 December 2016

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (CONT’D)

(b)

On 23 January 2017, the Company issued 6.250%
senior notes due 2020 in a principal amount of
USD375,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB2,571,450,000) at 100% of the principal
amount of such notes (the “USD 6.250% Senior
Notes due 2020”). The USD 6.250% Senior Notes
due 2020 are listed on the SEHK and bear interest
from and including 23 January 2017 at the rate
of 6.250% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears. The Company has received net proceeds of
RMB2,526,976,000 by the date of approval of these
financial statements. For further details on the USD
6.250% Senior Notes due 2020, please refer to the
related announcement of the Company dated 17
January 2017.

On 17 February 2017, the Company announced
that it will redeem the outstanding USD 12.625%
Senior Notes due 2019 in full on 21 March 2017
(the “Redemption Date”) at a redemption price
equal to 106.313% of the principal amount thereof,
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
including) the Redemption Date. Please refer to the
related announcement of the Company dated 17
February 2017.

On 23 February 2017, Foshan Hongtai, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired a
parcel of land located at Sanshui district, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, through
public bidding. The consideration of the land is
RMB1,779,900,000, of which Foshan Hongtai has
paid RMB148,400,000 up to the date of approval of
these financial statements.
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47. FLTFMERAER

BRAARRRRNRERROYBARARNE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

BT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E—REF —E—HF
2016 2015
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y% - BB RS Property, plant and equipment 5,567 4,972
HERWEB AT Investments in subsidiaries - -
IEMBNE ELREE Total non-current assets 5,567 4,972
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
TENFRIE ~ e REMEWGRIE  Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 427 382
=N E] Amounts due from subsidiaries 5,239,036 5,784,036
FIRHIRITIER Restricted bank deposits 1,435 1,342
B4 RIBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 128,830 152,304
MEVEEMRTE Total current assets 5,369,728 5,938,064
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
E b e ERIE K FERTERIE Other payables and accruals 228,694 212,304
FERTHI B R BRI FRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 414,737 132,490
FFERITER R EAMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 1,493,766 -
mENBERRE Total current liabilities 2,137,197 344,794
REVEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,232,531 5,593,270
EELERARBASE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 3,238,098 5,598,242
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
STERITEREHEMERK Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 3,996,498 5,200,369
AR E 5 Convertible Bonds 312,562 277,931
ERBAEERE Total non-current liabilities 4,309,060 5,478,300
FEE Net assets (1,070,962) 119,942
R EQUITY
(&N Share capital 135,778 135,778
A EICEED) Reserves (note) (1,206,740) (15,836)
(1,070,962) 119,942
=4l B2
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Jimin
EF EF
Director Director
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47. ELAFIHMEHEIRAER(E) 47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(CONT’D)

Hiat - Note:

ARRNEHFENREZEDHIINAT

The changes in reserves of the Company for the years are set out as
follows:

RO RER B R E R

Share Exchange REtEE
premium fluctuation Accumulated Foy
account reserve losses Total
ARKFT ARMFr ARMFr ARMEFr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
W-Z—HE—F—H At 1 January 2015 1,418,651 (200,506) (255,575) 962,570
AEEEERA (BEB) Total comprehensive
pke) income/(loss) for the year - 11,045 (742,316) (731,271)
TR E—MERBRE Final 2014 dividend declared (247,135) - - (047,135)
A=ZZ—RF+-A=+—H At31December 2015 and
k=ZT—X"F—A—H 1 January 2016 1,171,516 (189,461) (997,891) (15,836)
RNEEHERARE Total comprehensive loss for the year - (49,237) (872,293) (921,530)
SR-E-AERHRE Final 2015 dividend declared (269,374) - - (269,374)
M-B—XE+-A=+—H At31 December 2016 902,142 (238,698) (1,870,184) (1,206,740)
48. MIGHFAOHLE 48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

HEHRRER—_E—+tF_A=-++HE
ERSHENIRETE -

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 27 February 2017.
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HERERMBRREARFAHA-_T—=F
tT—AZtARMBARERNARENBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited

BRFENHEE BERBEREFHIIET : financial statements and the Company’s prospectus dated 29
November 2013, is set out below:
BE+-A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
=F-AF ZFRF ZFNOF T =F ZT-=F
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
E RESULTS
L'ON REVENUE 16,206,451 13,638,163 10,418,948 9,694,735 3,197,142
HERA Cost of sales (11,956,202) (10,091,717) (7,232,639) (7,354,711) (2,288,184)
EF GROSS PROFIT 4,250,249 3,546,446 3,186,309 2,340,024 908,958
E A R Other income and gains 362,900 130,376 104,526 78,700 138,269
HE RIS HER A Seling and marketing costs (657,499) (487,988) (483,398) (411,137) (204,279)
TR Administrative expenses (537,144) (342,988) (304,343) (285,629) (145,098)
HhFAx Other expenses (84,164) (49,105) (40,482) (16,493) (34,377)
BB R Finance costs (239,857) (175,131) (231,959) (87,706) (42,055)
FE(REE R & Share of profits and losses
aEbERR of associates and
joint ventures 66,090 (298) 4,160 2,371 5
BRF: Al A PROFIT BEFORE TAX 3,160,575 2,621,312 2,234,813 1,620,130 621,423
Frigfif st Income tax expense (1,178,176) (1,070,244) (881,131) (646,200) (267,775)
FEFH PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,982,399 1,551,068 1,353,682 973,930 353,648
TEIBIERE Attributable to:
PiN/NCIEZZ=DN Owners of the Company 1,955,020 1,420,590 1,279,026 987,022 362,916
FEIERR R Non-controlling interests 27,379 130,478 74,656 (13,092) (9,268)
1,982,399 1,551,068 1,353,682 973,930 353,648
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BE  RfARER

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Rt+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-RFE ZT—hF FTOF T—=F ZT—=F
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ARMFIT ARETFT ARETIT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEMEE TOTAL ASSETS 69,088,944 45,870,283 33,084,552 24,839,778 22,085,608
BEHEE TOTAL LIABILITIES (52,898,012) (36,612,288) (27,367,497) (20,831,357) (18,879,495)
RSB TOTAL EQUITY 16,190,932 9,257,995 5,717,055 4,008,421 3,206,113
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